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I DEVA HOLDING IN BRIEF

Established in 1958, DEVA Holding is among the well-established
pharmaceutical manufacturers in Turkey.

With the main area of operations including manufacturing and marketing
medicinal products for human and use and raw materials, DEVA Holding
also manufactures veterinary medicines, eau de cologne, and medical
ampoules.

The majority of shares in DEVA Holding was acquired in 2006 by funds
managed by GEM Global Equities Management S.A., an international fund
management company, and EastPharma Ltd. was established to assume
management.

DEVA Holding is pacing rapidly toward its goal of being the first choice by
offering innovative and unique products with a high-quality experience
by creating giant pharmaceutical brands in areas where it competes, in
order to make healthy living accessible to everyone around the world. With
the new therapies it offers, DEVA holding makes difference by expanding
its product diversity every year. Currently, DEVA Holding has over 600
products in its portfolio, spanning 13 therapy areas, ranging from oncology
to cardiology and from the respiratory system to ophthalmology.

With progressively expanding regional growth and export operations,
DEVA Holding is the holder of around 600 marketing authorizations in
app. 60 countries, including the USA, Switzerland and Germany. Founded
under the brand name of Devatis in Germany and then in Switzerland,
the company received registration approval in 2018 and having been
established in the USA under the same name, accelerated its activities.

DEVA Holding focuses on research and development to improve access
to medicines for patients who need them, and its manufacturing facilities
are certified compliant with the European GMP (Good Manufacturing
Practice) and the US FDA (Food and Drug Administration) requirements,
with exportations to app. 40 countries including the USA at present.

DEVA Holding develops high added value, innovative new forms and
products with its highly-competent staff of experts trained in their areas
and experienced in R&D in its full-fledged laboratories and manufacturing
areas equipped with state-of-the-art technology at its award-winning
DEVARGE Center.

With its manufacturing capabilities, DEVA Holding has become the
domestic corporation with the most comprehensive production capabilities
in Turkey. Undertaking manufacturing operations at facilities in Cerkezkdy
and Kartepe, DEVA Holding holds an annual output capacity of 515 million
units of medicines.

Continuing to work for a healthier future, DEVA Holding also supports
social responsibility projects.




I FINANCIAL INDICATORS

FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Primary financial and operational indicators (TL) 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Total assets 1.668.440.329 1.256.406.869
Total liabilities 922.032.432 651.316.767
Total equity capital 746.407.897 605.090.102

01.01.2018-31.12.2018

01.01.2017-31.12.2017

Sales revenue (net) 1.040.677.048 800.295.112
Real operating profit 277.236.202 145.332.182
Net profit 136.361.117 92.542.675
Basic rations (%) 31.12.2018 31.12.2017
Current ratio 1,65 1,48
Liquidity ratio 1,00 0,97
Precision ratio 0,21 0,19
Liabilities/Assets total (Financial leverage rate) 0,55 0,52
Equity/debt ratio 0,81 0,93

01.01.2018-31.12.2018

01.01.2017-31.12.2017

Gross profit margin 0,50 0,43
Net profit margin (sales profitability) 0,13 0,12
Equity profit margin (equity profitability) 0,18 0,15

Total Domestic Sales of Medicine (Million Units)
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CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE
Company’s;
Registered capital ceiling : 500.000.000 TL

Issued capital : 200.019.288 TL

DEVA HOLDING A.S. SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE (31.12.2018)

Corporate Name Amount of Share (TL) Rate of Share (%)
EastPharma S.a.r.| 164.424.760 82,20
Other Shareholders 35.594.528 17,80
TOTAL 200.019.288 100,00




I VIESSAGE BY THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dear Stakeholders,

2018 was a year of change in the economic balance across the world, and the developing economies were highly
impacted from the resulting uncertainties. The exchange rate fluctuations, which we began seeing in Turkey in 2017
continued at a greater rate last year and because the inputs are priced in foreign currency, the pharmaceutical industry
was one of the most affected by these fluctuations. Despite tough challenges, DEVA Holding completed year 2018
successfully ranking first in hospital business and second place with 6.4% market share in terms of volume, according to
IQVIA sales volume data (free market + tenders).

In recent years, DEVA Holding has been undergoing a process of rapid change and growth. We have transformed
from a mainly antibiotics-oriented company in early 2000s to, now, a company with a growing focus on respiratory,
ophthalmology, cardiology and hematology/oncology therapy areas based on a better understanding of the evolving
needs of patients. We have strengthened our product portfolio with new approvals and products for the medical
community in 2018. As an indigenous pharmaceutical company, we are aware of our responsibility and the positive
contribution that we have been making to the health economy with our equivalent products which add value by
offering cost-effective treatments.

We are working to offer affordable treatments in not only Turkey but also on a global scale. We are working to expand
our footprint in our current markets while taking business opportunities to expand to new markets. As of yearend 2018,
we have more than 600 product approvals in nearly 60 countries. Also, we are exporting drugs and pharmaceutical raw
materials to more than 40 countries. Our Swiss affiliate Devatis AG has been registered and become operational. After
beginning export of two products to the USA, the world’s largest pharmaceutical market, in 2017, we established our
US affiliate, Devatis, Inc., increasing the momentum of our operations in that market. We are confident that the fruits of
these efforts will be forthcoming in the near future.

During our times of growing importance of localization in the pharmaceutical industry, we are contributing to our
national economy as a rare example of a company that adopted vertical integration and employing approximately 2200
people across our extensive facilities. We have grown our annual output to 240 million units, from 60 million units 10
years ago. We continue investing in different products / product forms, while increasing our output every year. Our
manufacturing plants, boasting an annual output capacity of 515 million cartons, are regularly inspected by national and
international health authorities. We take utmost care to meet the requirements of these inspections, which certify the
quality and safety of our products at each instance, working to ensure sustainability of our accomplishments. Our new
logistics hub, built to allow distribution of all products from a central location, has become operational and was recently
granted EU GMP approval. We are proud to have established Turkey’s largest pharmaceutical logistics hub.

At DEVA, the importance we place on R&D and our investments in this area are a key driver of success for a robust
product portfolio. We maintain our focus in this area and continue our investments at a growing rate for sustainable
success. In 2018, we reinvested approximately 6% of our sales in R&D. Our R&D teams, who are experts in their
respective fields, work in state-of-the-art laboratories, developing innovative new forms and products, working in
collaboration with reputable institutions and universities. We believe our investments make a difference in this area, and
we pursue joint projects with TUBITAK in areas such as biotechnology.

We believe that healthy living is key to a healthy future, and we maintain our sensitivity to the social development

of our community. We encourage broader awareness of healthy living, and support advances and improvements on
environmental issues, developing projects in these areas. We will continue working with nongovernmental organizations
on joint projects where we achieved good results.

As we are leaving 60 years behind us with pride and many accomplishments, we continue evolving with new
investments, new markets and new products. We are continually taking growth opportunities while making plans to
enhance efficiencies, supporting innovation and diversifying our human resources. In the future, we will continue setting
the bar higher, achieving our growth targets and remaining a robust and reliable partner.

Very truly and respectfully yours,

s

Philipp Haas
Chairman of the Board of Directors & CEO









I BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Philipp Haas

Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO of DEVA Holding,
Philipp Haas took MBA degree in the specialty of banking at St.
Gallen Economy, Law and Business Administration University.
He speaks German, English, French, Spanish, Portuguese, Italian
and Turkish fluently. Having served as investment consultant and
director since 1992, Philipp Haas has a broad experience in markets
of Eastern European Countries and particularly Turkish market.
Having taken part in many restructuring projects in Ukraine and
Turkey, Philipp Haas performed membership of many boards of
directors on behalf of foreign corporate investors in 90s, among
which are Rogan Brewery in Ukraine and Net Holding in Turkey.
Having a broad experience in pharmaceutical industry, Philipp
Haas served as consultant to funds in pharmaceutical industry
in developing markets and oriented their investments to Eastern
Europe. Among such firms is Slovakopharma named afterwards
as Zentiva. Being the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Chairman of BOD and CEO
Eastpharma Ltd and DEVA Holding, Haas also serves as the
Chairman of BOD in Saba llac Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S., New Life
Yasam Sigorta A.S., Eastpharma llac Uretim Pazarlama San. ve Tic.
A.S., and member of BOD in Eastpharma S.a.r.l., Lypanosys Pte
Limited. He also serves as a director in Devatis Ltd, Devatis Gmbh,
Devatis A.G. and Devatis Inc. within DEVA Holding. Philipp Haas
is the vice-president of the Pharmaceutical Industry Association
of Turkey.

Mesut Cetin

The Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors and CFO of DEVA
Holding, Mesut Cetin started his professional career within GEM
Global Equities Management S.A., a fund management company,
in 1999, and has served in various positions as clearing, research
assistant, trader and management. Within the same group, he
served actively in several private equity projects, and assumed
the duty of project supervision in some projects. Mesut Cetin is
the member of the BOD in Eastpharma Ltd. Ltd and Saba llac
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. He also performs the duty of CFO in various
companies within the group. Mesut Cetin is the graduate of
Mathematics Teaching at Bogazici University and completed his
EMBA program at Ko¢ University.
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I BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Esref Gilines Ufuk

Gunes Ufuk, an independent member of the Board of Directors of DEVA Holding, had worked
within the sales and marketing departments of a number of Swiss companies after studying at
the faculty of Business of Administration, St. Gallen University in Switzerland. He also worked in
top management functions at Kemer Golf&Country Club, Superonline and YKS (which is also an
affiliate of the Cukurova Group of Companies).

Upon putting an end to his professional career at Kemer Golf & Country Club while working as
in General Manager Position, Ufuk started a new career as a consultant. He had worked as an
Executive Officer and Consultant within MCT Company for over 6 years; and then founded k2
Consulting Company in April 2010 and provided various companies in Turkey with Management
Consultation service as a Trainer and Speaker. By providing services with his k2 Consultancy team
to 100+ leading companies operating in various areas in Turkey, Ufuk has become an expert in the
fields of “Sales and Marketing”, “Leadership” and “Strategy”.

Member of the Board of Directors

Aysecik Haas

The Non-Executive Member of the Board of Directors of DEVA Holding, Aysecik Haas completed
her license degree in Electrical-Electronic Engineering in Dogu Akdeniz University after graduating
Ankara Private Yikselis College in 1991, then took her master degree in Economics branch in Texas
Tech University. Having commenced her work life at various positions relating to engineering at
Emek Elektrik and Beko Elektronik in Turkey, Aysecik Haas worked the finance sector in New York
after taking Economy Master degree and upon her return, she worked as investment specialist at
Hattat Holding for a short period of time and performed as the General Manager of NAR Group, ; it
from 2008 to 2015. Aysecik Haas is still Member of the Board of Directors at N.A.R.G. Holding A.S L Membirof therBoard! of Directors
and New Life Yasam Sigorta A.S..

Tuncay Cem Akkus

Tuncay Cem Akkus, the independent member of the Board of Directors of DEVA Holding completed
his undergraduate education in East Mediterranean University, Department of Electrical and
Electronic Engineering. Akkus, who began his business life as a system engineer at PTT General
Directorate, was transferred to telecommunication industry after a short time. He worked as
engineer, manager and consultant in infrastructure projects in the industry in the operation units
of Siemens A.S, Sabanci Telekom, Global iletisim, Turkcell Superonline, and Millenicom respectively,
and he still works at Millenicom.

Member of the Board of Directors

Changes in Memberships of the Board of Directors within the year Senior Executives

Members of the Board of Directors were elected in the Annual Ordinary Philipp Haas - (CEO)

General Assembly Meeting held on 18 May 2018 to hold office for a period Mesut Cetin - (CFO)

of 3 years. Because Clineyt Demirgures, the Independent Member of the Dogan Varinlioglu - Deputy General Manager of Turkey and International Markets
Board of Directors, has resigned from the membership, since the time Riza Yildiz - Financial Reporting and Accounting Director

required by the legislation had expired, as of 27.09.2018 in accordance Hartwig Andreas Steckel — R&D and International Markets Technical Licensing Director
with the provisions of Article 4.3.6 (g) of the Corporate Governance Tijen Kavlak — Marketing and Communications Director

Principles, Esref Gunes Ufuk was appointed in his stead as the Independent irfan Cinkaya — Biotechnology Director

Board Member by the Board of Directors to complete the remaining term. Burc Kunter - Vetas A.S. Director

"



I ORGANIZATION CHART

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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I SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AND SUBSIDIARIES

EastPharma Ltd. incorporates DEVA Holding and it holds A, B and C group shares.

EastPharma Ltd.

EastPharma S.a.r.l.

DEVA Holding A.S.

A Grubu
Direct Control %74,00
B Grubu
Direct Control %72,00
C Grubu
Direct Control %82,20

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE (Shares of Group C)

DEVA Holding A.S.

. Other

DEVATIS Ltd
%82,20 | DEVATISLW | m no

%100 %100 %100 %100

INFORMATION ON PREFERRED SHARES

Our company’s capital contains 10 preferred shares in total of TL 0.10, consisting of 5 Group A Shares and 5 Group B Shares, each with a value of TL 0.01.
The preferences for these shares are as follows:

Preferences in Dividend

Group A Preferential Shares are entitled to receive 10% of the profit set aside from distributable profit according to the orders and principles referred to in
the Articles of Association.

Preference in terms of Right of Voting

Group A and B preferred shares have a voting right ten times the voting right of Group C shares in terms of right of voting.

Preference in Management
Two members of the board of directors are elected by Group A and B preferential shareholders from amongst Group A preferential shareholders.
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I ViISSION, VISION AND MAIN PRINCIPLES

Our Mission

We exist to offer innovative and diversified products with
high quality experience with a view to everybody being able
to reach healthy life at global scale.

Our Vision

To be the first choice in fields in which we compete by
creating giant pharmaceutical brands.

Our Values

e Endurance in the face of challenges

e Taking on accountability

e Openness to change and development
e Dependability

e People-orientation

e Team work

15



I NOTES FROM THE PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRY

According to free market and overall tender data of IQVIA*, 2,482 Total Market (Million Units)
million units and TL 33.3 billion** worth of medicines were sold in 2800

Turkish pharmaceutical market in 2018. The market achieved growth

at a rate of 4.1% in number of units and at a rate of 26.3% in TL 2.400

. . 2.482
compared with the previous year. 5 000
Rate of prescription medicines to total pharmaceutical market in Turkish 1.600
market is 94.1% in number of units and 93.2% in TL. 1200
Although medicines from many treatment groups are imported in our 800
country, preparations requiring new and advanced technology, nervous 200

system medicines, blood factors, some controlled-release medicines,
insulin, and anti-cancer medicines are predominantly imported. 2016 2017 2018

According to IQVIA data, the sector’s import increased by 2.2% on an

unit basis and decreased by 2.5% on USD basis, resulting in USD 3.8 Total Market (Million TL)
billion in 2018. The domestic pharmaceutical market grew by 4.6% on

an unit basis and shrunk by 2.6% on USD basis, resulting in USD 3,2

billion. The rate of import to the total market is 21.5% on an unit basis 30.000

and 54.3% on USD basis.

25.000
According to IQVIA data, the sector grew by 4.1% on an unit basis and 50000
shrunk by 2.6% on USD basis, resulting in USD 7 billion in 2018. The ’
total pharmaceutical market reached TL 33,3 billion, with a growth of 15.000
26.3%.

10.000

35.000

2016 2017 2018
* The title of the company IMS HEALTH TIBBI ISTATISTIK TICARET VE MUSAVIRLIK LTD. STi. was changed
to IQVIA TIBBI ISTATISTIK TICARET VE MUSAVIRLIK LTD. STi., as of 13.04.2018.
**“Surplus Goods” are included in the value in units but not included in the value in TL based on the IQVIA calculation TOtaI Market (MI"IO" USD)
method change.
8.000
7.500
7.000 7.257 7.245
7.059
6.500
6.000
2016 2017 2018

Source: IQVIA Free + Tender Data View
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I NOTES FROM THE PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRY

Market distribution according to medicine segments in our country in 2018 took place on unit and TL/USD basis as follows. On both unit
and TL/USD basis, Nutrition & Metabolism segment has the biggest share.

Total Market Sales Distribution (%)

NUTRITION &
OTHER METABOLISM

22% / %16

MEDICINES USED FOR
MISC. PURPOSES
%6

CARDIOVASCULAR

SYSTEM —
%10

MUSCULOSKELETAL \
SYSTEM %10 DRUGS FOR CANCER
TREATMENT AND
IMMUNE SYSTEM
REGULATORS

%11

Kaynak: IQVIA Serbest + ihale Dataview

RESPIRATORY
| %13
NERVOUS — . o
SYSTEM Total Market Sales Distribution (%) (TL/USD)
%12
NUTRITION &
METABOLISM
%15
DRUGS FOR CANCER
MUSCULOSKELETAL ——  TREATMENT AND

SYSTEM %6 — IMMUNE SYSTEM

REGULATORS
%12
BLOOD AND BLOOD —
FORMING ORGANS
%7 SYSTEMIC
/ ANTIINFECTIVES
%12

CARDIOVASCULAR
SYSTEM
%8

RESPIRATORY NERVOUS SYSTEM
SYSTEM % 11
%9
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I 2018 IN DEVA

In 2018, DEVA Holding achieved growth by 7.6% with an IQVIA sale of 159.3 million (Free Market +Tender) on unit basis, and by 37% with
an IQVIA sale of 965 million on TL basis compared with 2018.

DEVA Holding maintained its second place on unit basis in 2018 with a market share of 6.4%; and increased its ranking to 7th place with
a market share of 2.9% on TL basis.

Market Share of Top 15 Companies (Unit)

IQVIA
9 _ 2018 MARKET SHARE % 2018 UNIT
8 1 DEVA ‘
HOLDING
7 |
] >
5
4
3] e
£
24 @
1 2017 MARKET SHARE %
O T T T T T T T T 1
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Market Share of Top 15 Companies (TL)
7 _ 2018 MARKET SHARE % 2|C?1\QATL
N >
5 | ‘
4 DEVA P
HOLDING
3 |
2 |
1
2017 MARKET SHARE %
O T T T T T T 1
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Source: IQVIA Free +Tender Data View
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I 2018 IN DEVA

The progress for the last 3 years of the unit/TL/USD values of DEVA Holding and overall market are as follows:

DEVA Holding (Million Units) DEVA Holding (Million TL)

160

1.000

155 900
800

150 700
600

145 500
400

140 300
135 200
100

130 0

2016 2017 2018 2016 2017 2018

DEVA Holding (Million USD)

206
204
202 204
200
198
196
194
192
190
188
186

2016 2017 2018

Source: IQVIA Free +Tender Data View
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I 2018 IN DEVA

In 2018, DEVA Holding’s Devit-3, Dikloron, Amoklavin, Cezol, Desefin, Tilcotil, Dekort and Dodex, respectively, were was among the top
100 products of Turkish pharmaceutical market on an unit basis. Deva Holding’s Devit-3 was among the top 100 products of Turkish

pharmaceutical market on TL basis.

According to 2018 IQVIA data, 15 products in total comprised the 50.7% of the company’s revenues These products are Devit D3,
Amoklavin, Dikloron, Rivelime, Depores, Benipin, Dodex, Dilatrend, Cefaks, Madopar, Candexil Plus, Respiro, Imatis, Biteral and Tilcotil,

respectively.

In 2018, product launches for 12 new products in 24 different forms have been accomplished, with 6 different forms added to the existing

products as well.

Nutrition and metabolism group of medicines comprise the majority of DEVA Holding’s medicine sales in 2018 on both medicine and TL/
USD basis. The distribution of sales by segments on and TL/USD basis are as follows:

DEVA Holding’s Distribution of Sales % (Unit) 2018

DRUGS FOR CANCER

TREATMENT AND
IMMUNE SYSTEM
SYSTEMIC HORMO- REGOULATORS
NAL PREPARATIONS % 0,8
% 4.2 SENSE BLOOD AND BLOOD

ORGANS
% 2,6

FORMING ORGANS
DERMATOLOGY %0,2
% 3.3
HOSPITAL SERUMS

GENITOURINARY SYSTEM AND % 0.0

SEX HORMONES
% 4,2

NUTRITION AND
METABOLISM
% 28,9

RESPIRATORY SYSTEM

% 4,6
N

NERVOUS
SYSTEM
% 4,7

CARDIOVASCULAR
SYSTEM
% 8,9

MUSCULOSKELETAL
SYSTEM
% 14,1
SYSTEMIC
ANTIINFECTIVES
% 23,5

Source: IQVIA Free +Tender Data View
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DEVA Holding % Satis Dagilimi (TL/USD) 2018

SYSTEMIC
HORMONAL PREPA-
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GENITO-URINARY % 1.2 BLOOD AND BLOOD
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I 2018 IN DEVA

INTERNATIONAL MARKETS

$ 25.000.000
GMP Inspections

In 2018, our Kartepe, Cerkezkdy-1 and Cerkezkdy-2 facilities have $20.000.000
been fully inspected for GMP compliance and approved by the Turkish,

German and Yemen healthcare authorities.

In addition, Cerkezkoy-1 and Cerkezkoy-2 facilities have also been $15.000.000
inspected for GMP compliance for veterinary medicinal products and

approved by Turkish Agriculture and Livestock authority. Our Kartepe

and Cerkezkoy-I facilities have successfully completed the audit and $10.000.000
was approved by the Ivory Coast Authority. Our Cerkezkody-I facility

was inspected by the authorities of Uganda and Tanzania. In 2018,

Cerkezkoy-IV facility successfully passed the German authority audit $5.000.000
and received EU GMP certificate. The facility also successfully passed

the audit by the Turkish authority and received approval.

$0
Export of Medicinal Products for Human Use and API 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Agreements with overseas pharmaceutical companies and distributors
were continued to be made, and sale of the products to overseas
markets with DEVA brand and license agreements continued as main
business models in 2018 as well.
Distribution of Export in 2018 by Regions;
In 2018, in which new agreements and strategies continued producing
results, export of DEVA's medicinal products for human use and raw Oceania
materials increased by 33.6% compared with the previous vyear, %1

/

Africa

/ %21

Middle East
%35

America
%6

Balkans

Far East
0 %11

%

Europe
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I 2018 IN DEVA

The strategy for global growth is being maintained on two
primary approaches, i.e. entering new markets and reinforcing our
position in current markets with new approvals. In 2018, a total
of 47 authorizations were approved in 17 countries, totaling 616
authorizations in 55 countries.

While we continue to grow with our own brand as DEVA, new projects
have been signed with globally-operating companies and within this
scope, the first shipment has been made to Angola.

Qatar was among the countries to which goods were exported for
the first time, and new licenses were also obtained in Pakistan and
Saudi Arabia and in many other countries as well, and contracts have
been signed for initial exportations to Thailand, Ukraine, Belarus,
Mozambique and Zimbabwe.

Our existing portfolio of respiratory, ophthalmology and oncology
products has been expanded in the Balkans, Kenya, Libya and Ethiopia,
where there are active sales, as well as in many other markets.

Cooperation agreements have been signed with the Ministry of
Health in various countries in the Balkans, and thus DEVA has become
known in hospital group products in these countries. In addition, our
Company’s recognition in many different therapeutic areas, particularly
oncology gained in New Zealand, has been increased in Jordan, Iraq,
Afghanistan and developed markets.

With Devatis, antibiotics and ophthalmology products were added
to the product portfolio after hematology/oncology products in
Germany. We continued to participate in Germany’s leading insurance
companies’ auctions and won one of the largest for Imatinib.

Within the scope of the localization program, new agreements have
been signed for subcontracting projects for the domestic market and
for export. Growth was also achieved in APl exports compared with
the previous year.

Promotional Activities in the International Arena

As our business operations grow rapidly on the global scale, we also
announce our presence in this market towards greater reputation through
the expositions we took part. For this purpose, we participated in the CPhl
WW, the world's largest pharmaceutical and medicinal product ingredient
exposition held in Madrid this year, and reinforced our business contacts.

We accomplished important communications for the North America
market during the DCAT Meetings which is held in New York and gathers
the leading players of the pharmaceutical industry.

Participating in these and other similar international organizations
throughout 2018, DEVA Holdings communications network in this
field was extended, setting the groundwork for agreements with new
business partners.

22

Major congresses and exhibitions participated:

e CPhl North America - USA

e DCAT - USA

e CPhl Worldwide - Spain

® EuroPLX 66 - Spain

® Pharmavenue - Spain

e \Vector Pharma - Mexico

e EuroPLX 67 - Holland

e EuroPLX 68 — Greece

e 4th Turkey & Uzbekistan Hematology Congress - Uzbekistan

Product training support was provided also in 2018 teams to the
sales and marketing groups of our business partners by DEVA.

In addition, visitsand meetings were held in DEVA manufacturing
facilities with approximately 150 doctors/pharmacists from
countries such as Bosnia, Macedonia, Afghanistan and Iraq
where marketing activities are carried out actively.






I HUMAN RESOURCES AND DEVELOPMENT

DEVA Holding, in view of the fact that it will gain more competitive power with a high-?rofile human capital, continues to generate
employment, primarily in its manufacturing fadilities, in 2018, its 60th anniversary, as well. Career opportunities are presented to the
employees, and internal sources are prioritized, particularly in promotions. Through the employee evaluation center’s practices and the
evaluations of the Promotion Committee, implementation of systems for assignment of the employees to appropriate positions continued.
The demographic structure of the company by the end of 2018 as a result of the above developments is as follows:

Educational Status Age Distribution Gender Distribution
%1 %5 %4

Primary edu.

. Secondary edu. 18-30

[l Assoc. Degree | BN B women
. Bachelor's D. . 41-50 . Men
. Master’s degree . 51 and over

Doctorate

In 2018, recruitment of interns continued to contribute to the improvement of vocational high schools and shaping of the business lives of
university students during their education within the scope of the Human Resources policy. Intern Contingent Rate Agreements were signed with
the leading universities in Turkey. Internship opportunities were offered to university students in summer and to vocational high school students
in winter in various departments in DEVA Holding, thereby contributing to the improvement of the young people, introducing them to business
life before they graduated. In addition, career days were held in universities to familiarize the students attendln% to pharmacology and chemistry/
chemical engineering departments of the universities with DEVA Holding and the pharmaceutical industry. Production facility trips were also
organized for the students of relevant department.

In the blood donation campaign organized in the General Directorate and all manufacturing facilities, the blood donations made by the employees
were delivered to the patients’in need free of charge by the Red Crescent. These social responsibility projects set examples, demonstrating DEVA
employees’ ethical and responsible behaviors towards society, and emphasized the importance of human health and the fact that leading firms
should pioneer continuous aids at hard times with a sense of corporate responsibility.

Many events in the fields of culture, arts and sports were organized to increase the senses of motivation, unity, and solidarity of employees,
and many organizations such as sports tournament, celebrations, vacations, happy hour etc. were organized. In addition, by implementing and
awarding new ideas and projects, our employees’ creativity was supported.

With our “suggest-win” application, our employees were given the opportunit¥ to suggest candidates who are suitable for DEVA's corporate
culture and values to open positions, and our employees who made such suggestions were rewarded when the suggested candidates are hired.

To support success, scholarships are now being awarded for the successful children of DEVA family who are attending to medicine, pharmacy,
chemistry/chemical engineering, biology and véeterinary departments of schools to help us look at the future with hope.

As part of the “Human Resources Integration Project” commenced with the motto, “We guide the Future TOGETHER”, the implemented “DEVA
Competency Evaluation” process continued to be advanced by integrating DEVA Performance Management System, Training and Development,
Selection and Placement and Promotion processes.

As part of the “DEVA Performance Management System”, competency-based performance review was performed for all patients in line with the
established targets in 2018.

Many training activities have been planned and implemented to ensure continuous development of all employees by rapidly adapting to the
changing dynamics of the sector in line with the company’s targets and strategies. Employees were encouraged to participate in‘training activities,
both at home and abroad, in order to increase their technical knowledge and skills as well as to improve their personal competencies.

Trainings on corporate values and infrastructure coaching were carried out in the manufacturing facilities as part of the We Guide the Future
Together project in order to strengthen the internalization of corporate values.

DEVASIN project, which defines the DEVA's sales culture, was launched to support the efficiency of the sales teams. Leadership trainings for the
first and mid-level managers were continued.

(Fjorei n Iangtuage education project has been implemented to support employees in following up the changing world and their personal
evelopment.

All Human Resources and Development activities were continued successfully in 2018, too.
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I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

DEVA HOLDING CERKEZKOY-I MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

DEVA Holding Cerkezkdy-I Manufacturing Facility, located
approximately at a 100 km distance to Istanbul, is founded
on an area of 52,000 m2 in Cerkezkdy Organized Industrial
Zone with closed facilities of 32,000 m2. The facility comprises
of modern buildings where liquids/semi solids and solids,
cephalosporin, penicillin, hormone-containing products, inhaled
products, sterile liquid ampoules and vials, and soft gel capsules
are manufactured.

In the production facility, a total of 128 million units were
manufactured in 2017 compared to 141 million units in 2018.
There has been a 10% increase in total production in 2018.

Total Manufacture

145

140
135
130
125

120

2017

Liquid / Semi Solid and Solids Manufacturing Area

In the liquid and semi-solid area, syrup-drop and spray,
creams and gels, suppository- and pessary-form products are
manufactured using the state-of-art technology.

In the side, in which a total of 21.3 million units were
manufactured in 2017, a total of 28.8 million units were
manufactured in 2018, 21.7 million of which are syrup,
suspensions and drops, and 7.1 million are creams, gels and
suppositories.

There has been a 35% increase in the liquid / semi-liquid
unit's production in 2018 compared with 2017.

B Total Manufacture

2018

Liquid / Semi Solid Manufacture (Units)

35
2017

30 = 2018

25

20
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10

5

0 -

LIQUIDS TOTAL SYRUPS-DROPS CREAMS-SUPP.
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I MIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

In the solids area, tablets and film coated tablets, capsules and powder Solid Manufacture (Units)

suspensions-form medicines are manufactured using the state-of-art .

technology. W 2017
50 M 2018

In this side, in which 45.3 million units products were manufactured

in 2017, a total of 48.9 million units were manufactured in 2018, of 40
which 47 million units were tablets/capsules, and 1.9 million units were
suspensions. 30
There has been a 7% increase in the solids unit’s production in 2018 20
compared with 2017. o
0 (|

SOLIDS TOTAL ~ TABLETS-CAPSULES SUSPENSION
Cephalosporin Manufacturing Area (Betalactam I) Cephalosporin Manufacture (Units)
Whereas, in the cephalosporin area, 27.5 million units were 30 W 2017
manufactured in 2017, a total of 27.2 million units of pharmaceutical W 2018
products were manufactured in 2018; 22.8 million units of injectable 2
sterile powder vials, 1.8 million units of oral suspensions, and 2.6 million
i . 20

units of film-coated tablets and capsules.

15

10

5

0 M em [ TR

CEF TOTAL VIALS SUSPENSION TABLETS

26



I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Penicillin Manufacturing Area (Betalactam II) Penicillin Manufacture (Units)
Whereas, in the penicillin area, 16.3 million units were manufactured 20 W 2017
in 2017, a total of 17.3 million units of pharmaceutical products were 18 W0
manufactured in 2018; 6,8 million units of injectable sterile powder 16
vials, 3.5 million units of oral suspensions, and 7 million units of film- 14
coated tablets. 12

10
There has been a 6% increase in the penicillin unit's production in 2018 g
compared with 2017. 6

4

2 N

0

PEN TOTAL VIALS SUSPENSIONS TABLETS

Hormone Products Manufacturing Area Hormone Products Manufacture (Units)
Whereas, in the hormone products area, 15.5 million units of products 18 W 2017
were manufactured in 2017; approximately 15,3 million units or 16 W 2018
product were manufactured in 2018; 2.7 million units of creams/ 14
pomades, 2.6 million units of tablets, and 10 million units of sterile "
ampoules, vials, and drops. o

8

6

4

: . il

0

HORMONES ~ CREAMS/POMA  AMPOULES- TABLETS

TOTAL DES-DROPS VIALS
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I M ANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Inhaled Products Manufacturing Area

Approved by the Ministry of Health in 2014, the facility has its own
ventilation, water system and laboratory in a separate building. 2.2
million units of MDI and DPI were manufactured in 2017 compared
with 2.6 million units in 2018.

There has been a 18% increase in the inhaler unit’s production in
2018 compared with 2017.

Sterile Liquid Ampoule and Vial and Soft Gel Capsule Products
Manufacturing Area

In the sterile liquid ampoule and vial area, 640 thousand sterile liquid
vials were manufactured in 2017, while 1.5 million units of vials were
manufactured in 2018.

A 132% increase was achieved in 2018.
Cerkezkoy-I Manufacturing Facility successfully underwent inspections
in 2018 by the Turkish Ministry of Health, Turkish Ministry of Agriculture

and Forestry GMP and GMP audit of Germany EU health authority and
health authorities of Yemen, Russia, Ivory Coast, Uganda, Tanzania.
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I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Solid Oncology Manufacturing Area

Products in tablet and capsule form are manufactured in the solid
oncology manufacturing area.

The total manufacturing quantity, which was 482,824 units in 2017,
was 603,163 units with a 25% increase in 2018.
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DEVA HOLDING CERKEZKOY-Il MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

DEVA Holding Cerkezkdy Il manufacturing facilities located at
the 110 km distance to Istanbul, founded on an area of 67,551
m2 in Cerkezkdy Organized Industrial Zone, with closed facilities
of 18,742 m2, comprise of state-of-the-art manufacturing
buildings where solid oncology, sterile liquid oncology, animal
health products and APIs are manufactured.

Solid Oncology Manufacture (Units)

800.000
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2017 2018



I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Of the total of 603,163 units of products manufactured in 2018,
274,226 units were capsules and 328,937 units were tablets.

In addition, of the 328,937 units of product manufactured in
tablet form, 120,390 units were manufactured for the European
market, and of the 274,226 capsules, 91,279 were manufactured
for the US-American market.

Distribution of Solid Oncolytic Products in
%3

I Capsule-TR
Capsule-US

B Tablet- TR

[ Tablet- EU
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Distribution of Solid Oncolytic Products in
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Tablet— US

B Tablet-TR
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I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Sterile Liquid Oncology Manufacturing Area Sterile Liquid Oncology Manufacture (Units)

Products in sterile liquid and sterile lyophilized powder forms are 1.050.000
manufactured in Sterile Liquid Oncology Manufacturing area

850.000
The manufacturing quantity of the area of 569,855 units in 2017 was 650.000
890,337 units in 2018 with a 56% increase.

: L ) ) 450.000
Of the 890,337 units of products, liquid products comprise 568,521 units
and lyophilized products comprise 321,816 units. 550,000
In 2018, in the Liquid Oncology department, the following products were
manufactured and marketed for the first time. 20.000

2017 2018
Distribution of Sterile Oncolytic Products in 2017 Distribution of Sterile Oncolytic Products in 2018

%40 B Lyophilized Product

M Lyophilized Product
[ Liquid Product

[ Liquid Product
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I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Sterile Animal Health Products Manufacturing Area Sterile Animal Health Products (Units)
Products in sterile suspension and intramammary pomade form are 250.000
manufactured in sterile animal health products manufacturing unit.
The manufacturing quantity of the unit, which was 177,380 units in 200.000
2017, was 215,041 units in 2018, with a 21% increase.

150.000

100.000

50.000

0
2017 2018
Distribution of Sterile Animal Health Products in 2017 Distribution of Sterile Animal Health Products in 2018
%1 %2

B Sterile Suspension Products
Sterile Pomade Products

B Sterile Suspension Products
Sterile Pomade Products

Of the 215,041 units of product, suspensions comprise 211,071 units and sterile intramammary pomade products comprise 3,970 units.
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I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Non-Sterile (Solid) Animal Health Products Manufacturing Area Non-Sterile Animal Health Products (Units)

7 tablet-form products, 16 large and small powder fill-form products 3.000.000

and 2 bag powder fill-form product are being produced in the non-

sterile animal health products manufacturing area. 2:500.000

L . 2.000.000
This unitis divided into two subunits; non-betalactams and betalactams.
While animal health products in tablet, powder and pouch form are 1.500.000
manufactured in the non-betalactam area, products in powder form
are manufactured in the betalactams area. 1.000.000
The production output of the area was 1,731,356 units in 2017 and 500.000
1,478,543 units in 2018. Of these products, 1,299,322 units were
tablets, and 179,221 units were powders. 0

2017 2018
Distribution of Non-Sterile Animal Health Products in 2017 Distribution of Non-Sterile Animal Health Products in 2018

B Tablet Products
Powder Products

B Tablet Products
Powder Products
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I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

APl Manufacturing Areas

The facilities have four separate designated APl manufacturing areas:
non-betalactam API, betalactam non-sterile API, betalactam sterile API,
and oncolytic API.

The API manufacturing quantity, which was 5,977 in 2017, was 10,742
in 2018, with an 80% increase. APl productions are made according to
internal and external customer demands.

20 different APIs are produced in non-betalactam, betalactam and
oncology API production areas.

Of the 10.742 kg of API produced in total in 2018, 9.523 kg was
produced as non-betalactam, 1.104 kg as betalactam and 115 kg as
oncology APIs.

Distribution of API Products in 2017

%5

%14

B Non-betalactam products
B Betalactam products
[ Oncology products

In 2018, validation production of the products Ricobendazole HCI
and Indacaterol Maleate, and of the products Lenalidomide and
Pomalidomide APl were performed in the non-betalactam API
production area, and in the Oncolytic API production area, respectively.

In APl manufacturing, the toxic gases arising from reaction are
neutralized before being released to the atmosphere to minimize the
environmental effects resulting from manufacturing activities.

To summarize, finished products production output in DEVA Holding
A.S. Cerkezkoy Il facilities increased by 8% from 2,961,433 units in
2017 to 3,187,084 units in 2018.

The capacity utilization rate of Cerkezkdy Main and API Manufacturing
facilities is 74%.
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Distribution of API Products in 2018
%10

%1
/

B Non-betalactam products
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I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

DEVA HOLDING KARTEPE MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Deva Holding Kartepe Manufacturing Facilities, located on izmit
- Ankara highway, in Kocaeli Kartepe district, founded on an
area of 32,000 m2, with a closed area of 16,500 m2, comprise
of state-of-the-art buildings where sterile liquid drugs, empty
medical ampoules, and colognes are manufactured.

Sterile Liquid Medicine Manufacturing Unit:

Sterile liquid ampoules for injection, sterile liquid vials for injection, sterile liquid lyophilized vials for injection, and sterile liquid eye drops in
PE bottles, sterile liquid diluent vials and vials containing sterile inhalation powder for nebulization by BFS (blow-fill-seal) technology can be
manufactured in Kartepe sterile liquid medicine manufacturing facilities.

Sterile Liquid Drug Manufacture

In our facilities, in which 52.517,131 units of sterile liquid 60.500.000
medicines were manufactured in 2017, a total of 51.841,601

. ; 50.500.000
units were manufactured in 2018.

40.500.000
30.500.000
20.500.000
10.500.000

500.000

2017 (units) 2018 (units)
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I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Manufacture of Sterile Ampoules for Injection

In our facility, in which a total of 38,18 million units of ampoules and 32,22 million solvent ampoules were manufactured in 2017, a
total of 35,65 million units of ampoules and 38,55 million solvent ampoules were manufactured in 2018. The total number of single
ampoules we manufactured in 2018 is 168 million.

2017-2018 Number of Ampoules on Unit-Basis

2017 (units) 2018 (units)

39.000.000

37.000.000

35.000.000

33.000.000

31.000.000

29.000.000

27.000.000

25.000.000

2017-2018 Number of Solvent Ampoules

40.000.000

38.000.000
36.000.000
34.000.000
32.000.000
30.000.000
28.000.000

2017 (numbers) 2018 (numbers)
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I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

Manufacture of Sterile Liquid Vials for Injection and 2017-2018 Number of Vials on Unit-Basis
Sterile Liquid Lyophilized Vials for Injection 13.000.000
On our production line for sterile liquid vials for injection and
sterile liquid lyophilized vials for injection, on which a total of 11.000.000
12 million units of vials were manufactured in 2017, 12.13
million units of vials were manufactured in 2018.

9.000.000
Vial manufacture increased by approximately 1% in 2018,
compared with 2017.

7.000.000

5.000.000

2017 (units) 2018 (units)

2017-2018 BFS-SVP
BFS-SVP Manufacture Lines Manufacturing Numbers on Unit-Basis

On the BFS-SVP production line on which a total of 1,33 million 4.500.000

units of production was achieved in 2017, 4,05 million units in 4.000.000
total were produced in 2018, meaning that a very significant 3.500.000
production increase was achieved compared with 2018. 3.000.000
Furthermore, our facility, which was approved by the Ministry 2.500.000
of Health, Ministry of Food, Agriculture and Livestock, and 2.000.000
German Ministry of Health (for BFS-SVP production line) and by 1.500.000
US FDA (by United States Food and Drug Administration only for 1.000.000
a sterile liquid vial and sterile liquid lyophilized vial production 500,000 -

line) and Kenyan (for our ampoule line) and Southern African

Authorities (for our sterile liquid vial production line) was also 0
inspected during 2018 by the Ministry of Health, German
Ministry of Health and the Ivory Coast health authorities, and
successfully passed these inspections.

2017 (units) 2018 (units)
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I VIANUFACTURING FACILITIES

2017-2018 Manufacturing Numbers of
Manufacture of Empty Medical Ampoules Empty Medical Ampoules

Our empty medical ampoule manufacturing unit meets a 260.000.000
substantial part of the market's need as one of the three 230.000.000
leading medical ampoule manufacturing companies in our
country. 200.000.000
. . . ) 170.000.000
Our facilities, which holds ISO 9001:2008 certificate, is
audited by Thuringen on a periodical basis. 140.000.000
The number of empty ampoules we manufactured was 110.000.000
235,1 million in 2017, and 188,3 million in 2018. 80.000.000
50.000.000
2017 (numbers) 2018 (numbers)
Manufacture of Cologne: 2017 - 2018 Manufacturing Numbers of Cologne
5.000.000

In the unit where Bogazici Colognes, one of the bestselling

brands in Turkey, are manufactured, products appealing to
different sections of society such as 80° lemon cologne and 4.000.000
lavender are being produced.

3.000.000
Our facilities, which holds ISO 9001:2008 certificate, is
audited by Thuringen on a periodical basis. 2.000.000
Our production numbers for colognes was 3,6 million in 1 000.000
2017 and 4,5 million in 2017. o
In Kartepe manufacturing facility, rate of capacity utilization 0

W 2%.
as 82% 2017 (numbers) 2018 (numbers)

PRODUCTION INDICATORS

The total human and veterinary products manufactured in our manufacturing facilities on an unit basis was 168.3 million units in
2015, 176.8 million units in 2016, 184.7 million units in 2017, and 197.7 million units in 2018.

And the total manufacturing value (medicines and other) was realized as 325.8 million TL in 2015, 359.6 million TL in 2016, 401.1
million TL in 2017, and 541.4 million TL in 2018.
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I DEVARGE

As DEVARGE,

Our objectives are to be the pioneer in generic drug development,
to make difference by developing value-added products, to develop
products for regulated markets and have these products authorized
and launched in these markets, to invest into future by adapting
new technologies to our company, to develop products with
high added value through university-industry cooperation and to
make sure that the rights of our company are protected via patent
registration.

We work to be the top generic drug manufacturer of Turkey and
to develop high added value products exportable to international
markets.

With our approximately 160 trained personnel who are experts in
their fields as well as laboratories and manufacturing sites equipped
with cutting-edge technology, we work to develop innovative
products.

We strive to perform R&D activities in compliance with all ethical
and legal principles in a manner to meet the expectations of the
concerned authorities; prove that the safety, efficacy and quality
of the products do not change throughout the shelf life, increase
product accessibility, develop sustainable methods to increase
efficiency and adapt production to new technologies.

The operating principle requires product quality meeting current
standards, and finding new formulations, new dosage forms, and
different routes of synthesis and/or new polymorph methods that
do not infringe patents for raw materials.

Our long-term goal is to become a pioneer in developing generic
drugs, ensure vertical integration in strategic products, compete
with the world in developing active ingredients and new
polymorphs, create a difference by developing products with added
value, to continue to develop products for regulated markets (EMA
and FDA), invest in our future by adapting new technologies to
our company, develop products with high value by means of
cooperation between universities and the industry, and ensure
protection of our rights by patent registration.

DEVARGE comprises of Analytical Development, Pharmaceutical
Development, APl Development, CMC Documentation, Patent and
Biotechnology units.

DEVARGE contains Pre-formulation and pilot manufacturing

area, synthesis and scale-up laboratories, stability area, analytical
development laboratories and biotechnology laboratories.
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I DEVARGE

e Forty-four marketing authorization dossiers for the Turkish
market have been completed and transferred to the regulatory
unit.

® Seven marketinﬁ authorization dossiers for the Turkish
Veterinary market have been completed and transferred to the
veterinary regulatory unit.

e Marketing authorization dossiers for 14 products for the
European market have been prepared.

* Marketing authorization dossiers for 3 products for the New
Zealand market have been prepared

e For the US market, ANDA batches of two products have been
produced and dossier preparations have been completed.

o Fokrty-seven licenses were received in 17 countriesin international
markets.

e Fifteen bioequivalence studies have been completed
successfully and proven equivalence to reference products. Four
bioequivalence studies have been initiated.

* In order to reduce the cost of 20 commercial products,
alternative sources for the active substances were studied.

e In order to increase the efficiency of 5 commercial products,
improvement work was undertaken for the processes.

e Development studies for 16 products (Oncologic, inhalation
and conventional) for the national and international markets have
been initiated.

e Development work for 11 veterinary products has been
commenced.

e Processes for the synthesis of an oncolytic and two inhaled drug
active ingredients (APIs) have been developed and the validation
series have been produced.

* In order to reduce the cost of 2 active ingredients (APIs),
alternative sources of raw materials were sought.

e Process development studies have been initiated for the
synthesis of two active substances (Oncology and Inhalation).

e 15 TUBITAK TEYDEB applications were made and 16 of our
TUBITAK TEYDEB projects were approved.

e Within the scope of University-Industry cooperation, our
TUBITAK SAN-TEZ and ARDEB 1003 projects are on om%,and
applications have been made and accepted to TUBITAK BIDEB
2244 Industry Ph.D.

e Five patent applications have been made.
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DEVA Turkey Regulatory Affairs Department
includes the following groups;

e Technical Licensing

e Price and Reimbursement

e Government Affairs

e Medical Regulatory and Pharmacovigilance
e Packaging

Within the scope of licensing activities in DEVA, 38 license approvals
were obtained in 2018 and 78 products are in the approval phase. In
addition to the licensing activities, studies were carried out for various
new products within the scope of localization.



I VETAS

Merged with DEVA Holding in 2016 with no changes in its
former structure, Vetas, as a company that operates in the field
of manufacturing and marketing veterinary drugs, is among the
leading animal health companies in Turkey.

Offering high-quality solutions in the prevention, diagnosis and
treatment of diseases, Vetas has the widest range of products
in the industry with its innovative products.

Evaluating all developments in the industry, which is extremely
sensitive to economic developments, and meat, milk and
livestock prices, in a timely manner with the right strategies,
Vetas puts weight on future projects with a view to maintain
and improve its strong position.

Vetas continued to meet the needs in every sense with its
superior technological infrastructure to manufacture high-
quality, healthy, safe and efficient food of animal origin in 2018,
as usual, and putting weight on new product studies, focused
on studies of widening its product range based on the field
dynamics.

The long-term business partnership activities in line with the
goal of increasing our experience of over 44 years in the field of
animal health products in international markets are continuing.
EU GMP certifications for the production of animal healt
products for the CKI and CKIl facilities gave a great momentum
to the export of Vetas products, and add new countries to the
export portfolio every year.

Actively sustaining its licensing activities abroad, Vetas also and
continues its licensing works in Turkey, both as updates or for
new products.

Vetas participated as a sponsor in the congresses organized
in our country and in TRNC in 2018. BE ﬁarticipating in the
Fertility and Mammary Health in Livestock held by Yakin Dogu
University Faculty of Veterinary Medicine, the 5th National Herd
Health and Management Congress and the 1st International
Herd Health and Management Congress organized by the
Association of Farm Animal Medicine in Antalya with a
veterinary Physician and by sponsoring the 9th National
Congress of Reproduction and Artificial Insemination Scientific
Congress organized by the Mustafa Kemal University Faculty of
Veterinary Medicine in Hatay, Vetas continued their leadershi

in the sector. Vetas also participated as a sponsor in the 20t e as
International Veterinary Medicine Students Scientific Research

Congress organized by Istanbul University Faculty of Veterinary

Medicine and “VetAnka-2018 Fifth Career Days and Meetin

with the Industry organized by Ankara University Faculty o

Veterinary Medicine. Vetas organized a career days event for

the intern students at Firat University Faculty of Veterinary

Medicine, Harran University Faculty of Veterinary Medicine and

Mustafa Kemal University Faculty of Veterinary Medicine.

Vetas continued to act as a bridge in meeting scientific needs
through Vetakademi Campus training programs which it has
implemented with the motto “in the light of science” by which
it reaches many veterinarians on a local and general basis.

Contact Details: Halkall Merkez Mahallesi Basin Ekspres Cad.
No:1 K.Cekmece —Istanbul Phone: +90 (212) 692 92 92
Fax: +90 (212) 697 02 08 Website www.vetas.com.tr
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I ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL MECHANISM

The risk management activities of our company are performed under the coordination of Risk Management Committee. Risk Management
Committee evaluates the information from the Credit Committee and Internal Audit within the framework of Corporate Risk Management, and
prepares and the results of the evaluation and any action plans to mitigate risks and presents them to the Board of Directors.

The credit committee sets the credit limits to be allocated to customers in product purchases and the bases for the securities to be received.
It uses the partnership structure, immovable properties, financial status, and the customer intelligence activities in setting limits and securities
It is aimed to keep the security rates on desired levels and minimize doubtful receivable risks by continuous management of customers’ open
accounts.

Internal Audit Management audits the compliance of the activities carried out by the company with international auditing principles and generally
accepted management standards, company’s articles of association as well as written policies and practices. Internal Audit Management
evaluates all units in terms of management within the framework of the audit plan, and presents audit results to the Risk Management
Committee and the Committee Responsible for Audits on a regular basis.

In 2018, internal audit activities were carried out for the company’s operations, the risk reports from all units were evaluated, and the findings
and recommendations for improvement were presented to the Board of Directors.

THE AMENDMENTS MADE IN THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION WITHIN THE PERIOD AND THEIR RATIONALE

No changes have been made in the articles of association.

REGARDING PARTNERSHIP:

Changes in the Capital Status of the Partnership within the Period

No changes have been made within the period.

Audits Carried Out within the Period

No audits have been performed during the 01.01.2018 — 31.12.2018 period within our company.

Information on legislative changes that may significantly affect company operations during the period
None

Cases filed against the company

The cases filed against our company include miscellaneous business cases and cases regarding tax penalties. Detailed information on the subject
is provided in the footnote 16.

Information on conflicts of interest between the institutions from which the Company’s receives services for investment consulting
and rating, and information on measures taken by the company to prevent these conflicts of interest

There are no conflicts of interest between the relevant institutions and our company, and provisions that prevent conflicts of interest are
included in the contracts made with the institutions.

Collective Agreement Practices

No Collective Agreement with employees exists.
Personnel and Labor Movements

No personnel or labor movements occurred.
Severance pay liability

The severance pay liability of DEVA Holding A.S. and Group Companies for 01.01.2018 - 31.12.2018 period was 20.539.235 TL, and provisions
were made for the entire amount in accordance with the related legislation.
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I ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES

Right and benefits provided to the personnel and laborers

In addition to their wages, according to the requirements and necessities of their duties, lunch, clothing, personnel transportation service,
holiday allowance, child and education support, food, fuel, marriage aid, family allowance were provided to our employees and life insurance
and optional group health insurance practices were continued.

Information on the donations made within the period

Donations were made and aids amounting to 346,531 TL were provided to several institutions and associations in the 01.01.2018 - 31.12.2018
period.

Conscious of its responsibility of improving society’s quality of life and supporting economic, environmental, cultural and social development,
based on the principle “human health is our first priority no matter where in the world”, our company continued the social responsibility
activities it performed with non-profit organizations in 2018, and for that purpose, support was provided to meet equipment needs of several
education and health institutions. In addition, as part of the projects to increase awareness of diseases and to emphasize healthy life style,
sponsorship of Sahika Erciimen, our young national athlete with several records in diving, was undertaken.

COMMITTEES AND WORKING PRINCIPLES

Supervisory Committee
Esref Glnes Ufuk Chairman (Independent Member of the Board of Directors)

Tuncay Cem Akkus Member (Independent Member of the Board of Directors)

The Supervisory Committee supervises the accounting system, disclosure of financial information, independent auditing and operation and
effectiveness of the company’s internal control system within the framework of the Capital Market Legislation. The Committee also evaluates
the issues identified in the framework of their evaluations and reports to the Board of Directors.

Corporate Governance Committee

Esref Glnes Ufuk Chairman (Independent Member of the Board of Directors)
Tuncay Cem Akkus Member (Independent Member of the Board of Directors)
Mesut Cetin Member (Executive Member of the Board of Directors)

The Corporate Governance Committee monitors the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Principles in accordance with the
Capital Market Legislation and the Capital Markets Board Corporate Governance Principles, and carries out improvement activities and presents
recommendations to the Board of Directors. The Corporate Governance Committee convenes when deemed necessary. Since “Nomination
Committee” or “Wage Committee” has not been established in our Company, the duties of these committees are also fulfilled by the Corporate
Governance Committee.

Early Risk Detection Committee
Esref Gunes Ufuk Chairman (Independent Member of the Board of Directors)

Tuncay Cem Akkus Member (Independent Member of the Board of Directors)
Mesut Cetin Member (Executive Member of the Board of Directors)

The Early Risk Detection Committee reports to the Board of Directors by conducting studies for early detection of risks that may endanger the company’s
existence, development and continuity, the implementation of the necessary measures for the identified risks and the management of the risk.

In 2018, the Supervisory Committee convened 5 times, the Early Risk Detection Committee convened 6 times, and the Corporate Governance
Committee convened 9 times and continued their activities within the framework of their obligations within the scope of CMB Legislation regulations.

The working principles of the committees are available at www.deva.com.tr.

No external consultancy services were received by the committees during the year.
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I ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES

ASSESSMENT OF RISKS AND ADMINISTRATIVE BODY

Early Risk Detection Committee was formed to detect the risks that may compromise the existence early, growth and continuation of our
company, to implement the necessary measures against the risks detected, and to perform studies to manage risks.

Financial Risks:

The operating capital need of our company is met by its shareholders’ equity, Short- and long-term bank loans in Turkish Lira and foreign
currencies, and debt instruments. The increases in exchange rates and interests as a result of possibility of negative market conditions increase
the financing costs of the company. Thus, due to economic and geopolitical developments both in the world and in our country, it is expected
that the fluctuations in exchange rates and interest rates will adversely affect our profitability. For the purpose of managing the interest risks the
company is exposed to, the ?ains and losses to occur in case of potential changes in interests are measured using sensitivity analyses on the basis
of credit portfolio and cash flow projections. In addition, efforts are made to keep the floating rate loans among the totarloans at a reasonable
rate. Derivative products may be used for protection against exchange risks that may result from both bank loans in foreign currencies and
purchases in foreign currencies.

Customer Receivable Risk:

The distribution and payment terms of trade receivables are of great importance in terms of risk management. The company tries to decrease
receivable risk by performing its transactions only with credible parties , and wherever possible, obtaining securities. While transactions are
carried out without any security with Group A customers, securities are requested from Group B and Group C customers such as bank letters of
guarantee or collateraé. To minimize the credit risks the company is exposed to, the financial statuses, credit limits and securities of customers
are monitored on a regular basis by the Credit Committee.

Strategic Risks:

The drug Pricing policy set/to be set by the Ministry of Health (increase in institution discount rates and/or reduction in reference prices, non-
revision of the reference exchange rate) maz have negative effects on the industry, and consequently on our company. We try to overcome

these negative effects by means of new markets, increasing product range, new sales policies, and effectively managed cost-limiting policies.

Operational Risks:

Operational risks are related with events affecting activities such as earthquakes, fire, and environmental accidents and smooth functioning of
business processes. Insurable risks are revised on an annual basis and excluded by being insured.

Early Risk Detection Committee
Esref GUnes Ufuk Chairman (Independent Member of the Board of Directors)

Tuncay Cem Akkus Member (Independent Member of the Board of Directors)
Mesut Cetin Member (Executive Member of the Board of Directors)

THE NATURE AND AMOUNT OF THE FINANCING SOURCES AND ISSUED CAPITAL MARKET INSTRUMENTS OF THE ORGANIZATION

The financing sources of our company consist of equity capital, the funds arising from its operations and short- and long-term debts from money
and capital markets.

In accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors of our Company dated 20.03.2018, an application has been made to the Capital Markets
Board for the issuance of a debt instrument to be sold to qualified investors without public offering with a maturity of up to 3 years up to a nominal
value of TL 150.000.000, and this investment demand of ours was approved by the Board of Directors’ decision, dated 16.04.2018 and numbered
18/492. The sale of the bonds with a nominal value of TL 80 million, 728-day maturity, quarterly coupon payments and variable rate bonds, and with a
nominal value of TL 65 million, 1,093-day maturity, monthly coupon payment and variable interest rate was completed on 04 May 2018. The interest
rate of the bonds is calculated by adding 325 basis points for 728-day maturity bonds and 350 basis points for bonds with 1,093-day maturity bonds as
additional return in the Annual Compound Interest Rate of the Indicative Government Domestic Debt Securities in the Market. As of the date of issue,
the simple interest rates of bonds were 17,064% and 17,3138% respectively; and the compound interest rates were 18,1884% and 18,4719%. The
fund obtained from the said issue has been used in the redemption and working capital of the TL 100.000.000 bond issued on 09.06.2016.
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I INVESTMENTS

In the 01.01.2018-31.12.2018 period, 69.760.130 was invested in DEVA Holding A.S. and Group Companies, for Management Building,
Plant, Machinery and Equipment, and Fixtures, 96.486.831 TL for R&D, Registration and Licenses, amounting to a total of 166.246.961 TL.

Our company, which holds a R&D center certificate, benefits from monetary support provided for Tibitak-approved R&D projects as well as
tax and social security institution discounts for all projects under the R&D center. Maximum 60% of the total amount of expenses that are
evaluated and approved by TUBITAK are paid as monetary support.

As of 31.12.2018, the company has 12 TUBITAK-approved ongoing projects and incentivized expenses of 57.335.798 TL with the support
of TUBITAK or within the scope of R&D center have been made in this period.

2.091.549 TL was spent within the scope of the incentive certificates no. 114407 and 112159 received for DEVA Kartepe Facilities;
11.871.539 TL was spent within the scope of the incentive no. 501317 received on 30.10.2018, and 7.147.465 TL was spent within the
scope of the incentive no. 136611 received on 17.04.2018 for Cerkezkoy facilities.

Incentivized expenses have various advantages in terms of exemption from VAT and customs duties, corporate tax, and other taxes.

46









DEVA Subsidiaries and Related Companies




I DEVA SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED COMPANIES

DEVA Subsidiaries

DEVATIS LTD
The company was established to sell and distribute medicinal products for human use and veterinary medicines in New Zealand and Australia.

DEVATIS Gmbh
The company was established to sell and distribute medicinal products for human use and veterinary medicines in Germany.

DEVATIS AG
The company was established to sell and distribute medicinal products for human use and veterinary medicines in Switzerland.

DEVATIS INC.
The company was established to sell and distribute medicinal products for human use and veterinary medicines in the USA.

INFORMATION ON THE SUBSIDIARIES AND RELATED COMPANIES
Subsidiaries

DEVA Holding holds 100% shares of the Devatis Ltd. it established in New Zealand to carry out sale and distribution of its own products in
Australia and New Zealand, Devatis GmbH it established in Germany, DEVA Health Care AG it established in Switzerland, and Devatis Inc.
it established in the USA.

Other Related Companies

Operating in field of production and marketing of medicinal products for human use, active pharmaceutical ingredients and veterinary
medicines and having its registered office in Luxembourg, Eastpharma S.a.rl. is the major shareholder of DEVA Holding with a share of
82.hZO%.fEastpharma S.a.r.l. is also the major shareholder of Saba llac San. ve Tic. A.S. operating in pharmaceutical industry in Turkey with
a share of 99.99%.

Information on the Trade Relations with Subsidiaries and Related Companies

Eastpharma S.a.r.l. transferred the license and sale rights 14 products to DEVA Holding for which it holds the license and sale rights through
the agreements signed with Roche, a company operating in the pharmaceutical sector. In this period, marketing of the said products was
continued and Eastpharma S.a.r.l. generates royalty income from DEVA Holding and Saba llac through the sales of the said products in
Turkey.

Saba products are manufactured and stored by DEVA Holding on a contract manufacturing basis. DEVA Holding performs R&D studies
on Vetas and Saba products and carries out pilot manufacturing in its R&D site. In addition, Vetas and Saba purchases financial and
administrative services from DEVA Holding. Marketing of Saba products outside Turkey is also performed by DEVA Holding.

Affiliation Report of Transactions made with the Holding Company and Subsidiaries

In accordance with Article 199 of Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102 effective as of 1 July 2012, the Board of Directors of DEVA Holding
is obliged to prepare a report regarding its relationship with the holding company and subsidiaries affiliated with holding company in the
previous operating year within the first three months of the operating year and include the conclusion of this report in the annual report.
The necessary explanations regarding the transactions made by DEVA Holding with the related parties are included in the footnote of
the financial table no. 6. Besides, the Board of Directors of DEVA Holding has prepared this Affiliation Report in accordance with related
provision of the said law.

In this report issued by the board of directors of our Company, it has been concluded that, in all transactions made by our company
with the holding company and subsidiaries of the holding company within 2018, a suitable counter performance was obtained in every
transaction and there is not action taken or failed to be taken, resulting in a harm to the company, and within this framework, there is not
any transaction or action, or non-action to require compensation according to circumstances and conditions known to us at the time of the
transaction.
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I CONCLUSION

Operating Period;
Operating Period has resulted in:

e profit after tax in the amount of 136.361.117 TL according to consolidated financial statements drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the communiqué Number II-14.1 of the Capital Markets Board,

e and profit after tax in the amount of TL 116.652.426 TL according to the individual financial statements of DEVA Holding, drawn up within
the framework of the relevant provisions of Tax Procedure Law Number 213 and Turkish Commercial Code.

By evaluating the conditions set forth in the Company’s profit distribution policy, taking into consideration the long-term strategies, investment,
cash flow and financing policies of the company and the long-term interests of our shareholders, our company and our employees, in line
with the current economic conjuncture, and in order to avoid the need for new financing and to strengthen the financial structure, we hereby
submit to the approval of the General Assembly our proposal of not distributing the distributable profit of 2018 accounting period but instead,
transferring to extraordinary reserves (past year's profits account) the remaining amount after general legal reserve has been reserved.

DEVA HOLDING A.S.
Yoénetim Kurulu
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I STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGARDING ACCEPTANCE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
ANNUAL REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 9 OF THE SECTION TWO OF “THE COMMUNIQUE ON PRINCIPLES OF FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN CAPITAL MARKET” OF CAPITAL MARKETS BOARD

RESOLUTION DATE : 08.03.2019
RESOLUTION NO 1 2019/12

We hereby state that:

In accordance with “Communiqué on Principles in Relation to Financial Reporting in Capital Market (l1-14.1)" (the Communiqué) of the Capital
Markets Board (“CMB") for the accounting period of 01.01.2018 - 31.12.2018, prepared by our Company and independently audited by
Guney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Musavirlik A.S., and based on the CMB regulations, the consolidated financial statements
prepared in line with the formats specified by Turkish Accounting Standards / Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TAS/TFRS"”) and the annual
report prepared in line with the Turkish Code of Commerce and CMB Communiqué;

a) have been reviewed by us,

b) are within the framework of information we have in our field of duty and responsibility in our company, and do not contain explanations
contrary to facts on significant subjects or do not contain any deficiency which may result in the explanation being misleading as of the date on
which it is made,

¢) and are within the framework of information we have in field of duty and responsibility in our company, consolidated financial statements
prepared according to financial reporting standards in force reflect the real situation relating to assets, liabilities, financial position and profit and
loss of our company fairly and the annual report reflects the development and performance of the business, financial position of our Company
fairly, including the significant risks and uncertainties faced by our company.

Best Regards,

I L] v
Esref Glines UFUK Mesut CETIN Riza YILDIZ
Supervisory Committee Board of Directors Financial Reporting and
Chairman Vice-Chairman/CFO Accounting Director
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I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

The “Profit Distribution Policy” of our company is determined in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code, Capital Markets Legislation,
Tax Legislation and other relevant legislation and in line with the proposal of the Board of Directors and the resolution of the General
Assembly in accordance with the provisions of the articles of association.

The Company intends to distribute 5% of the issued capital as cash and / or share. However, this amount shall not exceed 30% of the
net distributable profit for the period. In the implementation of this policy, the financial position of the Company, fund requirement due
to mid- and long-term growth and investment strategies, conditions of the sector, the country and global economic conjunctures, capital
requirements of its subsidiaries and affiliates, investment and financing policies, profitability and cash position are taken into consideration.

The Board of Directors decides on dividend distribution for each accounting period, the proposal for distribution of the profit or the proposal
for not distributing of the profit together with its rationale is disclosed to the public in accordance with the legislation and announced on
the website of the Company. The General Assembly may accept or reject the proposal.

In the profit distribution, each of our stakeholders has the right to receive dividends in proportion to its share. Dividends are distributed
equally to all existing shares as of the date of distribution, regardless of their date of issue and acquisition.

Dividend distribution commences on the date to be determined by the Board of Directors, provided that it is authorized by the General
Assembly or the General Assembly by the end of the year in which the General Assembly meeting is held at the latest.

Since the Company’s articles of association do not contain any provision for advance dividend distribution, no advance dividend is distributed.
The Company may consider paying dividends in equal installments or in different installments in accordance with applicable legislation.

According to our consolidated financial statements, a post-tax profit of 92.542.675 TL has been earned, and, according to the solo financial
statements developed in line with the relevant provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code and the Tax Procedures Law no. 213, a profit
of 101,417,644.96 TL has been earned in the 2017 operating period, and by evaluating the conditions set forth in the Company’s profit
distribution policy, it was decided not to distribute the distributable profit of the fiscal year of 2017, and to transfer the remaining amount
to the extraordinary reserves (retained earnings account) after the primary legal reserves were set aside in order to support our growing
balance sheet in 2017 accounting period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors Date of Initiation Tasks in the Company

Philipp Haas Chairman of the Board of Directors 14.07.2006
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors 14.03.2008

Esref Glnes Ufuk Independent Member of the Board of Directors | 27.09.2018 _
Tuncay Cem Akkus Independent Member of the Board of Directors | 08.04.2015 _
Aysecik Haas Non-Executive Member of the Board of Directors | 22.05.2013 _
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I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Statement of Independence by the Members of the Board of Directors
Tuncay Cem Akkus

STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENCE
DEVA Holding A.S. To the Corporate Governance Committee,

| have been nominated in the General Meeting of your company in the capacity of “Independent Member” of the Board of Directors within
the framework of the criteria set in the Corporate Governance Communiqué of the Capital Markets Board. Within this scope, | hereby
declare that

a) No employment, capital or trade relation was established of a significant nature either directly or indirectly, within the past five years
between myself, my spouse and blood relatives up to second degree, or relatives by marriage and DEVA Holding, A.S., any of the related
parties of DEVA Holding A.S., or legal persons with which shareholders holding a share of 5% or more in the capital of DEVA Holding, A.S.
have relationship

b) |have not worked nor performed duty as the member of the board of directors in companies carrying on the operation and organization
of the company wholly or partially within the framework of agreements made, mainly in companies carrying out auditing, rating and
consultancy of DEVA Holding, A.S. within the past five years,

¢) | have the sufficient professional education, knowledge and experience to perform duly the tasks | will assume as an independent
member of the board of directors,

d) I'will not work full-time at public institutions and establishments after being elected as a member, except for academic membership of
university in accordance with the legislation.

e) |am resident of Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law dated 31.12.1960 no. 193.

f) 1have the strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience to be able to make positive contributions to the operations
of DEVA Holding A.S., to protect my independence in conflicts of interest between shareholders and to take decision freely taking into
consideration benefit rights,

g) | will allocate sufficient time to follow-up the functioning of the activities of DEVA Holding A.S. and to fully meet the requirements of
my duties,

h) | have not served as a member of the Board of Directors for more than 6 years within the last 10 years,

i) 1 do not serve as an independent member of the Board of Directors of more than three companies the management control of which is
held by the shareholders who have the control or management control of the Company, or of more than a total of five companies that are
publicly traded.

) I'have not been registered and announced on behalf of the legal person elected as a member of the Board of Directors

Date: 26.04.2016
Tuncay Cem Akkus

Signature:
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I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Statement of Independence by the Members of the Board of Directors
Esref Glines Ufuk

STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENCE
DEVA Holding A.S. To the Corporate Governance Committee,

| have been nominated in the General Meeting of your company in the capacity of “Independent Member” of the Board of Directors within
the framework of the criteria set in the Corporate Governance Communiqué of the Capital Markets Board. Within this scope, | hereby
declare that

a) No employment, capital or trade relation was established of a significant nature either directly or indirectly, within the past five years
between myself, my spouse and blood relatives up to second degree, or relatives by marriage and DEVA Holding, A.S., any of the related
parties of DEVA Holding A.S., or legal persons with which shareholders holding a share of 5% or more in the capital of DEVA Holding, A.S.
have relationship

b) Ihave not worked nor performed duty as the member of the board of directors in companies carrying on the operation and organization
of the company wholly or partially within the framework of agreements made, mainly in companies carrying out auditing, rating and
consultancy of DEVA Holding, A.S. within the past five years,

¢) | have the sufficient professional education, knowledge and experience to perform duly the tasks | will assume as an independent
member of the board of directors,

d) I will not work full-time at public institutions and establishments after being elected as a member, except for academic membership of
university in accordance with the legislation.

e) |am resident of Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law dated 31.12.1960 no. 193.

f) 1 have the strong ethical standards, professional reputation and experience to be able to make positive contributions to the operations
of DEVA Holding A.S., to protect my independence in conflicts of interest between shareholders and to take decision freely taking into
consideration benefit rights,

g) | will allocate sufficient time to follow-up the functioning of the activities of DEVA Holding A.S. and to fully meet the requirements of
my duties,

h) | have not served as a member of the Board of Directors for more than 6 years within the last 10 years,

i) 1 do not serve as an independent member of the Board of Directors of more than three companies the management control of which is
held by the shareholders who have the control or management control of the Company, or of more than a total of five companies that are
publicly traded.

i) I'have not been registered and announced on behalf of the legal person elected as a member of the Board of Directors

Date: 26.09.2018
Giines Ufuk

Signature:
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I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Duties and Authorities of the Members of the Board of Directors

The chairman and members of the Board of Directors possess the duties and authorities specified in the relevant articles of the Turkish Code of
Commerce and the Company’s Articles of Association

Board of Directors Meetings During The Period

Thirty-seven board meetings were held during the period. The meetings were held with the participation of all members and all decisions were
taken unanimously.

Duties of the Members of the Board of Directors Outside the Company

Board of Directors Task Duties Outside the Company

- Eastpharma Ltd./Saba ilac Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S./ New Life Yasam

Sigorta A.S/ Eastpharma ilac Uretim Pazarlama San. ve Tic. A.S

(Chairman of the Board of Directors)

-Eastpharma Sarl/ Lypanosys Pte Limited (Member of the Board of
Philipp Haas Chairman of the Board of Directors Directors)

- Devatis Ltd/Devatis Gmbh/Devatis A.G ve Devatis Inc.(Director)

- Pharmaceutical Industry Association of Turkey (Vice Chairman of

the Board of Directors)

- EastPharma Ltd (Member of the Board of Directors)
Mesut Cetin Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors | - Saba ilac Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. (Member of the Board of Directors -CFO)

Esref Glnes Ufuk Inldependent MISBEr @F S s @ K2C Danismanlik (Founding Member)

Directors
Tuncay Cem Akkus In.dependent MEMBERORINEBOaIA ol Millenicom (Engineering-Management)

Directors

Non-Executive Member of the Board of | N.A.R.G Holding A.S/ New Life Yasam Sigorta A.S (Member of the
Aysecik Haas

Directors Board of Directors)

Financial Rights Provided to the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Managers

The total amount of financial rights such as attendance fee, remuneration, premium, bonus, severance pay etc. provided to Members of the
Board of Directors and Senior Executives within the period is as follows: 480.987 TL for the Members of the Board of Directors and 31.342.525
TL for Senior Executives, and the total amount of rights such as fuel, telephone, etc. is 50.449 TL for the Members of the Board of Directors and
65.844 TL for Senior Executives, amounting to 31.939.805 TL.
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I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

DEVA Holding (“DEVA" or “the Company”), with the awareness of the responsibilities it carries towards its stakeholders, has adopted the
notions of “equality”, “transparency”, “accountability” and “responsibility”, which form the basis of its corporate management during
the activities, and makes maximal effort and shows utmost vigilance to comply with Capital Market Law (CML) and secondary rules and
decisions of the Capital Market Board (CMB).

DEVA Holding believes in the importance of full compliance with Corporate Governance Principles. In the operating period that ended on
December 31, 2018, the Company has adopted and put into practice the corporate governance principles which were set forth in the annex
to the Corporate Governance Communiqué and are required by the relevant regulations. Maximal effort is also being made to comply with
the voluntary principles that are not required by the relevant regulations, and there has been no conflicts of interest up until now between
the stakeholders regarding those principles that have not been fully complied for the time being.

Statements regarding compliance and non-compliance with the corporate governance principles included in the annex to the Corporate
Governance Communiqué in the operating period that ended on December 31, 2018 are provided in the Corporate Governance Compliance
Report ("URF"”) and Corporate Governance Information Form (“KYBF") and in other relevant parts of the report.

In the future, efforts will continue to be made for better operating the mechanisms within the framework of the said principles of corporate
governance practices of the partnership, and to improve our corporate governance practices, including the voluntary principles that are
mandatory and a limited number of those that could not be implemented

Should any changes occur in URF or KYBF during the period, a special case announcement will be made and such changes will also be
included in the interim activity reports.
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I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

1.1. FACILITATION OF THE USE OF SHAREHOLDER'’S RIGHTS
1.1.2 — Up-to-date information and statements which can affect the use of sharehold- X
er's rights are made available to investors on the corporate website of the partnership.

1.2. RIGHT TO RECEIVE AND REVIEW INFORMATION

1.2.1 - Company executives have avoided any actions that could make the auditing X
process more difficult.

1.3. GENERAL ASSEMBLY

1.3.2 — The Company has ensured that the agenda of the General Assembly was stat- X
ed clearly and each proposal was given under an individual heading.

1.3.7 = The persons who have access to the partnership information in a privileged
way have informed the Board of Directors about their operations within the scope of
operations of the partnership on their part to ensure that these were added to the
agenda of the General Assembly.

1.3.8 — Regarding the topics that were of particular interest in the agenda, the board X
members, other related persons, authorized persons and auditors responsible for the
preparation of financial statements were present at the General Assembly.

1.3.10 — The amounts of all donations and grants and the persons who benefited from
them were included in a separate article on the agenda of the General Assembly.

1.3.11 — The General Assembly meeting was held open to the public, including stake-
holders and the media without the right to speak.

1.4. RIGHT TO VOTE

1.4.1 - There are no restrictions or practices that make it difficult for shareholders to X
exercise their rights to vote.

1.4.2 - The Company has no privileged voting rights.

1.4.3 - The Company has not exercised its voting rights in the General Assembly of
any partnership with which it has a mutual shareholding relationship which results in
dominance in the relationship.

1.5. MINORITY RIGHTS

1.5.1 — The Company paid utmost attention to ensure that minority rights were X
exercised.

1.5.2 —Minority rights are also granted to those who have less than one-twentieth of
the share capital and the scope of minority rights has been revised and extended in the
articles of association.
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Compliance state

Corporate Governance Compliance Report Partially mm

Comment

The donations and grants made
during the period were catego-
rized in the General Assembly and
offered as information to the share-
holders as they are very diverse in
terms of institution and amount.

There has been no such demands
in 2018.

As per the Articles of Association,
the Company has 10 times the
voting right for group C shares
have as compared with group A
and group B privileged shares.

Our Company has no partner-
ships in which it is in a mutual
shareholding relationship.

The rate applicable to the minori-
ty rights in the capital market law
is applied.



I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Compliance state

Comment
1.6 RIGHT TO DIVIDEND
1.6.1 — The dividend distribution policy approved by the General Assembly is publicly X
disclosed on the corporate website of the Company.
1.6.2 — The profit distribution policy should include minimum information that would X
enable shareholders to learn the principles and procedures for distribution of profits to
be obtained in the future periods of the partnership.
1.6.3 — The reasons for not distributing profits and the use of undistributed profits X
were specified in the related agenda item.
1.6.4 — The Board of Directors has reviewed whether a balance is ensured between the X
interests of the shareholders and the interests of partnership in the dividend distribu-
tion policy.
1.7. TRANSFER OF SHARES
1.7.1 = There are no restrictions to make transfer of shares difficult. X
2.1. CORPORATE WEBSITE
2.1.1 = The corporate website of the company includes all the elements in the principle X
of corporate method 2.1.1.
2.1.2 = The shareholding structure (the names, privileges, share number and rate of X
non-actual shareholders owning more than 5% of the issued capital) is updated on the
corporate website at least every 6 months.
2.1.4 — The information on the corporate website of the company was also prepared X The content of the English web-
in foreign languages selectable on need basis with the exactly same content as Turkish. site is not exactly the same as

the Turkish website, and contains
more general information.

2.2. ANNUAL REPORT

2.2.1 — The Board of Directors ensures that the annual report fully and accurately X
reflects the company’s operations.

2.2.2 — The annual report includes all the elements in the principle 2.2.2.. X

3.1. COMPANY POLICY FOR STAKEHOLDERS

3.1.1 — Stakeholders’ rights are protected in accordance with relevant regulations, X
contracts and rules of good will.

3.1.3 — Policies and procedures related to the rights of stakeholders are published on X The policies foreseen to be devel-

the company’s corporate website. oped in the Corporate Govern-
ance Principles are published on
the website.

3.1.4 — Stakeholders have established the required mechanisms to report transactions X
which breach relevant legislations and which are not ethically acceptable.

3.1.5-The company addresses conflicts of interest among stakeholders in a balanced X
manner.
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3.2. SUPPORTING THE PARTICIPATION OF THE STAKEHOLDERS IN THE CORPO-
RATION’S MANAGEMENT

3.2.1-The Articles of Association, or the internal regulations (terms of reference/manu-
als), regulate the participation of employees in management.

3.2.2 - Surveys/other research techniques, consultation, interviews, observation
method etc. were conducted to obtain opinions from stakeholders on decisions that
significantly affect them

3.3. COMPANY'’S HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY

3.3.1- The company has adopted an employment policy ensuring equal opportunities,
and a succession plan for all key managerial positions.

3.3.2-Recruitment criteria are documented in written.
3.3.3 - The company has a policy on human resources development, and organizes
trainings for employees.

3.3.4-Meetings have been organized to inform employees on the financial status of
the company, remuneration, career planning, education and health.

3.3.5 - Employees, or their representatives, were notified of decisions impacting them.
The opinion of the related trade unions was also taken.

3.3.6 - Job descriptions and performance criteria have been prepared in detail for
all employees, announced to them and taken into account to determine employee
remuneration.

3.3.7 — Measures, e.g. procedures, trainings, raising awareness, goals, monitoring,
complaint mechanisms, have been taken to prevent discrimination, and to protect
employees against any physical, mental, and emotional mistreatment.

3.3.8 - The company supports the recognition of the freedom to establish association
and the right of collective bargaining efficiently.

3.3.9 - A safe working environment for employees is maintained.

3.4. RELATIONS WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

3.4.1-The company measured its customer satisfaction, and operated to ensure full
customer satisfaction.
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Compliance state

Comment

Although there is no provision
in the articles of association,
employees participate in the
management by taking part in
the boards.

Asking the opinions of the stake-
holders in important decisions
was adopted as principle and
the demands and suggestions of
the stakeholders were taken into
consideration.

Although our company does not
have a written employment pol-
icy, there are systems to ensure
business continuity in terms of
organizational structure.

Since no collective bargaining
agreement was made with
employees, no representative was
appointed, and notifications were
made directly to employees.

Supported within the legal
framework.



3.4.2 — Customers are notified in case of any delays in processing their requests
regarding the goods and services they purchased.

3.4.3 - The company adheres to the quality standards with respect to its products and
services.

3.4.4 - The company has in place controls to protect the confidentiality of sensitive
information considered business secrets of its customers and suppliers.

3.5. ETHICAL RULES AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

3.5.1-The Board of Directors has adopted a code of ethics and disclosed on the corpo-
rate website.

3.5.2-The partnership is mindful of social responsibility and has adopted measures to
prevent corruption and bribery.

4.1. ROLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
4.1.1 - The board of directors ensures strategy and risks do not threaten the long-term
interests of the company, and that effective risk management is in place.

4.1.2 - The agenda and minutes of meetings indicate that the board of directors dis-
cussed and approved strategy, identified the required resources, and the performance
of the management was monitored.

4.2. PRINCIPLES OF ACTIVITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4.2.1-The board of directors documented its meetings and reported its activities to the
shareholders.

4.2.2-Duties and authorities of the members of the board of directors are disclosed in
the annual report.

4.2.3-The board of directors has established an internal control framework adequate
for the size and complexity of the company.

4.2.4- Information on the functioning and effectiveness of the internal control system
is provided in the annual report.

4.2.5 - The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (director-general) are
separated and defined.

4.2.7 - The board of directors ensures that the investor relations department and the
corporate governance committee work effectively and has worked in close cooperation
with the investor relations department and the corporate governance committee in
settling disputes with shareholders and in communicating with them.
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X

Compliance state

e ooty [ o | ecemon [ wn |
X

Comment

Ethical rules of conduct are spec-
ified in internal regulations and
are not published on the website.

It is stated in the annual report,
that the Turkish Commercial
Code was complied with regard-
ing the duties and authorities

of the members of the board

of directors and that a counting
method was not adopted.

The Chairman of the Board of
Directors also serves as the CEO
because he is the Chairman of
the Board of Directors of the
main shareholder Eastpharma
Ltd and because of his knowl-
edge of the sector from his prior
experience.



I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

4.2.8 - The company has subscribed to a Directors and officers’ liability insurance
covering more than 25% of the capital for any damage that may be caused due to the
faults of the board of directors during the charge of their duties..

4.3. STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

4.3.9-The board of directors has set a minimal target of 25% for female directors and
developed a policy to attain this target. The board annually evaluates its composition
and the process of identifying candidates is performed compliant with the policy.

4.3.10-At least one member of the audit committee has 5 years of experience in audit/
accounting and finance.

4.4. BOARD MEETING PROCEDURES

4.4.1- All members of the board of directors attended the majority of the board meet-
ings in person.

4.4.2-The board of directors has formally approved a minimum time by which infor-
mation and documents relevant to the agenda items should be supplied to all board
members

4.4.3 - The opinions of board members that could not attend the meeting, but did
submit their opinion in written format, were presented to other members.

4.4.4-Each member of the board has one vote.

4.4.5-How board of directors meetings will be held was documented in internal
regulations.

4.4.6-Board of directors meeting minutes demonstrate that all items on the agenda
were discussed, and board resolutions are prepared so that dissenting opinions are also
included.
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Compliance state
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X

X
X
X

X

X
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X

X

Comment

Our director’s liability insurance
has been fulfilled by our main
shareholder.

Although a target rate of at least
25% and target time regarding
the female member percentage
in the Board of Directors was not
set by our Company, there is one
female member in our board of
directors.

Although there is no minimum
period based on a document-
ed rule, it was ensured that

all members of the Board of
Directors were informed before
the meeting.

There was no member of the
Board of Directors stating opinion
in this manner.

Although the Board of Directors
meetings are held under certain
rules, these rules are not docu-
mented in writing.
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4.4.7-There are limits to which the members of the board of directors may have
external duties. Shareholders are informed of board members’ external duties at
the General Meeting.

4.5. COMMITTEES FORMED WITHIN THE STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

4.5.5-Each member of the board of directors serve in only one committee.

4.5.6 - Committees have invited persons to the meetings as deemed necessary
and obtained their views.

4.5.7-Information on the independence of the person/institution the committee
received consultancy services is included in the annual report.

4.5.8-Reports of the outcomes of committee meetings were kept and reported
to board members.

4.6. FINANCIAL RIGHTS PROVIDED FOR MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

4.6.1-The board of directors has conducted a board of directors performance
evaluation to review whether it has discharged all its responsibilities effectively.

4.6.4 - Corporation shall not loan money, make credit available, enlarge the term
of the loan money or credit, improve conditions, make credit available via a third
party as a personal credit or grant securities such as surety to any of its members
of the board of directors or executives

4.6.5 - Remunerations provided for members of the board of directors and exec-
utives were disclosed in the annual report on individual basis.
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Compliance state

X

X
X
X
X
X
X

Comment

The members of the Board of
Directors outside the company
are not restricted with respect
to external commitments. On
the other hand, the duties taken
by the members outside the
company are presented to the
shareholders with the annual
report.

Since the board of directors

of our company consists of 5
people, the same members take
charge in different committees.

No consultancy services were
received for committees.

Board of directors performance
evaluation was not carried out.

In parallel with the general
practice, wages are disclosed

on a individual basis and are
given in the breakdown of the
Board of Directors and the Senior
Executives.
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1. SHAREHOLDERS

1.1. Facilitating the Exercise of Shareholder Rights

The number of investor conferences and meetings held by the company over one 10
year

1.2. Right to Obtain and Review Information

Number of private auditor requests
Number of special auditor requests accepted at the general assembly meeting

1.3. General Assembly

0
0

https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/668228

The link to the PDP announcement that announced the information requested by
Principle 1.3.1. (a-d)

Whether the materials concerning the general assembly meeting were presented
in English simultaneously with Turkish Not presented.
The links to the PDP announcements associated with the transactions that are
not approved by the majority of independent directors or by unanimous votes of No situation requiring explanation occurred.
present board members in the context of Principle 1.3.9

The links to the PDP announcements associated with related party transactions in

the context of Article 9 of the Communique on Corporate Governance (lI-17.1) No situation requiring explanation occurred.

The links to the PDP announcements associated with common and continuous
transactions in the context of Article 10 of the Communique on Corporate No situation requiring explanation occurred.
Governance (II-17.1)

The name of the section on the corporate website that demonstrates the dona-

tion policy of the company Investor Relations-Policies

The link to the PDP announcement with minute of the general assembly meeting

where the donation policy has been approved https:/Awww.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/220035

The number of the provisions of the articles of association that discuss the partic-

ipation of stakeholders to the general assembly There is no such provision in the articles of association.

Information regarding General Shareholders’ Meeting,

1.4. Voting Rights

Whether there are privileges in voting rights Yes

In case that there are voting privileges, the owner and percentage of the voting Group A and B privileged shares have a voting right ten times the voting
majority of shares. right of Group C shares in terms of right of voting.

The percentage of ownership of the largest shareholder 82.2%

1.5. Minority Rights

Whether the scope of minority rights enlarged (in terms of content or the ratio)

in the articles of the association No

If yes, please specify the relevant provision of the articles of association.

6
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1.6. Dividend Right

I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The name of the section on the corporate website that describes the dividend distribution policy

Minutes of the relevant agenda item in case the board of directors proposed to the general assembly not to
distribute dividends, the reason for such proposal and information as to use of the dividend.

The link to the PDP announcement containing general assembly minutes in case the board of directors pro-
posed to the general assembly not to distribute dividends

The
number of
information
requests
received
by the
company
regarding
the clarifica-
tion of the
agenda of
the General
Assembly

General
Assembly
Date

05/04/2018

Shareholder
participation
rate to the
General As-
sembly

Percentage
of shares
directly rep-
resented

86.35% 1.27%

Percentage
of shares
represented

by proxy

85.08%

The name of
the section of
the corporate
website that
contains
the General
Assembly
minutes, and
also indicates
votes for or
against for
each agenda
item

Investor Rela-

tions -Gener-

al Assembly
-2017
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The name of
the section of
the corporate
website that
contains all
questions
asked in
the general
assembly and
all responses
to them

Investor Rela-
tions -General
Assembly
-2017

Investor Relations-Profit Distribution Policy

As proposed by the Board of Directors decision
dated 09.03.2018 and numbered 2018/12; and
according to our consolidated financial statements
for the accounting period 01.01.2017 - 31.12.2017
prepared by our Company in line with TCC and
CMB provisions and in accordance with Turkish
Accounting/Financial Reporting Standards and
audited by Guiney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest
Muhasebeci Mali Musavirlik A.S., a post-tax profit of
92.542.675 TL has been earned, and, according to
the solo financial statements developed in line with
the relevant provisions of the Turkish Commercial
Code and the Tax Procedures Law no. 213, a profit
of 101,417,644.96 TL has been earned, and by
evaluating the conditions set forth in the Compa-
ny’s profit distribution policy, it was decided not to
distribute the distributable profit of the fiscal year of
2017, and to transfer the remaining amount to the
extraordinary reserves (retained earnings account)
after the primary legal reserves were set aside in
order to support our growing balance sheet in
2017 accounting period, with 170.222.009.225295
positive votes versus 2.490.376,92 negative votes
unanimously/by large majority.

https:/iwww.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/673827

The num-
ber of the
relevant item
or paragraph
of General As-
sembly minutes
in relation to
related parties

The number of
persons who
have access to
partnership
information in a
privileged way
(insider learners
list)

The link to
the related
general
assembly
notification
on PDP

https://
www.kap.
org.tr/tr/
Bildirim/
668228




I CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

2. DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

2.1. Corporate Website

The names of the sections of the corporate website providing the information
requested by the corporate governance principle 2.1.1.

Investor Relations

The sections of the corporate website providing the list of natural person share-

holders who directly or indirectly own more than 5% of the shares. Investor Relations-Shareholder Structure

Languages for which the website is available Turkish-English

2.2. Annual Report

The page numbers or name of the sections in the annual report that
demonstrate the information requested by corporate governance princi-
ple 2.2.2.

a) The page numbers or name of the sections that demonstrate the duties of the Corporate Governance Practices—-Statements of Independence of Inde-
members of the board of directors and executives conducted out of the company = pendent Members of the Board of Directors-Duties of the Members of the
and declarations on independence of board members Board of Directors Outside the Company

b) The page numbers or name of the sections that demonstrate the information . ! o
on committees formed within the board structure Administrative Activities
) The page numbers or name of the sections that demonstrate the information
on the number of board meetings in a year and the attendance of the members
to these meetings

Corporate Governance Practices—-Board of Directors Meetings held within
the period

d) The page numbers or name of the sections that demonstrate the information
on amendments in the legislation which may significantly affect the activities of
the corporation

Administrative Activities-Information on Legislative Changes That Can
Significantly Affect Company Activities within the Period

e) The page numbers or name of the sections that demonstrate the information

on significant lawsuits filed against the corporation and the possible results Administrative Activities-Cases-Consolidated Financial Statements-Litiga-

tion Provisions

thereof

f) The page numbers or name of the sections that demonstrate the information Administrative Activities-Conflicts of Interest Between the Institutions that
on the conflicts of interest of the corporation among the institutions that it the Company Receives Services on Matters such as Investment Consultan-
purchases services on matters such as investment consulting and rating and the cy and Rating and Information about the Measures Taken by the Company
measures taken in order to avoid from these conflicts of interest to Prevent these Conflicts of Interest

g) The page numbers or name of the sections that demonstrate the information
on the cross ownership subsidiaries that the direct contribution to the capital There is no cross shareholding relationship in our Company’s capital.
exceeds 5%

h) The page numbers or name of the sections that demonstrate the information
on social rights and professional training of the employees and activities of cor-
porate social responsibility in respect of the corporate activities that arises social
and environmental results

Human Resources and Development-Administrative Activities-Rights and
Interests Provided to the Personnel and Employees-Information on dona-
tions made in the period

3. STAKEHOLDERS

3.1. Corporation’s Policy on Stakeholders

The name of the section on the corporate website that demonstrates the em-

. Investor Relations-Policies-Compensation Poli
ployee remedy or severance policy estor Relations-Policies-Compensation Policy
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The number of definitive judicial decisions against the company due to 53

violation of employee rights

Position of the person responsible for the alert mechanism Vice Chairman of the Board-CFO
Contact details of the company alert mechanism mcetin@deva.com.tr

3.2. Supporting the Participation of the Stakeholders in the Corpora-
tion’s Management

Name of the section on the corporate website that demonstrates the internal
regulation addressing the participation of employees on management bodies

Corporate bodies where employees are represented Occupational Health and Safety Board, Discipline Committee

3.3. Company'’s Human Resources Policy

The role of the board of directors in developing a succession plan for the key
management positions

The name of the section on the corporate website that demonstrates the
human resource policy covering equal opportunities and hiring principles, DEVA Human Resources
and a summary of relevant parts of the policy.

Whether there is an employee stock ownership program There is no employee stock ownership program

Our company attaches great importance to creating a working environment which is free from any

The name of the section on the corporate website that demonstrates the verbal and physical harassment against race, ethnicity, religion, physical or sexual characteristics, sexual
human resource policy covering the measures to prevent discrimination and | orientation or any other factor prohibited by law. Any behavior of abusive nature that may arise in terms
mistreatments, and also a summary of relevant parts of the policy. of age, language, race, health, gender and marital status, behaviors arising from sexual harassment acts

of verbal, physical or behavioral nature are evaluated by the Disciplinary Committee.

The number of definitive judicial decisions against the company in relation to
occupational accident liabilities

3.5. Ethical Rules and Social Responsibility

The name of the section on the corporate website that demonstrates the code of In-house regulation is in place.

ethics
We evaluate and control the environmental impacts that occur as a result of our activities and use
appropriate technologies to minimize these effects to support the “Environmentalism” approach, which is
The name of the section on the company website that demonstrates the among the principles of our company, and to leave a more livable world to future generations. We ensure
corporate social responsibility report. If a social responsibility report does not that waste is minimized for a sustainable environment, support recycling and use energy and natural
exist, measures taken on environmental, social and corporate governance resources efficiently. We periodically organize various activities to raise awareness among our stakeholders
issues. about the environment. In addition, ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certificate has been

obtained in order to be an exemplary company in environmentalism and to show the value we give to the
environment.

Our company meticulously avoids unethical behaviors such as bribery, corruption and misconduct.
The “Ethical Principles” procedure of our company was shared with all of our employees via
intranet and mechanisms were established to ensure compliance with related issues.

Any measures taken to fight against any kind of corruption including embez-
zlement and bribery

BOARD OF DIRECTORS-I

4.2. Operating Principles of the Board of Directors

Date of the last board evaluation conducted -

Whether independent experts were utilized in the performance evaluation of

the board of directors No
Whether all board members released from their duties Yes
Philipp Daniel Haas-CEO, Mesut Cetin-CFO.
Name(s) of the board member(s) with specific delegated duties and They are authorized to represent and bind the company with their joint signature in the
authorities, and descriptions of such duties broadest sense in all aspects.
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Number of reports presented by internal auditors to the audit committee or 6
any relevant committee to the board

The name of the section or page number of the annual report that provides

the summary of the review of the effectiveness of internal controls Administrative Activities-Risks and Evaluation of the Governing Body

Name of the chairman of the executive board Philipp Daniel Haas

Name of the chief executive officer/director-general Philipp Daniel Haas

The link to the relevant PDP announcement providing the rationale that the
chairman of the executive board and chief executive officer/director-general https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/541423
are the same person

Link to the PDP notification stating that any damage that may be caused by
the members of the board of directors during the discharge of their duties is -
insured for an amount exceeding 25% of the company’s capital

The name of the section on the corporate website that demonstrates current
diversity policy targeting women directors

The number and ratio of female directors 1 person 20%

The name of

the section of

Whether the | the corporate

Whether The F_irst . o Independent websit.e that
Whether Independent Election Link to PDP Notification That Member contains all
Executive Date To Includes The Independency Considered questions

Whether She/
he is a Member
Who Lost Inde-

pendence

Name, Surname of the Mem-

ber of the Board of Directors Or Not Member Or Board of Declaration By The asked in

Rt Directors Nomination the general

Committee assembly and
all responses

to them

PHILIPP Not

DANIEL Executi Independ 14/07/2006 N idered N Y
HAAS xecutive ndependent ot considere: o es
MESUT Not

CETIN Executive Independent 14/03/2008 Not considered No Yes
TUNCAY

CEM Non-exec- ' |ngependent | 27/09/2018 Considered No Yes
AKKUS utive P
TUNCAY

CEM Non-exec- Independent https://www.kap.org.tr/tr/ '

AKKUS utive 08/04/2015 Bildirim/667557 Considered No No
AYSECIK Not

HAAS Non-exec- Independent 22/05/2013 Not considered No Yes

utive
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4.4. Meeting Procedures of the Board of Directors

Number of board or directors meetings in person in the reporting period 37

Average attendance rate to the board of directors meetings 100%

Whether an electronic portal is used to support to facilitate the work of the
board of directors

Number of days ahead of the board of directors meeting to provide informa-
tion to directors, as per the board charter

The name of the section on the corporate website that provides information
about the in-house procedures that define how board of directors meetings None
are to be held

The upper limit defined in the policy restricting the duties to be held by the
members out of the Company

4.5. Committees Formed within the Board of Directors

Page number or the name of the relevant section of the annual report pro- I . e ! : .
viding information about the board of directors committees Administrative Activities-Committees and Working Principles
Link to the PDP announcement listing the working principles of the commit-

tee https:/Awww.kap.org.tr/tr/Bildirim/688585

Names Of The Board of Directors Com- Name Of Committees Defined As Name-Surname of Whether Committee Whether Board Member
mittees “Other” In The First Column Committee Members Chair Or Not Or Not

Audit Committee ESREF GUNES Board member

Audit Committee TUNCAY CEM AKKUS No Board member
Corporate Governance Committee ESREF GUNES UFUK Yes Board member
Corporate Governance Committee TUNCAY CEM AKKUS No Board member
Corporate Governance Committee MESUT CETIN No Board member
Early Risk Detection Committee ESREF GUNES UFUK Yes Board member
Early Risk Detection Committee TUNCAY CEM AKKUS No Board member
Early Risk Detection Committee MESUT CETIN No Board member
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS-III

4.5. Committees Formed within the Board of Directors-I|

Specify where information on the activities of the audit committee are pre-
sentec)i in your annual report or corporate website (page number or section Administrative Activities-Committees and Working Principles
name

Specify where information on the activities of the corporate governance
committee are presented in your annual report or corporate website (page Administrative Activities-Committees and Working Principles
number or section name)

Specify where information on the activities of the nomination committee
are presented in your annual report or corporate website (page number or -
section name)

Specify where information on the activities of the early risk detection
committee are presented in your annual report or corporate website (page Administrative Activities-Committees and Working Principles
number or section name)

Specify where information on the activities of the remuneration committee
are presented in your annual report or corporate website (page number or
section name)

4.6. Financial Rights Provided to Board of Directors Members And
Managers with Administrative Responsibility

Page number or name of the section of the annual report providing infor-
mation on the operational and financial targets and their achievement in the Consolidated Financial Statements
annual report

Name of the section of the annual report providing ) - ] )
remuneration policy for executive and non-executive members. Investor Relations-Policies-Board Remuneration Policy

Page numbers or name of the section of the annual report providing infor-
mation on remuneration for board of directors members and directors with
executive functions

Corporate Governance Practices—-Financial Rights provided to the Members of the Board of Directors
and Senior Management

Names Of The Board of Directors Name Of Committees De- The Percentage The Percentage Of The Number Of The Number Of Reports
Committees fined As “Other” In The First Of Non-executive Independent Directors | Meetings Held In | On Its Activities Submit-
Column Directors In The Committee Person ted To The Board
Audit Committee 100% 100% 5 5
Corporate Governance Committee 67% 67% 9 9
Early Risk Detection Committee 67% 67% 6 6
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INFORMATION FOR THE SHAREHOLDERS

Contact Details:

Address . Halkali Merkez Mah. Basin Ekspres Cad. No.1 Kuctikcekmece-ISTANBUL
Phone © +90212-692 92 92

Fax © +90 212-697 02 08

Website © www.deva.com.tr

E-Mail address . deva@deva.com.tr

Trade Registry Information of the Company
Trade Register . Istanbul Commerce Registry Office
Register No. : 70061

Independent Auditor

Ernst & Young
Guney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Musavirlik A.S.

Phone © 490212 3153000
Fax © 490212 23082 91
Tax Attestation

PwC YMM AS.

Phone: +90 212 326 60 60
Fax: +90 212 326 60 50

2018 Performance of DEVA Holding Shares

The issued capital of DEVA Holding is 200,019,287,78 TL. The capital of the i i

company is divided into 20,001,928,778 shares, each with a value of 1 kurus.

In01.01.2018 - 31.12.2018 period, 1 lot of shares of DEVA Holding traded at
Borsa Istanbul (BIST) was traded at 3.24 TL as the lowest value and at 4.95 TL
as the highest value, and closed the year at 3.29 TL.

The graph showing the performance of DEVA Holding shares in 2018 by
closing prices is presented below:

Dec
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I PROFIT DISTRIBUTION TABLE

DEVA HOLDING A.S.

2018 Profit Distribution Table (TL)

1 Issued Capital 200,019,287.78
2 General Legal Reserve (based on legal 10.656.677,04
records)
If privlege exists in profit distribution in | Of the distributable profit, 10% of the profit to be
accordance with the Articles of Association, | allocated based on the order and principles in the
information on such privilege Ar}‘ic'les of Association will be distributed to Group A
privileged shareholders
Based on CMB Based on Legal
Records (LR)
3 Profit for the Period 155.969.567,46 132.609.614,53
4 Taxes (-) 19.608.450,00 15.957.188,21
5 Net Profit for the Period 136.361.117,46 116.652.426,32
6 Losses from the Previous Periods (-) - -
7 General Legal Reserve (-) 5.832.621,32 5.832.621,32
8 Net Distributable Profit/Loss for the Period 130.528.496,14 110.819.805,01
9 Donations made within the year (+) 346.531,07
10 Ngt D|str|bgtable Profit/Loss for the Period 130.875.027,21
with Donations added
11 | First Profit to Shareholders -
12 | Profit distributed to Privileged Shareholders -
13 | Other Profit Distributed -
14 | Profit distributed to Dividend Shareholders -
15 | Second Profit to Shareholders -
16 | General Legal Reserve -
17 | Statutory Reserves -
18 | Special Reserves -
19 | Extraordinary Reserves 130.528.496,14 110.819.805,01
20 | Other Resources Foreseen to be Distributed
TABLE OF PROFIT RATES
DETAILS OF PROFIT PER SHARE
TOTAL PROFIT
DISTRIBUTED/NET PROFIT
DISTRIBUTABLE CORRESPONDING TO
TOTAL PROFIT PROFIT FOR THE SHARE WITH NOMINAL
GROUP DISTRIBUTED PERIOD VALUE OF TL 1

Cash (TL) Free (TL) Rate (%) Amount (TL) Rate (%)
GROSS | A
GROSS B
GROSS | C
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I INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

1EAMUARIALE [PEALLAIA AF R FHAAIE JAGIAMIY Il B TLdL{3H]

INDEPENOENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE ANNUAL REPORT OFTHE BOARD OF
QIRERTRRI

T ihe Bhargholdars of Oeva Halding Anonim Slekoll
j)  Dpinlgn

Wit P aud disd IR0 ana LR raeart o Dva RN Aeonim et (e Sompany) and 11
nibilebdin "V Cirenp) Ton Y ponead of 1002003000070

Inour opimnn, (ko canaclidaded fnancist nformplion oroydad i iRe annueal repo of the Badrd of
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5) Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Report

Our aim is to express an opinion, based on the independent audit we have performed on the annual
report in accordance with provisions of the Turkish Commercial Code and the Communiqué, on
whether the consolidated financial information provided in this annual report and the discussions of the
Board of Directors are presented fairly and consistent with the Group's audited consolidated financial
statements and to prepare a report including our opinion.

The independent audit we have performed is conducted in accordance with IAS and the standards on
auditing as issued by the Capital Markets Board of Turkey. These standards require compliance with
ethical provisions and the independent audit to be planned and performed to obtain reasonable
assurance on whether the consolidated financial information provided in the annual report and the
discussions of the Board of Directors are free from material misstatement and consistent with the
consolidated financial statements.

The name of the engagement partner who supervised and concluded this audit is Zeynep Okuyan
Ozdemir.

Guney Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Misavirlik Anonim Sirketi
A membe,[‘,_ of Ernst & Young Global Limited
AN

Partner

March 8, 2019
Istanbul, Tarkiye
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[Convenlence translation of a report and consolidated financlal statements originally issued in
Turkish)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Dova Holding A5
A}  Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Fingncial Statements
1) Opinion

mwamumw|mwwmmm§n$ {the Cmulnﬂ-mdh
subsidianes (tha Group), which comprise the consolidaled statement
Decamber 31, wamﬂnmmmmmummmmumm

mﬂmummwmpdmdsmmlﬁmhhuhrhrwhﬂimm
nobes to the consoldated Bnancial statements, including 8 summary of significant accounting policies.

In cur opinicn, the sccompanying conscliidated financial statements present fairly, in all malesial
respects, the consolidated financial posifion of the Group 23 at December 31, 2018, and iz
consolicated financial performance and its consolidaled cash flows for the year then ended in
actordance with the Turkish Financial Reporting Stendands [TFRS),

2}  Banis for Opinion

Wa conducted our audit in accordance with standards on suditing a3 issued by he Capilal Markeats
Eoand of Turkey and independent Auditing Standands (InAS) which are part of the Turkish Auditing
Slandands as issued by tha Public Oversight mmwmammmﬂw
(POAL ﬂurrewﬂﬂusuﬂuﬂmm standards ara Mﬁﬁmﬂhh

for e Audit of the Consolidaled Financial Stmmmﬂonulwumm
Indepandant of tha Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for independent Avdiors (Code of
Ethics) as issued by (he POA, and we have fullilied our other ethical respansiblities [ accordanca
with the Code of Ethics. We beleve that the audi evidanca wa hava oblained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide & basis for our opinkon,

3)  Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are thosa matters thal, in our professionsl judgment, were of mos! significance in
our audit of the cansclidalad financial statermnents of the current period, These matters were addressed

in tha context of our audit of the consolidated Bnancial sietements as & whole, and in forming aur
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separale opinion on these maliers.
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Mighsing & teekler
werking whee
[Kay Audit Matters Audilors response
Capitalization, valuation and realizability of
Devalopmant cost
Deva Holding's Al costs | Ouf audil procidures nchuded amaongst olners, 2

capilahized
nmnywmmlnmmmm
sagments. This segrenl is subject 1o projects
whiich takes time to mature, which are key for
huture value creation by ihe Group, The
capiialired developmant cosis are significant io
our audit due o Iheir size and judgement
imvolved in the recoverabiily of thosa itams.
Emmlmmmgmmmg

ha capitalizad developmant costs have bean
disclosed in Mote 13,

review of the Company’s palicies and procadures
fer evaluating the presence of impainment.
challenging tha main expectafions and challenging
the nature of capitalized expenses for sach

Our audil procedures included amangs cothars,
evaluating the conlent of development costs
capitalizad for sach project. For products in
development, @ key Jssumplion is the probabiiity
of obisining the nacessary clinical and regulatory
approvals.

Ovur procedures for products (n development
Included critically assessing the reasonablaness of
the Group's assumptions through consideration off
‘trial readouls,

mwmﬂmwn%mﬂm

Inventory cbsclescence provisions

Irveniories ane stated at the lower of cost and

cosls o ba inturned io realize the sals
Imventory balance i a materal balance for the
Group which requinas managament judcemant
in calimining an appropriste kevel of inventory

net realizable value of
the inventory on hand at year end and
consequanlly has baen delermined as a kay
mmuaw%zmmm
Group has a gross invensory of TL 375,439,716
and has a provisions amaunting to TL
§.593U628 on its inventorias. Explanations about
slochs have been disclosed in Note 9,

During e audit, procedures periormed fer
Inventory obaolesce procadures ans listed below:

= Understanding of accounting policy and its
assessment for s convenlence
- Comparison of ivventory lurnover with the

year

- Assessing lhe competence of the cument
year provision by comparing the
gﬁmnﬂ;nuiwrelrpmﬁm

= Observalion of non-moving or damaged
inventories during year-and inveniony
‘counts.

= Tasling of discounted sales prices that are
used in net realizable value calculation
through sampling

¥ e s f ey | ey Sl
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I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

EY
=ty

Responaibiiities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consopliiated Financial Statements

mmwnﬂmu respaonsible for the preparation and lair presantalion of the consolidated financial
stalements in sccondanca with TFRS, and for such intemal control as managemenl determines is
necassary lo enabls the preparation of consciidated financial statements that are fres from material
misstaemenl, whether dua lo frewd or error.

In praparing the consolidaled financial statements, management i responsible for assessing the
Group's ability 1o continue as a going concern, disciosing, & applicable, matiers related (o going
concern and usang the goang concern basés of accounting unless manapement either intends io
Ejuidate the Group or o cease operations, or has no realistic alsmative bul 1o do so.

Thesa charged with govemnancs ane responsible for ovarseeing lhe Growp's fnancial reporting
process.

§)  Auditor's Responsibiiities for the Audh of the Consolidated Financial Statements
In an independent aud, cur responsibiliies as the audiors am:

Our nbjectives ara ko obtain reasonable asswance aboul whather Lhe consolidated financal
statarments as a whole ane free inom material missiatement, whether due ko fraud or emor, and 1o lszue
an audilor's report that includes cur opinion, Reascnabls sssurancs is 3 high level of assuwance, but i
not a guaranies that an audit conducled in accondance wilth standards on auditing as issued by tha
Capital Markets Board of Turkey and Ina5 will always detect a malerial misstatamenl whan it exisls,
Misstalemnents can arise from fraud o emor and an considanad malerial i, individually of in the
agpregabe, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financaal stalerments.

Ag part of an audit in accordance with standards on auditing as issued by the Capilal Marka!s Board of
Lm:mwmpmhﬁmlmﬂmmnuﬂ professionsl skeplicism throughout

- idantify and assess the risks of material missialement of the consolidated inancial stalemants,
whather due {0 fraud or ermor, design and perform awdit procedures rasponsive lo thosa ngks.
and obtain audit evidance that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provida a basis for cur opnion,
Tha risk of nof datecting a materal misstabsment resulling from frawd is higher than for ane
resulting from errer, 35 fraud may involve collusion, lorgery, intentional omesions,
isrepresantalions, or the override of intemal cantral.

- Obtain an undersianding of internal conlrol relevant o the audd in order lo design 2udit
procedures that ane approprisle in the crcumstances, bul nol for the purpose of axprassing an
opinion on the afecivenass of the Group’s intemal contral.

- Evaluate the appmpmnmnlammmes used and the reascnablaness of acoounting
eslimales and related dischosures made by manageamaenl.

- Cenclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

and, based an i audit evidence oblained, whalher 3 matarial uncertainky sodsts

related 1o events or conditions thal may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to conlnue
as @ going concarn, |1 we contiude that 3 material unceranty axists, wa ane required 1o dranw
aftention o our auditor's repart ko the retated disclosures in the consclidated financial
statements or, if such declosures are inadequate, to moddy our cginion. Our conclusions ane
based on the audd evidence oblained up to the dale of our sudilor's report. However, Tuture
evenls or conditicns may cause thi Group 1o caata 1o conlinue 28 3 going concem

- Evaluate the overall presantation, structure and contenl of the consalicated fnancial
stalemanits, incluging the disclosures, and whather Ihe consolidaled financal statements
represend the underying ransactions and evenis in 3 manner that achieves fair prasantation

¢ mrwtat b ! U B g i s
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Bullding a Betisr
wearkineg werld

- Oistain sulficent approprate sudil evidencs regarding the financial infermation of the enlities or
business actrvibes within the Group W0 express an opimcn on the consolidated financeal
statarnants, Ve are responasble for the dirsclion, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our 2udit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, amang other matiars. tha planned
scope and liméng of the auwdd and significant audit findings, including any significant daliciencies n
intemal control that wa identify durng owr audit

W also provide thase charged with govemance with a stalement that we have compled wih relevant
elhical requirsments regandng independance, and to communicate with them il relslionships end
elher matiers thal may reasonably be thought to bear en our independance, and whers applicable,
retated safequards.

From the matiers communicatad with those charged with govemance, we determing those matiers
Ihat wera of mest significance in the audit of the consolidated financial stalemeants of he cunment
period and are tharefors the key audil matters. We describe these malters in our auditor’s report
uniaes law or regulation preciudes public cisclosute aboul the matter or when, in axiremely rare
circurnslances, we defenming (hal a matier should nol be communicatad n our report because the
adverse consaquences of doing 50 would reasonably be sxpecied ip outaeigh the puble intares!
benelits of such communscation.

B} Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

1)  Audilors' reporl on Risk Management System and Committea prepared |n accordance with
pamgraph 4 of Article 398 of Turkish Commencial Code ("TCC} 6102 is submitied t2 the Board
of Diraciors of the Comparny on March 8, 2015,

2)  Inaccordance with paragraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, no significant matter has come io our
attention thal causes us 1o bmmmmsmmmmmu period 1
January - 31 December 2018 and financial statemenls are not in compliance with lews and
provisions of the Company's articles of association in relation la financial reporfing.

3)  Inaccondance with pacagraph 4 of Adicle 402 of the TCC, the Board of Direclors submilted 1o
us the necessary explanalions and provided required documents within the context of audit.

mm_m of the engagement partner who supenised and concluded this sudit is Zeynep Okuyan
-lii

G0 imiaiz Denstim ve Serbest Muhesebeci Mall Mogevirik Anonim Siketi
Awen imdl'Emﬂ& Young Global Limied

March 8, 2018
Isianbul, Tirkiye
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I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Convenience ranslation of the independent suditors” report and consolidared financial statements
onginally issued m Turkish)
DEVA HOLDING A5, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2018

{Amounts expressed 10 Tarkssh Lem “TRY™ unless edborose staied )

Current Year Prior Year
Aundited Audited
Faotuale 31 December 31 December
References 2018 017
ASSETS
Current Assels 962.287.48 621,511,152
Cagh and cash equivalents 4 120105624 77 69 867
Trade receivables 7 A04.061.560 292032347
Dhue from related parties ] 11620379 1793004
Oiver frade recehvabies 292445081 280239253
Chber receivables & 474.273 460.429
Inventories e 375439716 215.644.519
Prepaid expenscs 10 37.67T6.273 22.731.603
Assets relating 1o current ta 11 157.381 392497
Dnber cument assets 19 23.362.521 12.379.890
Non-Curreni Asseis T06. 152981 634808717
Property, plant and equipment 12 401.535.401 164,827.920
Infangible assets 273.764.900 240.204.847
Gaodwill 4 1.782.731 1.782.74]
hiver intangilble axsers 13 271 982 169 238512116
Prepaid cxpenses 1o 25,190,986 19,873,407
Deeferred tax assels 27 5,661 654 9 800 543
TOTAL ASSETS 1668440329 1256406 860

The sccompanying notes form an mtegral part of these consolidated financesl statements,
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I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Convenience ranslation of the independent suditors” report and consolidated financial statements
onginally issued m Turkish)

DEVA HOLDING AS. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONT'D)
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2018

{Amounts expressed 10 Tarkssh Lem “TRY™ unless edborose staied )

Current Year Friar ¥Year
Amdiied Aundired
Fooinote 21 Deecmber 21 December
References 2018 2017
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities SEL.100,327 418 TRE.002
Short serm Mnancial lialxilities k] 7210508 B AT ATR
Cusvend portion of long term fnancial lsldlites 5 135655 554 211 38R .6R2
Trade payables T B5.600,582 67,025 460
Liwe ko related parties & i e 3882174
Cither frade payables TR PES 202 S 343286
Payables relating to the benefit
provided to employess 18 5330088 ?.516.685
Other pavables E 1A493.842 1170007
Cther frade payables 240842 LITLIOF
Governamen gmats and incertives 15 1.777.37% 1.588.005
Deferred revenue Ll 3229696 7381167
Curreni tax payable k- B97.933 333,180
Short erm provisions 3HE51.048 33351 .324%
Provisionus fine bewefin provided fo emplyes 18 25354459 2022259
e pravisiom e I3 466 589 LETE ¥
Other current liabilities % 1.944,007 1,446,580
Naon-Current Liabilities 23783105 EN1.580.6T5
Long tenm fnancial Habilities ] 284.710,473 191 253 369
Governament grants sud incentives 15 31.755.5586 20.174.443
Deferred revense {1] 9I6.511 1926675
Long teqm provisions. 205302358 19,124,188
Provisions for bengfiis provided o erplovess 18 J0539.235 F8.124, 188
EQUITY T4G6ADT. BT HH5090.102
Equity attributable to equity
halders of the parent T4 ADT.BET 15 090,102
Paidl-im capital 20 200.019. 288 200019 28R
Indlation adjusimesent o dhane capdizl 0 LA (R, 506 LA (50, G508
Bury-backed ehares (<) 20 (28.847) (28.847)
Premium in excsts ol par 20 2870803 2ETO.B0R
Other comprebensive expense nol bo be
reclassified to profit or loss (4.670,933) (6.6%55.491)
Avctrial Toss arisiug from deffmed beneFr
iy (4670, 235) (GEIR4R1)
Other comprebensive expense 1o be reclaitifled
o profls or loss (596.642) [ 34400
Crrramcy transhation reserve FERE. 2 (i 2
Resricied reserves approprinted from profit 20 150864955 150,854,955
Purchase of shares of enfities imder conmpon
caninol frde S0 {48 Amn
Accummulated profi 0 121.753. 060 25 OR3 267
Frofit for the year 138360107 82542675
TOTAL LIABILITIES AXD EQUITY Iﬂﬁﬁ iﬁw

The sccompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financsal staterents.
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I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Convenience ranslation of the independent suditors” report and consolidated financial statements
onginally issued m Turkish)
DEVA HOLDING A5, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{Amounts expressed in Turdksh Liss “TRY™ unless eothorwise stated )

Current Vear Frior Year

Reclavcified [*)

Andived Amdiired

1 Janusry = 1 Jamusry -

Footnabe 21 December 31 December

Heferences s 007

Revenss 2 1.040.677.048 00,205,112

Coat of revemse (=) a1 (S1B.558.572) (455.083.332)
GROSS PROFIT AZLOI8ATE 345,200,780
Marketing, sales and disiribution expeases (=) 22 (1483956400 (117.578.135)
Chensral admindcimtion sxpenses (=) a2 (D2 p08.781) {68,745 T07)

Reseprch and developosent expenses -} =z (35783 934} {28.530.6T1)
Cilier operaiing Bcoms 4 48,479,653 270430

Other opsratmy X (=) 24 (16873402} (7018416
OPERATING FROFIT 277286202 145332182
Investnoen! income FL] LN R 10,193,637

Investmoent expenses (=) FL - (754.332)
FROFIT BEFORE FINANCE EXFENSES ITLTET 341 154,773,457
Fimmnce expemses (=) 26 (E21.807.7T4) (50.183.737)
FROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 155969567 4,579,748
Tax imcens | (txpemic) (LSOR.ASD) (2.087.073)

Cusrail lns, expeine 27 (16.839.255) (504.478)

Dheferrind tax expants a7 (2. T60.215) {1.132.309)
NET FROFIT FOR TIIE YEAR TI5FE1.017 RIS

Distribution of profit fer the year

Exquity healders of the parent 1363461117 92, 541,675
1 111 BELETETE

Predit per share % 0,068 00046

Diluted prolit per thare L 0,0068 06,0046

{*) Explanations on reclnssification of prior period financial statements are made in Note 2.4

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financesl statements.
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I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Convenience ranskation of the independent auditors” repont and consolidated financial statements
ongnally issued in Turkish)
DEVA HOLDING AS. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

{ Ammoomdy experessed m Tarksh Lirs “TRY™ wnless otherese siated )

‘Curreal Year Prior Year

Aundited Amdited

1 Jamuary - 1 Jamuary -

Foolnele M December M December

_References 2018 2017

Nt profii for the Year 154.881.117 02542678

Crilser Comprebemive Lo

Items mof 1o be reclassified subsequently to proflf or loss JECTELL] #5.075)

Actuseial gain / (loss) arising o defieed benefit plans 1B 2544 308 {115 B43)
Tax effect other conypreheiive inconse not o be reclassified w0 profit or

hos 27 (S50, T4T) 3. 770

I Tl may be reclassified subsequently o prafil or bess (250.19%) (105,005)

Clamge in foreign curmascy o kbilion reserve (250.298) (205 008)

OTHER COMPREHENSTVE (LOSS) / INCOME 1. T34 280 [0 088)

TOTAL COMPREHENSTVE INOOME 1AB4R5 27T 1. 241.580

Total comparrhensive income atirilatable to: 138055 377 F1.247 559

Béon - controlling inbenes ¥ g

Bty holders of the paront 138095377 92. 242589

The sccompanying notes form an integral pant of these comsolidated financial starcments,
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I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Convenience transkation of the independent auditors” report and consolidated financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
DEVA HOLDING A% AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 1018

szt epreisd m Tariil Lira “TRY enless ctheranie ttated )

el o i el o i Aromebred pod: (ki)
e pn ctuienil s marg Fstrutedrrerim Partham of shoow ol Cotalwparty Yen
. B 4 N o i bt Coomacy et —— N binipch Mgl ot oty Eey Tod
am Prtim el il e ) of s ol i o it romned T ey el o e pat it e
Salaon i 1 Cammay 2017 a2 pollLh ] HODMLBE frt i) A LA ] LB ) 1308 K5 L] DML N MWL . 1L kL]
Traad i rtassecd sy - . - - - - - - EIIH L - - -
Captal mymiond sz - - - - - - - - - - -
£ P —— : 2 E - o) ot ] : = ARSI f 30 LELL
s Lier wng from il
b pams Ll I L
Curmady fanaion maee . : . ! . o oy ! . . ] L] . ]
Pras o o . » . » . . . - o RHIEN W AT - W7D E
Babmca 3. 1) Dacomhar 2477 = e RE L L e 0] e ] Hid b et L (o] HIEE e Loba o e
Babmor o | Famary 2013 = po LR HODM B [RET Bt ] LR L] 1305 ¥5 Tl 5] HMENT ISP [t ' G
Arprrne ko e ST
iy i T) 2 - - L 3 - & 3 uzan o L £ g
Trae i resined eamn - - - - - - - - WIS LML - - -
ol ey oo - - - - (] o0 - - Hea emim TR
Artuirinl garm arving o el
] 2 - - - LA % - = 5 - EL - L
Progh for s pou 18T L NLIT 1A 137
Babmca = 1) Dacohan 2008 = e RE Haawd  Cimy e e fabin] tef CEE (i) 1itikede  peMn i Tk T

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these consolidased financial statements.
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I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Convenience manslation of the independent nuditors” report and consolidmed finnncial statements
originally issued in Turkish)

DEVA HOLDING A% AND IT5 SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3] DECEMBER 2018

{Amemnts pepesiisd on Tadknk Lars “TRY™ mibeia otheruris itated )

Currend Vear Prisr Year
Amelited Amaited
1 Jamuary — 1 Jammary —
Fumimmde 31 Deewmber 31 Decemmber
~Beferences 1018 £t ]
CASH FLOWS FROM OPFERATING ACTIVITIES 10, S8 TR R FFR LT
Produt for the vear 138381007 Pr3a1 4TS
.ﬂd}iﬂ-lhltmm l’l‘iﬁl I:,I.Mi] AT6.687.897 136.0H4 873
L 21-23 34,893 324 30.ERT.BOT
Mil--r-nn- far l—-dr“ Las (Reversal of Impairment
Lawen) 4.008.027 12472083
Adjaytments for Inpaivement Low (Reversal of lmpaumeni Lo}
afl Receivakiles TR 1,298 147 1918 800y
Adipastments for Ingpadrmeent Lows (Reversal of Inpament Losa)
aff [avehbbried > (211 5035 CLESRTT
| For L Lo (R | el I Lsas)
af Olber Intinghbe Adieti 13 31.931.382 25950790
Adjnitments o Provisisss o RE &1H AES5T 974
Adj Sor (B i oy Proas Relared with Exployes
Treefing 18 2 GFD 00 121480 175
Adjmstmenis i (Reversal of) Lavwonls saulor Pensloy Provisions. 14 Smafn B XR4A SRA
Adpmissnents for (Reversal of) Ouher Provuisons 16 33,232 405 33132289
Adjmsimenis for Tsteres (Tneoans) Expenses 1, TR #AN AR 4 B0
AdjastEnents Fol 1EIa0ed IHEOME 24 (1128919 (30081400
Adjaitinenti For iElebei] SXpenie . 108 BS5 572 53503043
Adjnitments o Tax (Income ) Expemies 7 A9, B0, 450 TaNTaTy
Dhibser Adjustmenis for Noo-Casl e (5. TE1. 80 EITE
Adjusimeais for Lowies (Galns) on Dispossl of Noo-Carcesi
Asnards [S51.03%) (LR ]
Adjastment for Losces (Craine) Arised From Sale of Tangible
Amacin 5 (A1 139 (LRI 5]
Chber adjustssniy for Which Cash Effsciv are Investing or
Fimamcimy Cash Flow el GH. 0T S RGE 521
tmsmis o Reconcils Profs (Los) [ER FEFT Y 3.1 GOLGEY
Chamges in Warking Caplial (284,082, 900) [N ]
Adijmvtmemis for Decrease (Increase) im Trade Accounis
Receivable (10097 L2900 (TEABLA14)
1 ] Vam Drsds A Kecormbics from Bolsicod
Tartes 17213 (hadL345)
e il vam Trade A Becomblcs from Cilsor
Parnes (100, 144,008 (T1L218.8880
Adijmutmemts for Decrease (Increase) inm Cther Receivalles
Ralared with Operatiens {1.301.981) 1EZR 842
Decrease (Inorcase i Chher Unrelsted Party Receomvables Relabed
Wil Cperatiedns {1.301.981) 1.E2E BAZ
Adljuisissmmis fog Thes swise (Toavwase) i lavemboiss (154, 5382509 RN EET
Detrvase (Increasc) im Prepaid Expeoses (14,244,670 (10ETT.619)
Adljuisisnwmts fog Lo ease (Tevrvased im Timibe Aoaaiis
Payable 18.67).922 21204389
Tncrense (Dhrcrosse) im Trsde Amﬁ,—ﬂrthml‘\-m 2031 BI6 78 ARS
Incyense (Deciewes) in Trsde A Payaldes o ook
Paiters el D 3124 S04
Increase (Decreasc) ln Emsployes Benefit Liakilites {3,174, 717) PRLOTE
Adjnuments for Increase (Tecrease) in Cther Operating
FPayabiles 1331735 I93411
hunrhw:hﬁmnw Panables 1o Oither Parties 1.323.785 i an
T—'pﬁmiﬂ-ﬂ-} T ST T [ ST [ERES R bS] A aRO AT
timemis far Chlier Inoveans (Mecreace) in Workisg
(248650043 5145.216
Dl-eltl-li (Increiie) in Cnber Adeets Related with Operationi (10747 515 3453 309
Tecweane [(Dhecrease) in ey Payubles Belared with Opecations (14, 107 3803 1E02 P07
Cash Flows from l-u-l m) Dipeerations 1TH.095. 815 A4S ADT HED
P Porlaned with d ot Bmploves Blenefin 1% 1800 755 (100585213
Payments Relsasd with Cules Proviskons ] 26 1N T (24 305 53T

The accommanying notes form an interral part of these consalidated fmancinl statements.
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I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Conventence iranslpion of e indepemsdent anditors” report and consolidated Dnancial siatemenis
originally isswed in Turkish)

DEVA HOLDING A5 AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAE ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018 (CONT LX)

DAty expressed @ Turknd Livs “TRY™ ualews. sthavwane sabed

Currenl Year Prier Year
Aundited Amdited
1 Jamuary = 1 Jamuary -
Feolmole 3 December 31 December
Relerenees 018 my
CASH FLOWS FROM DNVESTING ACTIVITIES ESE ] (113, 203.174)
Pro<eeds from Sales of Property, Flant, Equipmesi and
Intangible Aseets (LUK 5] 1. TO6 TS
Proceeds from Sales of Property, Plant and Equipment 12:24 B0 39 16,706,795
Purchase of Preperty, Flant, Equipment and Istangilde Assets (159, 108.1.50) (116.008.328)
Parchase of Progeerty, Plant sed Equapsent 12 (69, 760.130) (77.638A415)
Pachise of Inimmgible Assets 13 (59 345.000) (48 166.937)
Cosh Ailvamces and Loass Mads (5.517.470) (7.779.21%)
Other Cash Advances and Loans Mads (o Other Parties o (5317.579) (1.779.319)
Proceads from Govermmest Gty 15 RN 143 IEMTOS
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES LT SLEST.ALY
Progeeds from Lsans L2965 505 FRLRLYARS
Proceads fom bormowings GR5.232 680 E20.02% ARS
Proceeds From Eeme of Debe Instrments THLAET XS -
Loan Repayments (DRSS9 A40) (B02.403.680)
Bepayments of borowings [R50 524045 (790.551.535)
Paymess of Listied Db Instressents (130 T69.591) (14,542, 145)
Tnderest paid (51.959,186) (37,480,720)
Imlerest received ! | TA89.537 ADRROYT
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUTVALENTS BEFORE EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES 4155473 SLARE T
Effect of exchange rale changes on cish and cash equivalents (250.29E) [204.008)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 4306378 50,793,762
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING
'0OF THE FERBOD 4 TLII 48 ITAID M
CASIAND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE
PERIOD 4 121.429.521 TT.7EN. 146

The accomparying notes foam an integrnl part of these consalidated financial stbements.
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I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Convenience translation of the mdependent anditors” repont and comsolidated financial statements
ongmally ssued m Tarkssh)

DEVA HOLINNG A5, AND SUBSIMARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

[Mresmnts expredisd n Tuckish Lies “TRY™ il oterasie aated )
L ORGANIZATION AND DPERATHINS OF THE GROUP

Deva Holding A.5. (e Company™) is operating in Istasbul, Tuskey, The Company was imcorporated og 22
Seplember 1358, The Comnpany s prncipal sctivity is manufsciuring and markeimg of humn phemnasceiticaks,
Thee repistered office address and its principal place of business are as follows:

Deva Holdmp A5 Halkal Merker Mahalieu Basm Flapees Caddesi Mo: | K Ceknoece / Istanbid.

The average oumber of emplovocs working in the Group fiw the year ended 31 December 2008 is 2076 (31
December 3017: 2036)

Easipharm SARL 5 the main sharcholder of the Company. Ensiphema 5.4 KL was (bended im

in 2006 and i fully owned by Eastpharn Lid., which was incorporased in Bermuda in 2006,
Ensipharnm 8.AR.L. acoured 52,6% of the Compamy”s shares on 37 Novemher 2006, Subsequent 1o that datz
EF SARL increased its shareholdings amd as of 31 December 2018, it owns 82.2% of the shares of Deva (31
Dwecember 2006 £2.7%). In 36 May 2001 the Company's issed share capital is mised from TRY 180,070,656
1o TRY 2000000.000, TRY 16.334.384 of e total amount raised was paid in cash by Eastphares S.ARL, and
e renmimng amoomd, TRY 5544960, was paid by other sharcholders The ultmusie shareholders of
Eastpharma 5. A RLL. are the funds controlled by Global Equitics Management .4,

Thee shuares of the Company bave been traded on Borsa Istanbul since 24 March 1986,

As of 31 December 2008, the Company’s share capital consists of 20,000 528,778 shares with an amoust of
TRY 0,00 for esch (31 December 2007T: 20,000 928 TTE). The Compasry"s nowanal capilnl stroctune is o follows

Xote 200

31 Deceanber 31 Decentber
Hams (%) 2IE ) 2017
Eastphamn S ARL 822 164.424. 760 B2 164.424.760
Onbser 178 35.594.528 178 35.504.528
Notminal capital 1000 WONI92EE 1000 200.01% 28R
Inflation adjustment 1o share capstal 140.080.696 L0 D865
Bary-backed shares (-} [28.847) (25.847)
Adisted share capital HOOTLINT T M00TLIT
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I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

{Convensence transbabion of the independent auditors” report and consolidated fnancial statements
onigmally isswed m Turkish)
DEVA HOLDING AS. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{ Aty expresicd in Torkinh Lirs “TRY™ milew otherwis e )
L. ORGANIZATION AND OFERATIHONS OF THE GROUF (comi"d)
Smhsidtaries

As of 31 Decemmber 2018 and 31 December M7, the detnils of the subsidianies ("the Group™) im terms of

Effective Owpershi
31 December 31 December
2018 2007

Company (26 (%) Line of activity

Distrilition amd sale of bumsn amd vetermary
Dwewatis Lad [LCi] 100 phammncenticals
m Wew Zenland and Australin
Distribution and sale of buman and vetermary

Dhevatis Inc 100 10 i icalds in UBA
, Distribution snd sale of buman amd veterinary
Devatis Gmbl 100 100 PR
) pharmacenticals in Germany
- Disgribution and sale of bBunnan and vetermarny
Dievatis A G (%) 100 100 ; scal i St i

(*) The companics arc noa-opcrating and do not have msaterial effect an the consolidatcd financial statements,
Therefore, they nre ol mchsded im the consolidation

The Group's subsidiaries opemte outsids Torkey.
Full masnes of the Group sulwadianes ane as follows.:
Drevaris Lad

Devalas Inc.

Dwcvatis Gmbh
Dewatis AL
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I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Comvenignes tmoslation of the mdependent sudsiors" report and consolidated financial statements
origamally issued in Toriish)

DEVA HOLDING A%, AND SUBSIDLARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

ety cxgrrsad m Torked L “TRY™ mbes afferare dsiod |
L ORGANIEATION AND OFERATIONS OF THE GROUT (roald)
Rubidiaries feaur'd)

Tha: Conmgamy and iix subsidissies operme in te planmscomical indmiry sad spe one of the besnded penenic playens
nuﬂmwm-wurmpuumunmmmuhmmm
B o peodhactions Excililies i o diffesenl locations.

The Group hae 177 phanmsceatical molecule: in 343 phanmmoatical fonme. OF these 9 modoailes (im 12 presontation
fomes) s eseenfsciured and merketed by using Boense rghis.

As ol 31 December 2008 the bunioess sepments are production aad sale of s phammordticals, voierinary
peochices mad olber

The buman phanmaceyticals segmem devives the majory of ity revemmes fhoen e wle of branded peneric md
emsed products. Branded peneric products s fintshed plemsscoical prodects that Dovae produces and sells
amder it tradamark mther an the chemical maone of the actne phamacostical compound. Lacensed prodiscs arc
finisded planmacoical prodicts thal the Conguny produces amd sl imder ieomees, from ofler phanmscostical
muwnmmmmmmmwnmwa
medicines combaling &uwmses in the i ubar sydem md
mtmmndmmMnhmwm

fonmulation of culiue medions, wnd execuies varios st s reseanch feamentations oo pilod fermentaiog,

Thie fiscoine of vetcri ated izl brcodars sl is achicved by e sabes of 76 plammcnstical ol i
102 phammsccitical forms,

The: operstioes in the odber segment inchids production sd sale of cologne prodncts,
[Fther sepment mioemation oo the Ceoup operatioss is prewenied i Note 3,

Approval af te financial salemests

The sconmpanying finescial siatements have been sppeoved by dhe Boand of Directors nnd we sathorized for issme:
o H Msch 201%, The Gieneral Asseanbly and] certam regulstory bodhes bove the power o scrd the sansory
Gining Conoerm

The Group prepaned cowsolidsied fmcial siaiements iy scoomdance with the going concam psmmption.
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I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Convemence translation of the independent asditors” repart and consobidated financial statements
anginally issued i Tarkish)

DEVA HOLDING A8, AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

[Amcsrsts expreined i Trskisk Lin TRV uslews othorwiue vited )
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATHON OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Areoaniing Standardy

The Group saintain their books of accounts aad their statmory financial statements in accordance with
ascooding principles m the Twknh Commercial Code (“TOCT) and tax begaslatson. Subsidsaries operating in
foreign comtry naamtain their boaks of accomnts i the currency of the comntry in which they operate and preparne
their stapmory financial stascments i accordance with the begislation effective in these countrics.

The aiached consolidaied fimaacial satoments ae prepared m acoordance with the decree Sases 11 N 14,1
“Principals Relating o the Femncinl Reportmp Stewdeds in Capital Makets” (“Decree™) isued by Capital
Markets Board ("CMB") on 13 June 2013 and published in the Official Garetie mumbered 38676 and are hased on
became effectave with the Sih Artsche of the Decree in considerstion by Public Oversign Acomimg snd Andinng
Stamchar Auilboity.

Additiooally comsclidaled fmecial stalcments mud disclosmes ae presented in accondance with the foomats
published by CMB on 7 Juse 2013,

The Coumery md (he group compunies established i Torkey maminin thewr books of account md prepase their
statmory fisancial simenents (~Stahmory Fimncial Smtements”) in sccondance with miles and principles pubdished
by POA, the Turkish Commencial Code ("TCCT), tax legislation and the Uniform Chant of Accounts ssued by the
Mimistry of Fmance. Subsidiancs that e registered in forcign counirics maimisin their books of sccomnt and

pregare their stabulory stalements i poconbnce with the prevaling sccounding prnciphes i ther regsinied
wonmiries. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared im Turkish Lirm under the historical cost
cotvenlion.

Freseniation and Fupeiional Carrency

The individial financial sxements of cach Group cntity anc presemed in the curmency of the primary ccosdmic
cavironment in which the ewtity operies (its fmctioml curréncy). For the purpose of the comolidaied fuancial
sinlements, the results and fimascial position of esch enbity se expressed i Trakish Lim, which is the fanctionsl
i presentmtion omvency of the Group. Fimancial statements of subsidiary operating in foreign comniry (Fanctional
omrency of Devais Lid &5 New Zelland Dollar and fimetiomal curmency of Devatis Ine is U5, Dollar) menslated
o presentabon cumency with the exchange e provaaliong st baluwe shoet date for balssce shoed flens excepl
cquity. Histcasical rates sre wsed for the comesion of equiny items and sverage rate for mcome statemnent fiems,

As ol December 31, 7018 and December 31, 2017, the deinils for the persod end and average U5 dollar, Exvo ad

Wew Pealand dolkar are as follows:
Year ended Average
31 Devember 31 Decemnber 31 Devember 31 December
2018 T 1018 2017

USDVTRY 52600 ERAIT] 48301 3
ERTRY A0280 45155 56789 41159
NIDVTRY 35488 LAEST 33028 15601
Freparation of Financial Statemenis in Hyperinflatomary Periods
Thee CME decision Mo: 11367 isswed at 17 March 2005 roquires ol compamics operating in Turkey and preparing
their fmncial sintements in acoordamce with ihe Twkey Accountiog Standards (imchding ooy ndlopting

TAS TFRS) #o ceawe the inflation acconnting applicatson as of | Janmary 2005, Based on the requinement, the
application of TAS 29 Fouecial Reporting in Hyperinflstiosary Economics™ is cexsed a5 of | Janury 2005,
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I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cenvenience translation of the independent anditers' report and conselidated financial statements
onginally issued in Turkish)

DEVA HOLDING A5, AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{Amssts exprewsed i Tored Lirs “TRY ™ oo offeraise saied )

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cout"d)

Comsohidation
mmmwmmmwmuﬁnmmumm
sriciime oulitied) ¢ A by compary. Cowtral s achicved when the ooty

»  [as power of the invesiee

= Isexposed, or has rights o varisble renams from its invelvenwent with the investee and
= Has the ability 1o wse its power to affect its rerams

The compasy reassesics whether or pet it commrols 2o invester if facts and circunstances indscate that there anc
chumpes o ome or more of the theee elements of control lisied above,
“When the compay has bess than a majeiny of the votng of the rights of an investee.it has power of the inwestee
when the voring rights sre sufflom o ghee §l practical ability o direet the relevanl activites of the invesiee
unilaterally. The congany comsiders all relvant fots and circunmstanoes in assessing whether or not the Company™s
woting rigths im an irvestee are sufficicnt fo give it powerinchoding.
»  The sizc of the company's holding of voting rights relative 1o the size and dispersion of boldings of the
wther vole hindders:
*  Potential voting rights hedd by the compny.other vole holders o other partaes
= Rigths arising Fom other contmciua] aregements :md
= Amy sdditional Bwcts and cirounmances than mdicate that thee company bas .or does not have.the curnem
abality o divect the refevant actnvitses s the time that decrsions need 1o be e, mchuding voting pationms
af previons sharcholder” meetings.
Coamsolidation of & subsidimy begms when the company obtams coutrod over the subsidiary md censes when the
company hosses comtrol of the subsidiary. Enconse and cxpenses of a subuidisry acquired of disposed of during the
year are incloded in the comolidated statementol profit or hdd other comprehensive income from the dase the
conpamy gans contod untl the date wisen the company ceases 1o controd the asbridsary,

Prodlt or loss and each comgponen of other comprehensive incone are auribwsed 1o the owners of the company and

o i nos-contmolling interests Total comprebensive income of swbsidiaries is anribubed o the cwoers of the
cotipany and io the pos-controllmg imtereds even i this restill in the nos-contiollmg mmorests having a deficn
balance.

When mecesary, adjusiments ane made o (e fnoncil watements of subridinries o bring teir accomning policies.
into lime with the Group's acoousting palicics.

All imtmgroap assets and Raknlities, equity, expenses mul cash fows relnimg o massctions betoeen members of
thee: Gipoug are elinunated in fid] oo consolidation.

Changes In the Accounting Policles

Changes made in the socounting policies are applied remospectively and prior year financial siatements are
restaned. There ane po changes in the Group's sceouniing policics duning the reporing period exeept For pestating
thee previous periods of TFRS 9 and TFRS 15.
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I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Cenvenienss translation of the independent anditors” report and consolidated financial statements
anpinally issned i Turkish)

DEVA HOLDING A8, ANT) SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{Amsnists expreved in Tusih Lies “TRY™ enlkois ofherwise aaed )
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)
L1 Changes in the Aceounting Estiales and Errors
Iff changes in the aooounting cstimares ane nelased 1o only one peried, they are applicd in the curren year; if they
are related 1o the fatire period, they are applicd both i cnrrent and fmire perdods. The Group bas no significan
chamges (o the socounting estimabes m e cumrend penod. Wiven 8 sigmifican! sooouniing ermor oocies, il s
cormected retrospectively and the prior year financial statensents are restated.
2.2 The new standards, amémdments and imberpretalions
The nocounting policies adopied in prepamtion of the consolidated fnmncial stabcnents as of December 31, 2008
are consastent with thoae of the previons financial year, except for the adopan of new and amended TFRS and

TFRIC interpretations effective as of Jmmary 1, 2008, The effects of these standards and inberpreiations on the
Group's financial position and performance have been disclosed im the related paragraphs,

TFRS 15 Revenne from Contracts with Crsfomers
In Sepiewber 2006, MOA issued TFRS 15 Revenue from Cootraces with Customers. The mew stamdan tssued
includdes the clarifying amendments io IFRS 15 mmade by LASH m Agril 2006 The new five-step nxxde] m the
standard provides the recognation and measarement requirenients af revenne, The smpdard applies to revenie
from contracts with castomsers and provides & model for the sale of some pon-fimancial axsets that are pol an
outpul of the entity”s ondmmry sdtivilies (e.g.. the sale of property, pland sud equipment or mingbles). TERS
15 is effective for ammal periods begimming on or after | January 2018, The Group adopted TERS 15 wsing
modified retrospective approach and disclosed the impact of the stnderd on fnancial pointion and

perfommance of the Group
- TERS 155 effects a5 of Decenber 51. 2018 are as follows:
T effect of wew
Before (he change sinmdard  Afver ibe change

Trade receivables 1332100820 5950299 139161119
Discount on notes reoeivables () (5.958.037) 5958057 -
DeFerred tax ety §.281.528 (2.519.834) F561.604
Toval assets Fa50. 150827 L28R. 5802 LAGE 440329
Retained caming (HIEIRIT42) (LEI2E50) (1223643930
Oiber aperaling imcoime L TR {6.904.424) -
Delferred tax expenss 1.230.441 1.538.773 2.788.214
Equity { PAT.119.395) (RIEES0]  (THESOTEST)
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DEVA HOLDING A8, AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

{ Aty expresied i Trdkinh Lirs “TRY™ milews otherwist atated |

L. BASIS OF FRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont"d)
1.2 The new stamdards, dwarmls and dnderpretations ool 'd)

TFRS ¥ Financtal Instrumenis

In Janusary 2007, POA issued the final version of TFRS 9 Fimancial nstnuncats. The fiml verson of TFRS &
brings together all three aspects of the accounting for financial mstruments project: classification and
measuremen, impaimnend sl bedpe sccoumting, TFRS % is buill om = logical, sngle classification and
measuremend approach for financial assets thar reflects the business model in which they are managed and
thear cash Aow charactonstics. Buill opon thns s a foreard-looking expecied coodit low madel that will reml
in more timely recogmition of loan bosses and 15 a single model that & applicable 10 all financial mstransests
sehject 1o mmpainment scconnting. In addition, TFRS % nddresses the so-called “own credin® issue, wheseby
banks and others book gain throngh profit or loss &5 a result of the vaboe of their own debn falling due o a
decrease in credit worthiness when they have ebected to measare that debt af fair valhee. The Standard also
inciudes an improved hedge accoumtimg model to better link the economics of sk manspemend with s
accounting treatinenl. TFRS 9 is cffective v anmoal pevbods beginning on o after | Jansry 2018 The
Groap sdopled TFRS © nsing modified retrospective approach asd disclosed the impact of the standard oa

Mimamcial or e of the G in bedow:
1 Jumuary 2018 - Thee efect of mew 1| Jamuary 2005
Before the chamge standard  After the clange
Delerred rax assets SEA3 172174 I00TLILT
Provisics for doubitfl receivables (5.984.754) (T82.607) (5.767.361)
Total Assety 1250406867 faI423 255 TR0ANN
Renized Eamnings (118530 .545¢ slo.431 (117821 . 1e8)
Egaify FBOE o0 102 TR L 4 7RG

The effects of TFRS 9 hoas evahmbed ns of Jammary 1, 2018 and any additional provision for trde receivable
impainment has not been recorded as of December 31, 2008,

TFRS J Insurance Contracts (Amemalowents)

In December 2017, POA issned amendments to TFRS 4 Insemnce Confracts. The smendments infroduce two
approaches: am overlay approsch and a defemal approach. These amendments are applicd for ansmal periods
eginming on of aficr | Jansry 2018 The amendments are pot spplicable for the Croup and did sol lave an
impact on the Nsancial posiiion or perfonmece of e Group.

TFRIC 22 Foretgn Carrency Trausactions and Advamce Consideraiion

The interpretation issued by POA on 19 December 2017 clarifies the acoounting for tramsactions that inchde
the receipt or payment of sdvance consideration in a foreign curmency.

The Interpretation states that the date of the magsaction for the puspose of determining the exchange rate 1o
use om imitial recognation of the relwied asset. expense or income is the daie on which an estity instially
recogndses the DOn-monciary asset of non-monetary lisbility arising from the payment or receips of advamce
consideration. An entity is not required to apply this Islerpretation o Moome TANSS Of MsAABCE CoNtracts
(imchuding reinsurance coniracts) it 15506s of remamanc: coniracts thal it holds,

The interpretation i cffective for annual reponting periods beginning on or after | January 2018, The
imterpretatson did not have an impact on the Enancial position of performmemce of the Gro,
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DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR. THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

(Asmouaes cxpressed i Turkind Lam “TRY™ ualess otherwiac vated )

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont™d)
2.2 The wew standards, amendmenis and interprefations (oo 'd)

TFRS I Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions (Amendments)

In December 2017, POA sued amendments to TFRS 2 Share-based Payment, clarifying how to socount for
certain types of share-based payment rapsactions. The amendments, provide requirements on the accounting
for:

o e effects of vestmg and non-vesting condibons on the measurement of cash-settled share-based

payments;

b, share-based payment wansactions witl a net sstitbement featume for withholding 1ax obligations: and

€. a modification 1o the terms and conditions of a hare-based payment that changes the classification of the
transaction from cash-settled to equity-setiied.

These amendments are applied fir anms] periods beginning on oo after 1 Jamary 2018, The mpendnents are
ot applicable for the Group and did pot have an impact on ike finamcial position or performance of the
Croup.

TAS 48 Investmen! Property: Transfers af Tnvestmeat Property (Amendments)

I Decemnber 2017, POA Baned anseidments to TAS 40 "Iivesunent Propenty *. The moendiments state that a
change m e occurs when the property mests, of ceases 10 meet, the definition of investment property and
there is evidence of the change in use. These amendments are applied for annual periods baginning on or after
I Jamuary 2018, The amendments did not have an mopact on the financial posstion or performance of the
Groug.

Amnnal Improventenis fa TFRSs - 2004-2016 Cycle

In December 2017, POA issued Anmeal Improvements to TFRS Standards 20014-2016 Cycle, amending the
following standards:

TAS 2% Iovestments in Associates and Joint Venrures: This amendment clarifies that the election to
mezsure an investment m an associate of a joint venture held by, or indirect]y through, a ventare capital
orgamsation or other qualifying entity at far value throwgh peofit or loss applying TFRS 9 Financial
Instruments is available for each associate or join venture, af the initial recognition of the assockste or
joint venrure, These amendments are applied for anmual periods beginning on or after 1 Jamuary 2018,
The amendments are oot applicable for the Group and did pot have an mpact on the financial position

of performance of the Group.
iy Standards isswed bt wot ved effective amnd not eardy ad
Standards, interpretations and amendments to cxisting stendards that are issued but not yet effective up to the
date of issuance of the consolidated financial stiements are as follows. The Group will make the necessary
changes if notl indicated otherwise, wiich will be affecting the consolidated financial statements and
disclosures, when the new standards and imterpresations become effective
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I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Convensence translation of the independent auditors” report and consolidated financial statements
ongmally ssued m Turkesh)

DEVA HOLDING AS. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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L BASIS OF FRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'"d}
1.2 The new stamadards, aoveadmrends and inderpretations foeml

i) Stapdards sued bul ot vet effective and pet cavly adopted (cont'd)

TFRS 16 Leases

The JASE has published a new standard, TFRS. 16 Teases’. The new standand brings modt leases oo-balance
sheed fon lewees under o simgle model, elimimting the distimction belween opersting sl fnusce lenses
Lessor accoumting however remmins largely wnchanged and the distinction between operating and finance
lenses is retaimed. IFRS 16 supersedes TAS 17 Leases” and related mierpreiations and is effective for penods
beginning on or after January 1, 2019, with carlicr adoption permstted.

Lessees have recognition exemptions to applying this standard in case of shon-term beases (Le.. Jeases with a
lense derm of 12 momths or less) and lenses of ‘low-vahue” assets {e.g., persoml compuers, office equipment,
gic.) Al the commencement dwe of a lexse, & lessee measures the lease liabdliny at the present value of the
bents paryimenits ilat st nod paid ot that daie (e ibe lease lisbiling), sl the sane date recognses am assel
reprosenting the right to wie the underlying aset (e, the right-of-sse asset) and depreciaes it during the
lense derm. The lense payments shall be discoumted usng fhe iterest mie implicit in ihe lease, if that mie can
be readily detenmined. If that rase canmot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the bessee®s incremenial
bcimowime, mbe Lessees are ooquired 8o pecognese ibe micresdl expense om the lease labalidy amd the
depreciation expense on the right-of-nse asset scparately,

Lessees ane requinsd io remensane the lease liability mpos the occurence of certain events ez, & change in
the lesse term. & change in fulwre lease payents resulting from a change i an index o mic ased
determine those paymsenis). Umder these circumstnces, the bessee recognises the amoumd of the
reitmasarement of Ue lease labality as an adjistment 1o the nght-ofase assel. The Group i m the prooes af
assexsing the impact of the standard on the financial position and performance of the Group, the explanation
of prelimimary analyses is a5 follows:

Transition ko TFRS 16:

Thie Growp plans 1o adogt TFRS 16 usang the modified retrospective approach. The Group will elect 1o apply
the standard to contmets that were previously identified as beases applying TAS 17. The Group will there fore
nait apply the standard to contracts that were ot previously idestifisd as containing & lease applying 145 17
The Group plans 1o ebeet io nse the exemprions applicable to the standard oo lease conmraces for which the
bt deries emds within 12 menihs a5 of the dabe of izl application aind bese comtracts for which the
usderlying ssset i of bow valoe. The Group has leases of oentan office equipment (i.¢.. personal computers,
premzng ad photocopying machines) that are considered of low valee.

Tl Growp has performed a detailed inpact assessment of TFRS 14 in 2018, In samemary the impact of TFRS
16 sdopricn ks expecied io be, as fnllows:

hepact om e consolidated stalement of foapcial position (imoenseddoorense]) ns at 31 December 2018:

Assets

Property, plant and cquapment (right-of-nse assers) 1E.T24.552
Liskilits

Lense inhilities 18,724,552

Due 1o the adoption of TFRS 16, the Group's operatimg peofit will improve, while is finance cost will
increase. This is due 1o i change in accounting for expenses of lemses that were classified as operating
e, wimder TAS 17
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont™d)
2.2 The wew standards, amendments and interprefations (oo "d)

Antendmients fo TAS I8 Lirvesimients in Associates and Joinf Venfures (Amendmenis)

Tn December 20017, POA issued amendments to TAS 28 Tnvestiments in Associates and Joint Ventures. The
amendments claify that a company applies TFRS 9 Fipancial Insouments to losg-lerm interests in an
astociale of joint vennire that form pan of the pel investment i e As50CHE OF jOIN venmre.

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments exclsdes interests in associates and joint ventures accounted for in accordance
with TAS 28 Imvestments in Associates and Joit Ventures. In this amendment, POA clarified et the
exclusion in TFRS 9 applies only to mferests a company accounts for using the equity method, A company
applies TFRS 9 to other interests in associates and joint vennumes, inchuding long-tenm interests to which the
equity methed is not applied and that, m substance, fomm part of the pet investment in those associates and
joint ventres.

The amendments are effective for anmeal periods beginming on or after | Janaary 2019, with early application
permutted, The amendments are not applicable for the Group and will not bave an impact on the financial
posation or performance of the Group.

TFRE 10 and TAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Asters bevwesn an Tnvestor aud §is Associafe or Joint
Venture (Ameandments)

In December 2017, POA postponad the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the outcome of
its research project on the equity methed of sccounting, Early application of the amendments is still
permutted. The Group will wait vntil the final amendmvent to assess the impacts of the changes.

TFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treaimenis

The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measirement requirements in “TAS 12 Icome
Taxes™ when there s imcertainly over incoums: 1ax reatments.

When there 1% nncentainty over income tax treatments, the interpretation addresses:

() whether an emlity considers uncenain tx trealmenls separakely;

(1) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tay treatments by taxation authorities;

{c) bow an entify determines taxable profit (tax boss), tax bases, unnsed tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and

() how an entity considers chenges in facts and ciroumstances.

An entity shall apply this Interpretation for anmeal reporting periods beginning on or after | Jannary 2019.
Earlier application is permitied. If an eofity applics this Interpretation for an carlicr period. it shall disclose
that fact. Om initial application, an entity shall apply the interpretation either retrospectively applying 1AS 8,
of retrospactively with the cunmilative effect of mitially applying the Inerpretation recogmised at the date of
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1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cout"d)
2.2 The wew standards, amenduenits and fnterpretations (oot "d)

Annnal fmprovenenis — 20052007 Cyelr

I January 2019, POA issped Anmual Improvements to TFRS Swandards 2015-2017 Cycle, amending the
following standards:

- TFRS 3 Business Combinstions aixd TFRS 11 Joim Armangements — The amendowents to TFRS 3 clarify
that when an entity obtains comtrol of a business that is o joint operation, it remeasures previowsly held
interests in that business, The amendments to TFRS 11 clanfy that when an entity obtams joint control of &
business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasune previoushy held interests in that business

- TAS 12 Incowe Taxes — The amendinents clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends (ie.
distribution of profiss) should be recognised in profit or loss, regardless of how the tax arises.

= TAS 23 Bommowing Costs — The amendments clarify that if any specific bomowing remams outstandang
after the related asset s ready for its intended wse or sale, that berrowing becomses part of the funds that an
entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate oo geueral borrowings,

The amendments are cffective from annual periods begimying on or after | Jamuary 20019, with carly
application permitied. The Group is in the process of assessing the inpact of the amendments an financial
position o performance of the Group,

Flan Anvéndment, Curigiiment or Seifement™ (Amendments fo TAS 19)

o January 2019, the POA published Amendments o TAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtaibment or Settbemen™
The amendments pequire emtities to wse updated acmarial assumptions o determine current service cost and
net interest for the remainder of the anmeal reporting period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

oceurs, An entity shall apply these amendments for annoal reporting periods begmming on or after 1 Jamsry
2019, early application is permitied. If an enfity applics these amendments for an earlier period, it shall

disclose that fact, The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of the interpretation on financial
position or performance of the Group.

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendarents to TFRS 3}

The POA issued minor amendments 1o TFRS @ Financial Instnumenis to enable companies o measure some
prepayable financeal assets an amortised cost.

Applying TFRS 9, a compary would measaire a financial asset with so-called negative compensation at fair
value through profit or kess. Applying the amexdments, if a specific condition is met, entities will be able 10
measure af amortised cost some prepayable financial assets with so-called negative compensation.

The amendments are effective from anmal periods beginning on or after | Jamary 2009, with earky

application permnied. The Group is i the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on financial
position or performance of the Group.
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1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)
2.2 The wew standards, amenduenis and interpretations fcont'd)

The following suandards, imerpretations and amendinents to existing IFRS standands are issued by the LASB
bt not yer effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements. However, these standards,
interpretations and amendments to exssting IFRS standands are not yet adapted/issued by the POA, thus they
do not constitte part of TFRS, The Groap will make the nocessary changes to its consolidated financial
statements after the new standands and interpretations are issued and become effective under TFRS

IFRS 17 - The new Standard for insurance conlracts

The TASB issued TFRS 17, a comprehensive new acconnting standard for inmirance confracts covering
recoamition and messimemen, presautation and disclosure, IFRS 17 model combiness a current balincs sheet
measrement of isurance coptract labilities with the recognition of profit over the period that services are
provided. IFRS 17 will become effective for anmaal reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2021;
carly application is permitted. The standard 15 pot applicable for the Group and will not have an impact on the
finsncial position o performance of the Group,

Definition of a Basiness {Anendments lo IFRS 3)

In October 2018, the [ASE ksned amendments to fhe definition of a business in IFRS 3 Business
Combinatiors, The smendments are intended (o assist entities to determine whether a tramsaction should be
accounted for a5 a business combination or a5 an asset acquisition,

'.I'h:mudmmtz
clanify the minimum requirements fior a business;
= remove the assessiment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing elements;
- add guidance to belp entities assess whether an acquired process is substantive;
= marrow the definitions of a bosimess and of outputs; and
= introduce an optional fair valse concentration fest.

The amendments o [FRS 3 are effective for anmal reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
and apply prospectively. Earlir application is penmitted. The Group i in the procass of assessing the impact
of the amendments on financial position or performance of the Groug,

Dafinition of Material {Amendments to 145 1 and 145 8)

In Ciober 2018, the IASE issued amendments o IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements and 1AS 8
Accountmg Polscies, Changes in Accounting Estinates and Errors 10 abign the defimtion of ‘matenal” across
the standards and o clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, "Information is
material il omiiting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expecied (o influence decisions that the
primary wsers of peneral purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting entity. The amendments clanfy that materialsty wall
depend on e nature or magmtsde of information, or both, An catity will necd to asscss whether the
information, either individmlly or in combinastion with other information, i ssterial in the context of the
fiemcial stakenents.

The amendments o [AS | and LIAS 8 are required to be applicd for annual periods beginmng on or after |

Jamewry 2020 The amendments mmnst be applicd prospectively and eardier application is permitted. The Group
is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendments on fnancial position o perfonmance of the Group
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.3 Summary of Slgnificant Accowuting Policiss
& Revenue Recognition

Group recogmzes revenue when the goods of services are transfomred to the customer and when performance
obligation i fulfilled. Goods are counted 1o be transferred when the control belongs to the customer

Group recognizes revenue based on the following five main principles:

(a) Identification of customer contracts.

(b} Tdemtification of performance obligations

(c) Determination of tramsaction price in the contract

(d} Allocation of price to performance obligations

() Recognition of revenue when the perfonmance cbligations are filfilled

Phanmacy warehouses are the customers whose normal operating outpul is obiained by the Group. Revenues are
obained from product sales to these distribution warebouzes. Revenue is recognized on an accmual basis a1 the
finir valoe of the considertion expected to be received of received as a result of delivery, reliable detenmination
of the amount of reverue and the probable cconomac benefits to be transferred to the Group. There are no
separate contracts with pharmaceutical warchouses and the warehouses are considered as a single gronp.

The Group, which has & single performence obligation within the scope of the poods and services
decomposition. docs pot make a distmction m terms of mdividual performance criteris and obligations.

Phannaceuticals prices are determined in sccordance with the Communigué on the Pricing of Pharmaceuticals
for Human Use putdished by the Ministers. Gross salss, mcludes sabes discounts, sales volume discounds and
free product incentives. These variables are deducted from the proceeds at the first registration stage.

Sales discounts are issned instantly with a fixed percentage and the period is deducted from sales revenue. Sales
discou percentage vasies accosding (o the product sold.

Volume discount 35 deternumed by a fixed percentage of sales during the period and total sales made during the
perwsd. Volume diconmt percentages vary according 1o pharmmacentical warchouses, Extimates of volunse
discouts ase based on a fixed rate of realized inveiced sales in each period and the period is deducted from
sales revenue.

There s no apphication 1 the form of a refund with the phanmaceutical warchouses for the recovery of the
producis. At the end of the period, if such products zre available and possible, they are sent o the

planuaceutical warehouses instead of the retum application by means of free product promsetion.

In addition, the Group provides ncentives in the form of free products to pharmaceutical warchouses. The free
product incentives provide the distribation of the prodicts provided by the plarmacentical warchouses to the
customers free of chasge. Al the ead of cach period, pharmacentical warehouses shall infonn the Group of the
todal amount of free products they provide o their customers. The discount amount (e amount 1o be deductad
from the debt of the pharmacentical store) is estimated and dedocied from the income according to the amount
of free products gven within the period.
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2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (oot d)

.

2.3 Sunmary of Significant Accounting Pollcles feant™d)

a.  Revemuoe Becognition (cont’d)
Giroarp recoguizes revenue from its customers ouly when all of the follewing criteris ave met:

[a) The parties 10 the contract have approved the contract (in writing. onally or in socordance with

other customary business practices) and are conmutted to perform thear respective obligations,

(b} Grrop can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred,

() Groug can identily the payment temus for e goods or services 1o be wamsferred;

[d) The contract has commercial substance,

() It is probable that Groap will collect the consideration to which 11 will be entitled m exchange for the poods
or services that wall be transforred fo the customer. In evaluating whether collectshility of an amoun: of
consideration is probable, an entity shall cousider oaly be custoiner’s ability and intenition (o pey that ansount
of consideration when 1t is due.

Cost of sales - free of charge poods

Free goods provided to distnbutors are cstimated based on the achisl namber of free products given by the
distributors to its customers during the period and the cost of the fiee goods ae included a5 part of cost of sales.

Anieresl revenue

Intevest revemme s acomed on a time basis, by reference 1o the principal outstanding and at the effective imerest
rate applicable,
Inventories

Ioventones are stated al the lower of cost and pel realizable value, Costs, imcluding sn appropriate portion of
fixed and variable overhead expenses, are assipned to inventories held by the metbod most appropriste to the
particular class of invesory, with being valuad on standard costing basis. At the end of the each reportmg
period, the standard costs are opdated based on the actal costs. Net realizable value vepresents the estimated
selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make a sale. The Group edenninate
the prochects in its inventory that bave been expired and canmod be rased based on RED and quality
evalostions, ard allocases provicion in the imventory accoumts for the related products in the fGmancial
statements. As of 31 December 2008, the tofal amount of exterminstion and dumimishing value of these
provisions is TRY 9.593.628 (31 December 2017: TRY 9.805.1300 (Nate %)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property. plant and equipment are carmied al cost less sccmmubsted amortization and any permancil mmpairment
loss. Propertizs in the course of constrction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for parposes
004 yel determined, are carried al cost, bess auy recognised ingpainuent loss, Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying aseews, bomrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Group's accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis a5 other property assets, commences by straight-line method
when asscts arc ready for thar intended wse, as their usciul lifcs explained in Nowe 12,
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2, BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (eont'd)
2.3 Summary of Stgniffoant Accounting Palicies (oont’d)
b. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont"d)

The camrying amowt of s iem of property, plant aosd equipisent is derecognized on disposal or when no fulure
ccononsc benefits are expected from ils use of disposal. The gain or Jos arsing from the derecognition of an
vem of property, plant and equipment is inchaded m net income o loss a5 myvestment income of expense, bt
not classified as revenne, when the item is derocognised (unless TAS 17 requires otherwise on 3 sale and
leaschack).

If an entiry recognises in the camying amount of an item of property. plant and equipment the cost of a
replacement for part of the jsem. then it derecognises the carrying amount of the replaced part regardless of
whether the replaced part had been depreciated sepasately. If it is pot practicable for an entity to determine the
camying amownt of the replaced pant, it may use the cost of 1he replacement as an indication of what the cost of
the replaced part was al the time it was acquired of constructed. The gain or less anising from the derecoguition
of an item of propenty, plast and equipmet shall be detenuined as the difference between the pet dispesal
procesds, if any, and the canmymz amoumt of the fem

d. Leasing Transactons

Leases ane classificd as finance beascs whenever the termes of the beass transfer substantially all the mks and
rewards of ownership 1o the lessee, All ofher beases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finamce leases ane recognized s assets of the Groap af their fair valoe at the imception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present vahes of the mimimum bease payments. The cormesponding lisbility 1o the lesor
is inclsded in ibe balance sheed 35 8 fmance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligaton 30 as 1o achicve a constant rate of interest on the remamang
balance of the lisbility. Finance charges ane charged to profit or boss, mless they are directly atiributable o
qualifying ases, in which case they are capitalized m sccordance with the Group's general policy on
bommowing costs.

. Intangible Assets

Intangibly asyets pogquired separately

Itangible assets soquired scparately are reported at cost Jess accumulated amonization and accumulated
impainment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lves. The
estimated wseful life and nmosnization method are reviewed ar the end of each annual reporting pertod, with the
effect of any changess i estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis,

Internally-generated iniangible asseis — research and develapment costs
Research cosls are recognised &5 expenss in the period m which it & incured.

An intermally-generated iptangible asset aising fom development (or from tbe development plase of an
mieral project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

The technical feastbility of completing the mtangible asset so that it will be availabls for nse or sale;

The infention fo complete the miangible asset and use or sell it

The ability to wse or sell the imtangible asset;

Hevw the intangible asset will generate probable fisture economic benefits:

The mvailability of adeqoate techmical, financinl and other resources to complete the develapment and

o use of sell the intangible asset; and

« The ability o measure reliably the expenditure afributable to the mtanpible asser during its
development

- o oo W
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont*d)
2.3 Swmmary af Significant Acconting Policies (cont'd)
e, Intangible Assels (contd)

The Group has development activities related o licenses of new medicines. The amownt initially recoguised for
emmally-generated intaugible assets is e sum of experditee incurred fom the date when the inangible assel
first meels the recoguition criteria listed above, Where po intermally-generated intangible asset can be
recogmised, developiment cost is chargad to proflt or loss in the peried in which it i incurmed.

Subsequent 1o mitial recogiition. internally-generated intangible assets are recognized at cost bess accumulated
wmmmmmmlnmmmcmbunum}ummmﬁmuh
Impairment losscs rekated 1o these are recognised in the "Rescarch and Development Expenscs™ acoount in the
profit or loss table,

Derecognition of intagible arets
An intanpible a5se1 is derecognised on disposal, or when no fanre economic benefits are expected from use or

disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intsngible asset, measured as the difference betwreen
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

£ Impairment of Non-Financial Assefs

At each balance sheet date. the Group reviews the camrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determane whether there 15 any mdication that those essets have suffered an mnpamrment loss. If any such
mdication exists, the rocoverable amwamt of the asset 15 cstmmated in order to determane the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group ecstinates the recoverable amows of the casb-generating unil to which the asset beloogs. Where a
rexsopable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasouable and cossistent allocation basis can be identified.

g Borrowing Costs

Bomowing costs directly anributable 1o the acquisition, comstruction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily ke a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantinlly ready for their mtended e or sale.
Ivestment meome caméed on the temporary mvestment of specific bormowings pending their expendiune on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization, All other borrowing costs are
recorded in the income stetement in the period in which they are mcumred, Asscts that pecessamly take a
substantial period of time to get ready for mtended use or sale of the Group are license development costs,
Transformation of these costs to be ready for sale state may take more than one financial year Bm'rwugmsr.i
incurmed for developient costs are added #o cost of the related asset until it is ready I'umch!umg
caded 31 Decemler 2018, TRY 4.002.358 (31 Decendber 2017: TRY zsﬁﬂﬁ}mmwnh‘u;::
these qualifying assets (Note 13). The weighied average capitalization rate on funds bomowed is 5.5% per
anmum (31 December 2017: 74% for twelve months period). This rate represents the weighted average
borrowing cost of the Group's all borrowings used during the period. All other bomrowing costs are recorded in
the profit o loss statement,
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont*d)

2.3 Summary af SignifTeant Accaunting Policies (eout"d)
k. Financial Instruments

() Fimanctal assets
Clnsification

The Groug classifies its fimancial assets in three categories; throngh amortization, trough fir value difference
reflecied m other conprebensive mcome and doough fnancisl assets 21 Gor value trough profit and loss. The
classification is based on the business model used by the entity for the manapement of financial sesets and the
chamcteristics of the contractual cash flows of the financial assete, The Group classifies its assets at the date of
the purchase,

Financial assets are not reclassified after initial recognition unbess the business mode] thet the Group uses in the
managemen! of financial assets change, amd in case of a change in business model, the financial assets are
veclassified on the first day of the following reporting period.

Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets measured at amortised cost is a pon-derivative financial asset that is held as part of a business
model that aims fo collect contracal cash flows and that have cash flows that inchide interest pryments on
principal dates and principal balances on centain dates under contractual terms. The Groug's fmancial assets
which are recognized at amortised cost uxlude, “cash and cash equivalents”, “tade receivables™, “wrade
payzbles”, “ofher receivalles”, “financial investments. The aforempentioned assels are measured at their fair
values in the initial recognition of financial assets and discounted values by using the effective inerest rawe
method in the subsequent accounting, Gains and losses resulting from the valuation of non-derivative financial
assels measured at amomiced cost are recognized in the consolidated starement of profit and loss

“Finnnctal assets whose fair vahee difference i reflecied in other comprehensive income™. is a non-derivative
financial asset that meludes cash flows that are held only on prmcipal dates and iterest on cerfain dates under
contractial terms and that are held within a business model aimed at collecting contractual cash flows and
scling the financial assets. Gains or losses ansing from the aforementioned financial asscts are recognized im
oither comprehensive income with the exception of impairment gain or loss and foreign exchange gain or boss.
For investments in equity-baser financial assets, the Group may imevocably chooss the method of reflecting the
subwequent changes m e i value of other comprelensive income m the fnancial statements for the Grst tme,
In the event that such preference is made, dividends received from related investments are recognized in the
comsolidated statement of profit and loss. Financial assets at fair valoe through profit and loss are comprissd of
financial assets measured st amortized cost except for the fimancial assets an fair valve through profis and loss.
Gaims and losses arising from the vahation of the aforementioned assets are recognized in the consplidated
meome staberment.

b ! Exclusi

The Group derccopnizes a financial asset when the Group discontimes fts rights to cash flows in accordance
witly the contract for financial asscts or, when the related rights are transferred by a trading transaction 1o the
ownership of all risks and rewasds of the fnancial asset, Aoy rights created or beld by the Group in respect of
the financial assets transfemed by the Group are recognized as a separate asset or liability.
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L

k.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (comt*d)
2.3 Sumary of Siguificant Acconmting Palicies {eant'd)
Fluancial Tnstruments (cont'd)

dmpairment

Ipairment on finencial asssts and contractual ascets 15 calculated by using & method called Expectad Loan Loss
{ELL). This impairment model is appliad to amontisad cost financial assets and contractual assets,

Loss provisions were measured on the following basis:

12 month ELL: is the ELL of the possible default events within 12 months of the reporting dase
Lifetime ELL; is the expected loss of loans resulting from all possible default events during the expected life of
a firmmcinl imstruments,

The expected lifetime boan loss measurement iz applied when the credit risk associsted with a financial asset is
significamtly increased at the reporting date, In all other cases where the related increase has not ocourred, 12-
Month ELL calculation has been applied. The Group may determine that the credit risk of the financial asset
does not increxse sipnificantly if the credit risk of the financial asset has a low credit risk ar the reponting dare.
Mevertheless, the ELL measurement (with o simplified approach) is always applicable 1o trade receivables and
contract assets withoul & significant fimancing clement.

Recognition aud Measurement

Financial assets that are purchased and sold nomaily are recorded at the date of sale. The date of the purchase is

the date is the date which the Group counnits 1o purchase or sell e asset. Financial assets except fon fimancial

assels ai fuir vabue toowgh profit and Joss are initially recognized af fair value plis transaction costs. When the

cash flow purchiase rights arising from financial assets expire of are transferved ad tbe Group wansfers all the

risks and revards, the financial assets are excluded from the balance sheet, Financial assets that are available for

sale are subsequently sccounted for at their fair values. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.

{1y Flinancial Liehilittes

Financial lisbilities and oquity mstruments ssued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the

comtractual arrangements entered into and the defintions of a financial liability and an equify instroment. An
ity instrimment is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group afier deducting all

of its liabilities. The acconnting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set

ot helow,

Financial liabilities are classified as cither financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial Habalities.

Financiol linhilittes ot FITPL

Financial lisbilites are classified as at FVTPL whers the financial liability is either beld for trading oo it is

designated as at FVTPL. Financial Babilities st FVTPL ave stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss

recogmised in profit or boss. ﬂnnelgmﬂrmmmwdmmmw}mmmmymwdmm
financial lability. The Group has no financial liability at FVTPL as of balance sheet date.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCTIAL STATEMENTS (cont"d)

2.3 Sumanary of Sguificant Acconmiing Palicles {cont'd)
b Floancial Instraments (cont*d)

Boutdy ivsued

Bonds psued, including borrowings. are initially measured of fair value, net of transsction costs amd are
subsequently measured of amortised cost wsing the effective miterest method, with interest expense recogmsed
on an effective yield basis. The cffective iterest method is a method of caleulating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated fifure cash payments through the expected life of the financial lizbility, or,
where appropriate, a shorter peviod (Note 5).

i Busincss Combinntions

The acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses are sccountad for using the acquisition method. The considerstion
trasferred in a business combination i measured a1 fair value, which is calculzted as the sum of the aoquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of
the scquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the scquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognized in profit or Joss as incurred.

At the scqusition date, the entifisble assets acquired and the Habdlines assumed are recognized at their far
valu: at the acqusstion date, cxeept that:

o defemed tax assets or Habilities and liabilities o assets related 1o employes benefil amangements are
recognised and messured in accordance with TAS 12 Income Taxes and TAS 19 Emploves Bensfits
respectively;

 liabilities or equity instruments related to share-hased peyment amangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered mto to replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree arc measared in accordance with TFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acauisition date; and

o asscts (or disposal groups) tat are classified as held for sale in accordance with TFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are messured in accordswce with that Sandard,

Goodwill 15 measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquarer’s previously held equary interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisittondate amomts of the identifiable assets scquired and the
liabdlities assumed. If, affer reasscisment, the net of the acquisition-date amoimes of the dentifiable assers
scquired and Liabilities sssumerd exceeds the sum of the consideration waslemed, the mpount of any noo-
controlling bmerests in the acquivee and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held intevest in the acquiree
(i any), the excess is recopnised immediately in profit or boss a5 3 bargain purchase gain,

Mon-comtroling interssts that represent the sharsholder shares and give the owners the right 1o exercise a
certain share of the et assets of the enterprise in the evemt of liquidation are first mexsured af their fair valoes
of at the amount of the 1dentifiable ot assets of the acquured entity that are sccoumted for i the non-controlling
iercats, The measwement basis is determined by cach process, Other types of non-controlling intercsts arc
measurcd at fair value, or. where applicable. in accordance with the procedures specified in another TFRS
standard, Where the price transferred by the Group in 2 business combination also includes the conringent
consideration, the contingent consideration is measared af its fair value on the scquisition date and inchided in
the consideration transferred in the business combination. If adjustments are required 1o be msds in the Gir
value of (e coutingent considerztion as a result of additioml infonmation geoersted duing the messurement
period, this comection s comected retrospectively from goodwill, The measurement pericd is the period after
which the acquirer can cormect the temporary amownts recognized by the acquirer in the business combination.
This period canmot be more than 1 year from the date of purchase.
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1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont"d)

2.3 Smmmary of Signiflcand Accannifng Pollcles foout"d)
i Busimes Combinatiens (mu"d)

T subsequent recopmition of changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify &s
mmmmﬁdmﬂmmm;wh:mmm&:mmmmm
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasared and the subsequent panyment is
recognaeed i oquaty. 17 the contimpent oonsaderation clssified as an assed o 8 Babaliry i n fmancial brsnmment
and i within the scope of TAS 39 Fimancial Isstraments: Recogniticn and Measurement, the contingent
cosderntiom i menamed of fhir vahie sud the gam or boss ansing from the change & recogmiced m prodil or
less o other comprehensive income. Theose who are nod incloded i TAS 3% are sccounted for in sccordance
with TAS 37 Provissons, Contingeni Lisbilities and Asseis or other spproprisie IFRS.

In n progressive usmess combimtion, (ke Group s re-mensuned o1 the dale of noquisition (ie on ihe dase ol
wonmol of the Group) to bring the equity share held by the Group at fair vaboe to the fair vaboe and. if any, the
nim / loss arising, il sy, in prodl / Joss I acooumied for. Amounis arising froa the shave of the aoquired emtity
recognized peior to the acquisition dase in other comprehensive income are tragsferred 10 profit / bosa under the
arssmmption thal soch shages ane disposed

Where the acquisition accomting for o buskines combinstion casmot be completed at the end of 1he reporting
period af wisich the merger oconmed, the Group reports. lemporary amousts for items. for wiich the soconnting
irensaction coubd not be completed. These provisions] reponied amous are adjusted in the measurement period
of adhilitional assets of Halilities are recognined te reflect the new infirmation that may lave an impact on the
amoamts pecognized ot the date of scquisition and related to the events and circumstances it eccuzred ol that
e,

Basimess combinstions that took place prior to 1 Janmary 2010 were sccoumted for in sccordance with the
previous version of TFRS 3.

J Goodwil

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of m acquisition over the hir valoe of the Groap's share of the net
idersifisblc asscts of the acquired subkidianyassociane at the dars of the aoquisition.

For the purposes of mmpainment testing, poodwill s allocated to each of the Gronp's cash-penerating units (or
proapps of cash-peneratmg umtsh ihat o5 expecied 1o benefil Gom ihe synergies of ibe combimtion. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impainment annually, of more frequently when
there i indication that ibe il may be mmpaared. [T the recoversble amcnnt of the cnsh-genemting undl is less
than ibs camrying amount. the impairment boss is allocated first 1o redoce the camrying amownt of sy goodwill
nlkocated bo the undt and them to the other assets of the wnit pro mes based on the camrying amount of each nsset in
the wnit. Asy impaimment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or boss in the consolidated income
stateiient, An impaineil Joss recopaised for poodvill is not reversed in subregisen perbods.

O disposal of the relevant cash-generating umit, the attributable 10 amount of goodwill is included in the
determimtion of the peofit or lows on diguosal,

k. Buy-Backed Skares

If an emlity rescquires s own oquily instruments, those instuments (“reasary shares”™) are deducted foan
equaty. Mo gain or boss is recogmised in profit or loss on the purchase, sabe, isne or cancellation of an entity's
o ety isstrenents, Such sy shires oy be acquured and beld by the cutity or by other meibers of the
consolidated group. Consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity. Following the Deva-Vetag
mguhmhwduofiﬂli)ﬁlﬁ.nﬂl1Am!hm:ml:mnﬂlnh:ufﬂ.ﬂl3-m‘rmdbcﬂsn
o shares with a naminal valoe of 0, 01-TRY and Deva’s C groap shares with 28847 TRY nomanal value
witich are owned by Vietas have been ramifred 1o Deva,
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1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)
2.3 Semmuary of Significant Acceunting Policles (conl"d)

L Forelgn Currency Transactions
The indivadual finamcial statements of each Growp entity are presented in the cumency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operstes (its fanctional currency). For the of the consolidated financial

saterments, the results and financial position of cach entity are expressed in TRY, which is the functional
cumency of the Company, and the presentation carmency for the consolidated financial stsfements,

In prepaning the fnancial statements of the individisal entities, transactions in curremcies other than TRY

(Forsizn currencies) are reconded af the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each

balance sheet date, monctary items denominated in forcipn cumrencics are retranslated af the rates prevadling on

the balance sheet date. Non-mopetary isems carmied 21 fair valne that are deponunated in foreign cumencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monctary items that ane
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency ave not retramslated.

Exchanze differences are necognised m profi or loss i the penod m winch they amse except for:

= Exchange differences which relate to assets under constraction for fubure prodictive use, which are incladed
i e cost of those assets where they are regarded &5 an adjustment 1o interest costs on foreign carmency

i

*  Exchange differcnces on transactions calcred imto in order to hodge cortam forerpn cumency msks: and;

»  Exclange differences on movetary vems receivable fiom or payable w a foreign operation for which
senlbement i neither planned nor lkely to occur, which fomm part of the pet investment in a foreign
operation, and which are recopnized in the forsign currency translation reserve and recognized in profit or
loss on dispasal of the net mvestment.

For the pupose of presenting consolidated fimancial stasements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign

operations are expressed in TRY using exchanpe mtes prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense

items are tramslated ai dbe sverage exclangs rates for the period, wnless exchange raes Muciuased sigmifoantly

during that period, in which case the exchange rates a1 the dates of the mansactions are wsed. Exchange

differences ansing. if any, are classified as equity and transfermed ro the Group’s translation reserve. Such

exchange differences are recognized in profit or boss in the period in which the foreipn operation is disposed of
m. Earmings per Share

Eamings per shase dischosed m the scconpanying consolidated statement of profit or Joss is determined by
dividing net income by the weighted averape mumber of shares in existence durng the year concernad.

In Turkey, mn';-mnan raase their share capital by dismabuting “Bonis Shares™ to sharcholders from retained
eartzings. In compoting camings per share, such “boous share™ distributions me assessed as issued shares,
Accordingly, e retrospective elfect for those share distributions is taken ieo comideration i delcrsning the
weighted-average mumber of shares outstanding wsed in this conspotation.

o Subsequent Events

Wmmmummmmmmwmmmmﬂrwmm
even if they emerpe after any anpouncement or declaration related with the financial results o oter selected
financial mformation. The Group adjists (he amounts rscognissd im ite financial statements 10 reflect the
adjisting events after the balance sheet date. If pon-adjusting events after the balance sheet date have maerial
influssce on the economic decisions of wsers of the Anancial statements, they are disclosed in the notes 1o the
consotidated fmancal stalements.

109



I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Convenience translation of the independent suditors” report and consolidated financinl statements
originally isswed in Turkish)

DEVA HOLDING A.§. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER. 2018

(e exressed in Teskith Lizs TRV maless ethermise stated )

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont'd)
2.3 Smmmary of Significant Accounting Palicies {eont’d)

6. Provisions, Cantingeni Lishilities, Contingent Aveis

Provisions are necopnized when the Group has a present oblization a5 a result of & past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to sertle that oblipation. and a reliable estimase can be nuade of the amount of the

chlipation,
The amount recognised as & provision is the best cstimate of the consideration required to settle the present
cbligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and wncertaintics sumotmding the obligation.

Where & provision is measwred wsing the cash flows estimated to settle the present oblipation, its camying
Aot mupmm:nnlmum flows,

When scue of all of the econonsc benefits required 1o setile a provision are expecied Lo be recovered from a
ibsird pasty, ihe receivable is recogmised a5 an asset ifit is scially cenain that reimbussement will be received
and the smount of the receivable can be measured reliably,

p-  Related Parties
A party is related to the Company if:
(a) Drrectly, or indirectly through ene or more micrmedianes, the party:

(i} comtrols, is controlled by, or is ander commen control with, the entity (thes inchides parents, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries);

(i) boas: 3 inerest in the entity that gives it sipuificant influence over the entity; or

{iify has point contyold over e entity,

(b the party is an associate of the entiry;

() the party is a joint venture in which the eotity i a venburer:

(d) the party is a member of the key management perscnnel of the entity or its parent,
(&) the party is a chose member of e faily of any individual referred to i (g) or (d),

() the party 15 an cofity that 15 controlled, jomntly controlled or sipnificamtly influcmced by ar for which
sipnificant vofing power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any imdivichal refirred to in (d) ar (e).
or

(&) the party is 4 post-employment benefit plan for the benefin of emplovees of the entity, or of amy entiry that is
a related party of the entity,

A related party transwction is a transfer of resources, services, or obligatioms between related parties, regardless
of whather a price i charped.

In the accompanying consolidated fnancial statements, EastPhanma Ltd., EadPharma S.ARL.. EastPharma
[lag Uretim Pazarlama A5, Lypanosys Pic Ltd and Saba Tlag Sanaya ve Ticarct A5, the key management

and Board of Dhrectors, close members of the family of any indnadeal who directly or mdirectly
comtrols the Company ane considered and refierred to as related parfies
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1. BASIS OF FRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (comi'd)

L

2.7 Sumnary of Sigaificani Acconmiing Policies fcont’d)
Segmental Information

The Group classifies its operations into three business segments: production and sale of human pharmacesticals,
weterinary products and other. These scgments are prepared sccarding o the TFRS 8. The Group does not have amy
significant assct outside Turkey,

Share Capital and Dividends

Ordinary and preferred shares are classified as equity. Dividends distributed on ordinary shares and prefemed
stocks are recognised less any retained earnings in the period in which they are annomced.

Taxation apd Deferved Tax

Turkish tax legislation docs pot pernuat & parent company and its subsidiary to file 8 copsolidated tax retarn,
Terefore, providons for taves, as reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial satements arc
calculated om 4 separnie-entity basis.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax cumently payable and deferved rax.
Currend fax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the vear. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the income statement becawse it excludes items of income or expense that are maxable or deductible in other
years and it funtber excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's Hability for cumrent wx is
calenlated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Ligferred fax

Deferred tax is recognized on differences berween the carrying amousts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases which is nsed in the computation of taxable profit, and is acconnted
for using the balance sheet liability method, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all raxable
emporary differences and deferred tax assets are recoguized for all deductible temporary differences o e
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from
poodwill or from the ingtial recogmition (other than in a business combimation) of other asscts and labalitics m a
tramsaction tet affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax linbilities are recogmsed for taxable temporary differsnces associated with ivestmems in
subsidiarics and associates, and mterests in joimt ventures, except where the entity s able to control the reversal
of the temporary differsuce and # is probable that e emposuy difference will pot reverse in the foresceable
fumire, Deferred tax ascets arising from deductible remporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temperary differcces and they are expected to reverse in the foresecable
fisture
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1

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont"d)
2.3 Swmmuary of Sigeifican Acconniing Polioles {eom"d)
Tnxation and Deferred Tax {cont"d)

Deferved tax foont'd)

The carrying smount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that
it 15 1o loager probable that sufficient txable poofits will be available 1o allow all or part of the ssset 1o be
recovered.

Deefrred tax assets and labilities are measured an (he tax races thar are expectad 1o apply in the period in which
the lisbility is setthed or the asset realised. based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been emacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measrcment of defermed tax habilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would Follow from the maneer in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, 1o
recover or sefile the carying amounst of its assets and labilities. Defermed tax assets and lisbilities are offsst
when there is a legally enforceable right to sef off cument tax assets apainst cusvent tax liabilities and when they
relate fo meome 1axes levied by the same txation authority and the Group mntends to settle s cumment tx assels
anad liahilitizs on a net hasis.

Emplovment Termination Beweflis

Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sam payments ane nade to employess retiring or involuntanily
leaving the Group, Such pavients are considered as being pant of defined retirenwent bepefit plan & per
Inermational Accounting Standard No: 19 (revisad) “Emploves Benefits™ ("TAS 197). The retirement benefit
obligation recopmised in the balance shect represents the present vahoe of the defined benefit oblipstion as
addjusted for urecogmised actuarial gains and losses.

Starement of Cash Flows

I statement of cash flow, cisb Nows are classified as from operating, iwestment and fmace activities, Cash
and cash equivalems comprise cath on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly Hiquid
investments.

Government Grawts and Incentives

Cirants from the povernment are recognized st thelr far valie by accnal basis, where there B a reasomble mamance
that the grant will be receqved and the groop will conmply with all stached conditions.

Gowvernment prants relating to costs ane defiemed and recognized i the income statement over the period necessary
1o maichy dvem with the costs that they are imlended to conmpensate, Govenmunent granis relating t propenty, plant and
equipnsent and intangible assets are mchoded ourent and pon-current liabilithes &5 deferved povenmpent grants and
are credited ko the meome stalement on & straighe-line basis over the expected tives of the rebated assets.

The Group receives asistae fom Scieniific and Teclmological Research Councll of Turkey (TUBITAK™).
TUBITAE nms & program b orpanize and repalane the Republic of Turkey™s suppon s enoouraps ressarch snd
techmology development sctivithes of the industries in Turkey. Within the framework of this program. a certain
portron of the development expenditares of the industrial companies ane rambuarsed.
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(Asounts cxpressed in Teabduh Lin “TRY™ wless othernise stated.)
2. RASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont"d)
2.3 Summwary of Signiflcant Accounting Palicles feont'd)
z. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertaloty
il ety s iirs

In e proces of applying the cutity's acoomting policies, the Groap Mamganen! s made de fllowing
Juelgents that have the most sigmificant effect on e amouts recogmised i he fnancial statements,

Recoverabilify of infernal{y-generated intangible assefs

An imtermally-generated intangible asss arsing from developmet (o from the development phase of an intemal
progect) 15 recognized ondy if the technsal feasibility and the miention to complete the miangble assct. the ability
to use or sell the intangibbe asset are demonstrated, how the intangible asset will penerate probabile fiotre sconomic
benefits is detennined, adegueie techuical, Asancial and other iesources (o conplele the developunent and o use o
1l the intangible aseet is available and the expendinmre anribuable w the intangible asset during its development
can be relisbly measured. Onbver development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognized as expense
when merred.

During the period, mansgement recomsidered the recoverability of its mtermally-generated itangible assers,
Mazmgement believes the projects will continue a5 expected and basd on this analysis managanenl conlnnes o
anticipate similar revennes from the projects. Management 5 confident that the camying amount of the assets will
be recovered m full, sven if estinued revenues are reduced. This situation 15 chosely monitored by management,
and adjustments made in fishwe periods if fumre market activity indicates that such adjustments are apgroprate.
Dhugiigg, the vear endsd 31 December 2018, the Group Mamgement lus. recognized net book value of TRY
52031392 an bnpaiment loss, and writien-off the mnpaired smoms fom capitalized developiment costs and
product licenses and rights (31 December 2017: TRY 25.950. 7900 (Note 13),

Intanglble assel recognized on business combination

The acquisition of subsidiaries and businessss are sccounted for wsing the purchase method. The cost of the
acquisition is measured af the aggregate of the fair value, ot the date of exchange, of assets given. liabilities
mcnrred or assumed, and cquity instrioments issuwcd by the Groap in cxchange for control of the acquirce, phis
amy costs directly artribatable to the business combination. Valustion was conducted 1o serve as a basis for
allocation of the parchase price to the various classes of assets acquired in accordance with TFRS 3 “Business
Combinations™ and TAS 38 “Inangible Astets”. For TFRS 3 and TAS 38 purposes, the standard of value is
fair valoe defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability setiled, between
knowledpgeable, willing partics. In determining the fair valoe of the mtangible assets, the three traditional
approaches e valuation were considerad: the cost approach, the market approach and the income approsch.
The eost approach was wilized in the valustion of tse Group's customer relationships as well as in valuing the
total assemiled workforce, which is not considered as a separately identifiable intangible asset for financial
reporting purposes. The income approach was utilized i armiving at the valse of the acquired product nights,
license and supply agreement.
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{Aumcuaty cxprensed i Turkinh Lin “TRY™ wslew otherwise stated )
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

2.3 Sumnary of Siguificant Acconnting Policles feont'd)
z. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (cont'd)
Deferred fax assels

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded wsing substantially enscred tax rates for the effect of emporary
differences between book and tax bases of assets and lisbilities, Covently, there are deferred tax assers
resulting from eperating doss carry-forwards and daductible temporary differences, all of which could reduce
taxable income in the futre. Based on available evidence, both positive and ive, it is determined whether
it is probable that all or & portion of the deferred tax assets will be realised The main factors which ane
considered include funme earnings potential, cunlative losses i recet years, history of loss carry-forwands
and other 1ax assets expiring, the carry-forward period asseciated with the deferred 1ax assets; furure reversals
of existing taxable temporary differences; tax-planming strategics that would, if necessary, be implemented, and
the nature of the income that can be used to realise the deferred tax asset. I based on the weight of all available
evidence, it is e Group's belief that taxable profit will ot be available sulficient (o utilise some portion of
these deferred tax assets, then some portion of or all of the deferred tax assets are not recopnised. As of 31
Decemnber 2018 and 31 December 2017, as a result of the assessment made, the Group has recognized deferred
tax assets becanse it is probable that taxable profit wall be avaslable sutficient to recognize defermed tax asscts.

Impatrnrent of goodwilt

Determunmg whether goodwill 15 mmpaired requires an estimation of the value 1n use of the cash-generating
units fo which gooduwill kas been allocated. The vabie in nse ealculbation requires. the Group to estimate the
fiumure cash fows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit (CGLT) and 2 suitable discount tale in order o
caloulate present value, The recoversble amounts of e CGUs are determined from valoe i uwse calculations.
The key assunyptions for the value in use caloutations are the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to scllmg prices and direct costs during the period.

The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect curent market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific 1o the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes
in sclling prices and direct costs arc based on past practiees and expectations of fisure changes in the mearket.

As of 3] Decennbser 2008, the recoverabile anwout of the cash-generating units is determined based on the valuee
i wsz calculation which wses cash fow projections based on (nanciz]l budgets spproved by mansgement
covering a five-vear period, and a discount rate of 20.9% per annum. Cash flows bevond that five-year period
have been extrapolated by wsing a steady real growth rate of 7.7% which mflation rate forecast between the
years H024-2028 for Turkey. The impairment testing is performed anmily.

For the impainment testing the Company considerad the higher of the fair valve less costs to sell of the cach-

g unit of 3ts value in use, The fair value Jess costs to sell is determined by using market approach
which melnded guideline comparty method, pusdeline ramsction neethod and pubilicly waded stock of the cah-
geverating unil, Fair value less cost to sell also icorporated the vabes in use cakealated from the cash flow
projections approved by the manapement. Weighting factors were utilized o conchade on the fair value of the
cash-generating unit.

As at 31 December 2018, there were no indicators of impairment and therefore the Group did not test poodwill

for inpairmend. As at 31 Decanber 2018, no inpairment loss is recoguized in the acoompanying consolidated
financial statements.
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1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
2.3 Swnmary of Significant Acconnting Polleies fconr'd)

2. Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty {cont"d)
Net realizable value

Toventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable vabee, Costs, including an appropriate portion of
fixed and variable overbead expenses, are assigned 1o inventories held by the method most appropaiate 1o the
particular class of inventory, with being valued on standard costing basis. At the end of the each reporting
period, the standard costs are updated based on the actual costs. Net realizable value represents the estimated
selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs nacessary 1o make a sale.

When the net realizable value of inventory is Jess than its cost, the inventory is written down to the net
realizable value and the expense 1 mchoded in statement of meome / (loss) in the period the write-down or loss
occurred, According to the calculations based on the manapement’s assumpdions, a part of the inventories are
written down o their net realizable vahee since the net realizable valoe of these inventories is kess than their
ool

Provision for litigations

T determining of provision for litigations, te Group considers the probability of legal cases 1o be resailied
apainst the Group and in case it is resulted against the Group considers its consequences based on the
assessments of leznl advizor. The Group management makes its best estimates using the available dotn are
provided in Note 16,

Provision lor douldflul receivables

Provision for doubifil receivables is an estimated amount that management believes to reflect possible futare
losses o existing receivables that heve collection risk due to curent economic conditions. During the
impairment test for the receivables, the debtors are assessed with their prior year performances, their credit risk
in the enrrent market, their performeance aficr the balance shoet date up 1o the issuing date of the financial
statements; and also the renspotiation conditicns with these debdors are considered. The provision for doubtful
receivables 5 mentioned m the Note 7.
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{Amounes expressed m Tarkeh Liss “TRY™ uebess odberwiss stasod. |
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {cont"d)
2.4 Comparathes informeations and restatement of prier peried finaneiel sttements
The Group's cument peviod finwncial stlements e prepared compartively with the previous period.

and prior year other operating expense lave been uetied off i order o confinn with pressutation of curent
leTems.

wear (imancial sta
1 January 2018 - Reclassified Eechassified
Previously report nmotnt
Orher operating income 55622462 (35.622.462) -
Other opemting expenss (<) (56.751.873) 55.622.462 (L129.411)
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a,

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

As of 31 Decemsber 2018 the business segments are production and sale of human pharmacewticals, veterinary
products and other, Other sepment includes sale of cologne and other products.

Veterinary

31 Decembar 2013 Human pharma produsts Oihwr Total
External sales P62.309.526 GLOS0.115 16.987.307 LMOGTT.0M8
Cost of sales (167.200.147) (30.521.0659) (11535.871) [518.658.572)
Oypernting expenses (265.966.252) (2.472.024) (1.150.059) (276.588.335)
Sepment results 229.432.227 12096437 3901377 245 430,04 1
Ouher operating income 48470653
Other operating expenses (<) [16.673.492)
Irvestment income 551.13%
Fimance experres (=) (121.817.774)
Tcome tax expense (<) (19608, 430)
Profit for the year 136.360.117

—m

Distribution of the Group’s products by the two bagest wholesalers i the Turkish market comesponded to

i 26% and 39% of the revemnes of the Human Fharmaceuticals business line derived from Turkey
{31 December 2017: 27% and 38%). As of 31 Decemsber 2018, two customers nepresented 20% and 30% of the
total trade and other receivables balance, respectively (31 December 2017 24% and 20%4).

allocate its other expenses on segment base,
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i, SEGMENTAL INFORMATION {cont"d)

Veterinary
31 December 2007 Human pharms products Dther Vtal
Extenml sales T42 659 989 47881260 9753863 BOD295.112
Cont of sales (416.080.051) [30.824.733) (&, 188.546) (455.053.332)
Operating expenses (205 147.454) (BB38.060) {1.468.900) [215.434.513)
Segmemt results 121431484 B218.456 96327 129.747267
Cther operating income 21704331
Oiher operatmg expenses (-) (7.119.418)
Tnvestment incoms 10195637
Imvesimeent expenses {-) (734330
Fimance expenses (-) (60L193.735)
Incoms tax expense (-) (2.037.073)
Profit for the year BL5426TS
4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Petty cash 91.95¢ 67,952
Casly im banks 120.937.562 7655194
Denrand deposis 20785300 rasra
Tinte deposits IO FTIOT2 T0.403.073
Cashi and cash equivalents i cash flow statement 121.029.521 7723146
Interest income sccruals £6.103 146.721
FINTECTY Zizmse

As of 3] December 2013, the Group bas Euro US Dollar and TRY time deposits. The average méeres! mie
for, Earo time deposit is 2,98% US Dallar time deposit is 2.24% and TRY fime deposit i %623,22 (The
Gaoup has Ewro US Dollar amd TRY tinee deposit as of 31 Docemlser 2017 amd it*s average inberest e for
Furo fime deposit is 2,33% U5 Dolla time depost is 4,20% msd TRY time deposit is 12.00%), All of the
fnamcial imvesiments are shon term and have a maturity of one wonth

The Ciroup dioss not have any blocked depesins as of 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2017,
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-8

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Shoet term bank loans 307211.508 BR579.373
Carrent pontion of lomg term loans: 124.438.883 108.617.359
Current portion of bonds issoed (*) 11.2 16,669 102741323
Total short term financial liabilities 442 867.062 296,938,055
Loag term portion of bank loass 140.115.298 191,355,369
Bonds ssed (%) 144.595.179 -
Total long tenn financial liabilities 254.710473 191.355.369
Total financial labilites 737577, ABE 203 424

(*)The Group issned corporste bonds amoumting o TRY 50,000,000 with two years manrity. quarerly
floating interest rate and coupon payments and 63.000.000 with thres vears matariry, wmm
imterest rate and coupon payments. The bonds were sold on 7 May 2008 only o qualified imcestors. Annual

simple yield of the boad is caleulated by adding 325 basis points for TRY 30,000,000 boed and 350 basis
points for TRY 65.000.000 bond over the snnim] compound yield of “reference government bomd”. As of
msuance dale, annual singple bond yield were %1 7,06 and %1731 and compound boad yield were %:18,19
and %1847, respectively.

The effective interest rate of TRY 80,000,000 is 23,58% as at 31 December 2018 and discoumied estimaied
fisture cash payinents trough the expected Efe of the Guancial ability i calculated as TRY 85,970,007,

The effective interest rate of TRY 65,000,000 is 23, 86% as at 31 December 2018 and discountzd estimaled
fsnare cash payiments through the expected life of (e Onascial Habiliny is calendated s TRY 69.841.837.

0 Bank loans and bonds lssaed

Repayient schedule of bank bormowings is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Lesa than 1 year or o be paid on demand 442 B67.062 206 938,055
T bee e betwveem 1-2 years 164,402,151 66,000,471
To be paid hetween 2-3 vears $76T5.630 ATATENIT
To be paid betwesn 3-1 years 20 180,542 47,180,983
To be paid between 4-5 years 2352941 19,777,778
727577535 488,203 424
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&

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {coat"d)
i) Bank loaws {rontd)
Shaort term bank loans consist of the following:

Carmency Wiighted Average 31 December  Curmency Wieighted Average 31 Decenber
Type Effective Interest Rate Principal 2018 Twpe Effective Interest Rate Principal 017
TRY 155 23B.547.668 188547658 TRY 14,3% 73202828 73202823
EUR 0, 7% 2500000 15.070,000 EUR 0,8% 2500000 11.288.750
Accred inserest 3593840  Accreed imerest

1.087.793

Short fenn bomowings comsist of spot and revolving liee of credits with several benks amd camy fixed and floaring rate iterests. As of 31 December 2018 amd 31
Discember 2017, the iotal available lines of credits are TRY 1478 610,515 and TRY 1253243 255, respectively. The principal and intersst is paid on the nesturity. The
agreeinents luve no expiration dsic undess there is a breach of contrast which woald melide ponpayment of nberest amd principal within ibe maburity.

Short term portion of long tenn bank loans consists of the following:

Currency Weighted Average 31 Decomber  Currency Weighted Average 31 December
Type Effective Inferest Rate Principal 018 Tpe Effiective Inferest Rate Principal 2017
TRY 13,3% 110408617 110408617 TRY 121% 04,554,222 94,664,222
ELUR 5% 1.023.714 6170948 EUR 2% 825429 3.727.223
Acomed mbcrest

1859320 Accrocd imferest
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5 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (comt"d)
i) Bank loans (cont"d)

Long term bank loans comsist of the following:

Currency Weaghted Average 31 December  Currency Weighted Average 31 December
Type Effeciive Tnterest Rate Principal Wik Type Effective | Tate Priwcipal 2017
TRY 15.3% 120,663,608 129.663.608 TRY 14.6% 178,903,535 17E.903,555
EUR 2.9 1.733.857 10451690 EUR 2. 5% 2757571 12.451.814
140,113,206 191.333.369

. ...} b
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5 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (comt'd)

1) Bank loans {cont™d)
Tlee details of the Grotgp™s short term and bong term borrowings ane as follows:

%)

k)

<)

€

]

i

A loan of TRY 11.000.000 (2017: TRY 22.000.000) was drawn down on 23 December 2014, Repaymoents
of interest and principal commenced on 23 Jupe 2015 and will comtime till 23 December 2019 semi-
anmually. The loan carries imterest of 11,15%. This boan is also secured by the Group's beadquarter building
located ar Halkaly at an amoont of TRY 35,000.000 (Mo 17)

A loan of TRY 36.111.112 (20017 TRY 50.555.55%) was drawn down oo 14 Jamuary 2016, Repayments of
interest and priscipal commenced on 16 Jamsry 2017 and will comtinne 1l 14 Jamuary 2021, The loan
caries imverest of 14.60%. Repayments of interest and principal will be on semianmeal basis. This loan is
aleo secured by the Group™s fctory buibdmgs locatsd a1 Cerkezkty and caber buildings” nsortgages at an
mnount of TRY 33,000,000 (Note 17).

A loan of TRY 82500000 (2017: TRY 11.550.000) was drawn down on 05 Febnmry 2016, Repayments of
imterest and prmcipal conmenced on 05 August 2016 and will continue 6l 05 Febnuary 2021, The loan
cavies imerest of 14,83%. Repayments of interest and principal will be on semiammeal bagis. This loan is
also secumed by the Group®s two lands located st Cerkerk0y at an amount of TRY 84000000 (Notz 17).

A loan of Fiwo 1.567 857 (2017: EUFR 2.195.000) was drrwn down on 25 May 2016. Repayments of interest
and principal commenced on 25 May 2018 and will contimne till 25 May 2021, The loam camies interest of
EURIBCR 442,45, Repayments of interest and principal will be on seniamnian] basis.

A loan of TRY 22666667 (2007: TRY 30.222.227) was drawn down on 23 Sepember 2016, Repagnnents
of interest and principal commencad on 22 September 2017 and will continue il 23 September 2021, The
loan carries imterest of 13.30%, Repayments of interest and principal will be on scrnannial basis. This boan
is also secured by the Group's factory bulldings located at Cerkezkiy and other buildings” monigages at an
amount of TRY 34.000.000 (Note 17,

A loan of Euro 1.189.714 (2017; EUR. 1.388.000) was drawn down on 16 December 2006. Repaynscots of
interest and principal will be commenced oo 17 December 2018 and will contmue till 16 Decensber 2021
The loan cames meerest of EURIBOR+3:2.45, Repayments of interest and prncipal will be on senmansunl
basis,

A loan of TRY 31110111 (2007: TRY 40.000.000] wos dmwn down on 16 Jasuary 2007, Repayments of
sterest and principal commenced on 16 Jamuary 2018 and will costisse ull 17 Jamuary 2022, The boan
camies mnberest of 13.95%. Repayments of inberest nnd principal will be on semannmsal basis,

A Joam of TRY 23.333.333 (2017: TRY 30.000.000) wes drawn down on 27 April 2017, Repoyments of
imterest and principal commenced oa 27 Apail 2018 and will continue Hll 27 April 2022, The loan cumies
maanthly interest of 1,15%. Repayments of imerest and principal will be on semiansual basis.

A loan of TRY 19.600.000 (2017 TRY 20.000.000) was drawn down on @ October 2017, Repayments of
interest and principal commenced an 9 kmaary 2018 and will contimss till 9 October 2009, The loan camies
inferest of 14,20%. Repayments of interest and principal will be on quarterty basis.

A loan of TRY 480000000 (2017: TRY 60,000.000) was drawn down on 28 December 2017, Repayments of
interest and principal commenced on 2% Jone 201% and will conrinoe Gl 28 December 2032, The loan
caries nperest of 16,73%, Repayments of interset and principal will be on semianmual basis. As of 3 Jaguary
2017, this loan is also secured by the Group’s land located st Cerkerkio 31 an amount of TRY 12900000
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5 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (cont'd)
) Bank loans {cont™d)
k) A loan of TRY 40000000 (2017: None) was drawn down on 19 Mach 2012, Reperyments of iverest and
principal will be conmenced on 19 March 2009 and will contime 611 20 March 2023, The an canies
imterest of 16,95%. Repayments of interest and principal will be on quarierly basis.

I} The Group has spot boans amounting to TRY 234,776,776 (2017 TRY 65.300.000), with an avernge mferest
of 25,50% and TRY 3. 7200892 used to loans with no interest. {2017: TRY 7.902.828).

m) The Group has spot laans amounting to Euro 25000000 (301 7: EUR 2.500.000), with an average interest of
065%.

The Groap wses its notes receivables as collaserals for its revolving boans. As of 31 December 2018, the amount

of the notes recervables given as collaserl 18 TRY 209.747.000 (31 December 2017: TRY 53.600,000),

if) Obligations under Amance beases

Mone (2017: None).
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6, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation: therefore they are not disclosed in this note.

31 December 2018
Receivables Payables
C’lh'l'g'li om-Gurmend Climent Nom-ciarment
Trading Won-trading Trading Mon-trading Trading Momn-trading Tmding  MNos-trading
- - - 5.713.990 - - -
Saba [lsg Sanayi ve Ticaret A5, 11,620,379 - . - - - = =
11.620.379 - - - $.713.000 - - -
1 Tasuary - 31 D her 2018
Goods/Services Tterest Rt Royalty  Other income
‘Transactions with related parties Purchases Sales received Interest given income expenses (*) {**)  Oiber expense
Shareliders

East Fharma S ARL. 19,445,523 ] - - i 22216464 & -
Saba Hag Saanyi ve Iimrﬂ&.. . 1.258.358 15,683,219 1.827.729 - G8T.685 1.797.038 364134 412.677
20,702,183 15.683.229 28T - GBT.685 14,013,502 364134 412.677

(*) Pursaant 1o the ters of the agrecment related 1o e purchiase of Roche product licenses sigeed between Deva Holding A5, and iits main shareholder EastPlesma SARL,
the Group is liable to pay a royalty amount for the product licenses acquired through Eastpharma SARL calculated over the net sales of the products. The royalty percentages
have bezn amived at on the basis of a valuation carried out by an independent valoer not connected with the Group and one of the accredited independent auditors by Capital
Markets Board on 10 August 2018, with an up<dated Valuation Report which is effective by April 2018 The valuation was amrived at by economic approach method
predicated on disconnted cash flow,

(**) Other income consists of commission income received from the sale of Saba llag products, the Group's related party,
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{Amousts sxpreserd in Torkish Lim “TRY™ mless otheranse dated )
6, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cont™d)

31 December 2017
Receivables Payabl
£ Non-cuurent Current Nou-current

Trading B lrading Truding Hon-trading Truding Hon-trading Truching Mos-lrading

- - - - 3.662.174 - - -

11.793.004 - - - - - - d

11703004 = = - 3.682.174 - = =

] ]
_ 1 January - 31 December 2017
Goods/Services Iaterest Royalty Other income

Transactiomns with related partie Purchaces Sl received Trsterest given Rt imoonme expences (%) (*9)  Dther expense
Sharetiolders

East Phamu S.AR.L. 20.157.230 - - - - 13.356.468 - -

G6.066.5TE 10,315,522 1.918.763 - 451,657 - 1.423.525 -

86223 508 I¢.3I$.ﬂ£ 1.918.753 - A31.657 13356468 1-423.52_5 -

(*) Pursaant to the terms of the agreement related to the purchase of Roche product licenses signed between Deva Holding A5, and its main sharelwolder EastPharma SARL,
the Group is Hable to pay a rovalty amount for the product licenses acquired through Eastpharmm SARL calenlated over the net sales of the products. The royalty percentages
have been amived at on the basis of a valuation camied out by an independent valuer not conmected with the Group and one of the accredited independent anditors by Capiral
Markets Board on 27 February 2015, with an updated Valuation Report which is effective by January 2015. The valuation was arrived at by economic approach method
predicated on discounted cash flow.

(**) Other income consists of commission income received from the sale of Saba llag products, the Group's related party.
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6.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (contd)
Loams used by nelated parties for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 Decensber 2017 are stated below:

31 Decemlser 2008
Onginal  Maturity Imterest Shoet term
CLTEEY [Dhay) Hate % Paables
Loanis ued by related parties
Subsidsarics
Dewatis Lid US Daollar 9 20% 344.366
MZ Dallar L] 200%% 3.015.500
31 Decenmber 2007

CUITENEY (Do) Rate %4 Payables

Lo e Dy peldated parties

Devatis Ltd US Dallar n 2,0% 344366
MNEZ Dallar 9 0% 3.015.500

Total anount of compensation benefits provided 1o directors and upper level managers, include the salanies,
premiums and retirement pay for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 20107 are stated below:

1 Jamuary- 1 Jensmnary-

31 December 31 December

eenisation of k (RO 2018 17
Salaries and short-term benefits 31,569,668 25270015
Lomg-term benefits IT13T 321594
ITa30.807 T3 600 607
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T

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Trade Receivables

31 Decomber 31 December
Current inde receivaliles 2018 2017
Trade receivables 144,347,107 £7.978,754
Motes recsivable 240.387.242 195208 998
Driscount on nodes recervables () . (2.850,525)
Dnse from related parties (Mote 6) 11,620,379 11.793.004
Dther trade receivables 29,206 48,722
Income acerals {*) 12.863.613 SB3R058
Puovision for doulfil receivalbiles () (7.185.987) (5964754

09,061 S50 E

As of 3] December 2018 and 3| December 2017, the Group provided providion for imeollectable pant of its
past due trade and other receivables. mm:orumummwummmmwm
Duzing 2017, the average credit period on sales i 100 days (31 Decemlser 2017 100 days).

(*) The Gromp receives government related to developnsent costs. The balance mchides the income
sccrual for the gants received from TUBITAK (Scientific md Tectmologionl Resenrch Councl of
Twkey), As of 31 December 2018 TUBITAK income accrual ansoumnts (o TRY 12.493 260 (31 December
2007 TRY 5.506,024),

Collaterals held for trade receivables that are neither past nor due #s 3t the balance sheet date, are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Lenter of guaranioes received 42.752.609 27.980.140
A2 TR EE 7 080140

The Group's principal financial assets are rade and other receivables, amd mvestments, The Growp's credit
risk is primarily armibutable to itz wade receivables. As of 31 December 20018, rwo customers represented
20% and 30% of the woial wade and other receivables balance, respectively (31 December 2017: 24% and
29%).

The Compeny 15 he destribistcs of the Saba llag A.5's. o related pary, pmmmlmm in addition,
giving toll mannfacnmwing, finance, adminiswative and R&D services. Receivable amoumting to TRY
11.620.379 in related party mansactions node, related 1o these iransactions (Note 5).

The allowance for trade recervables is provided based on the estimated nrecoverable ansoants from the sale
of goods, determined by reference to past default experience and curremt financial structure of custonsers.

Th:bmmm of the allowance for doubtfill receivables for the year ended 31 December 2012 and 2017 i
i H-wl't.

1 Janusary- 1 Jamuary-

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Balance at | January 5.984. 754 6.269.025
Chargs for the year 515,530 -
The effect of TFRS 9 [Note 2) 782607 -
Collections {96.804) {2B4.271)
Balance at 31 December 7.183 987 5084754
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T TRADE RECETVABLES AND PAYABLES (cont"d)

I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Tirmade Praxabies
31 December 31 December
Current trade poyatiles 2018 2017
Trade payable 78,608, 25) 62,150,141
Tnter payahle RTRA @297
Dus b related praties (Noie: 8 (*) 5713990 1682174
Expanse sccrasls () 1,105 7848 614025
Koyalty expence ncemals $1.872 353813
ECETF G703 400

(*) Az of 31 December 2018, rovalry payable to Eastphanma 5.4 R.L for the sale of products that

Eastpharna
5.ARL. holds the rights is TRY 5.713.990 (31 December 2017: TRY 2.995.249). Eastpharma S ARL.

bodds Turkey rights of 17 Roche products acquired in 2008, Eastphanma S A RL. also holds the right of
ome Roche produwet in 17 different foreign countries. As of 31 December 2018, there is no payable amoun

to Eastplarma S ARL. related with the raw material purchase from F. Hoffimn ~ La Roche
December 2017: TRY 686.925).

Lid (31

(**)As of 31 December 2018, expemse accruals inclode mmover premium provision amounts to TRY

613,287 (3] Decemiber 2007 TRY 434.204),

MNotes pavables consist of cheques given to suppliers with matusities bess than | year, As of 31 December

2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group has no long term trade paysbles.

8  OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

31 Decamber 31 December

Other current neceivables 208 017

Onbser receivables 367.401 357.263

Due from persomnel 92541 BE.224

Provision for other dowbtfil receivables (<) (48.906) (48 906)

Diepersiis aml gamanioes given 63.237 63 848

474273 460,420

The movement of the allowance for other doubtfal receivables for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017
is as follows:

1 Jamary- 1 Januazy-

31 Decemiber 2008 31 Decender 2017

Balance at 1 Jammry AR, M 1967 819

Provisions no bonger requined - {1.918.933)

Balance at 31 December 8. 2046 48906

31 Decendber 11 Decenbier

Ovtiver curvent pavables 2018 2017

Deposits and guarantees received 263,845 189.395

Other carment payabies 12129997 981.712

2493842 1171107
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LS

INVENTORIES
31 December 31 Decensher
2018 2007
Faw materials 139575020 115.433.840
Wiork-in-progress 33,616,071 27,549,462
Finashed goeds 111,842,253 B1.B42.376
Other invendories 623,962

Allowsmes for dingiution i value of inveniories (<) 59.!’9‘3.62%% ??.WS.I‘!QE

As o' 31 December 2018, i | iwenbory o TRY 425000000 (31 Decomber 2007 TRY
30,000, OO,

Allowance for dinsirution i value of invenionies has been recognized as expense in cost of goods sold and
the clistrilnion of allvwance by inveniory ilem is as follows:

31 December 31 Deecensber

2018 2017
Raw materials 5918577 1165619
Work-m-progress TBE.665 202448
Finished goeds 2 ER5.986 2.137.063

503 628 9508, 130

‘The movement of allowance for dimimution in value of imentories is as follows:

1 Jammary- 1 Jameery-

31 December 31 Decomber

2018 2017

Balance at 1 Jasmary SH05.130 11,564,904

Provision for the year 999,814 G.035A4TT

Provision realised in year (LE11.316) t?.BlS.ZS!i
Balance at 31 December T.303.60% B0,
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0.  PFREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED REVENUE

11.

Advances given for property, plant & oqup.

Short term deferred revenne

Advances recerved
Defermed moome

ASSETS RELATING TO CURRENT TAX

Current assets relating o current tax

Prepaid withholding tax

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
2B.770.977 16.721.657
BE46.212 5.561.733
59.084 448213
IT.676.273 22 731.603
— ——

31 Decender 31 Decemben
201% 2017
25.190.986 19.873 407
25.190.986 19.8731 407
31 December 3] December
2018 2017
355251 3.066.617
2664 445 2314 550
3.129.696 7381167

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
26511 1.926.675
426511 1.926.675%
— ——

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
157.381 192 497
137.381 392.497
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12

FROFERTY, PLANT AND EQUIFMENT

Acquisition oos
Operung babace | Jagnary 1S
Additons

Cipenals
Transders from eonsimenon
Pt

Elercing bulance,

31 Dwcvnda 2008
Avomsilated deprroation
Operang balbnee | Janmary X018
i fisaons (¥)
Cpreciatat clunge

fiou the year

Copanals

Cloung talance,

B Decembar 2018

Carryng amount at
B Dacemsber 2003

Lamd Sdpchanery and Fuminae and Lessetuodd Comsdroction n
Lind __bopeesesti Tepazment Vebucher Fidw __lsproieionsts Trogmes, Tet
IR 2180.237 175015760 ITHI0 LE181 19655993 prrt ] 10843 68T E2315.TIS
- - - - b5 el 5284405 1414 62,760,130
{6585 (ra . (4.533) . (108215}

TEEATS 580028 5233185 {43301 Hﬂ-t
26.270 543 M9z 151, 500:081 411531356 1.910.367 HHIBFIF TR 31 736607 803 634
@I (FOE51. 151 (203875 168 1100005 21.7.286) (R B (255, R0, TP
! - (h1ERATE) . (h1BR4TH)
- 11804 (42705290 (2R214.404) (143536 (2105.805) {5.00M (23853376
- . prd ] 1,062 . 4845 . ig41%
A0 IALY (B3, 068 95003 {252 116 U] {1250 332) {2IHTTS ) CEIR. 85 7) L0, 25 1)
2827058} 1837681 148631001 181303272 G50 6D 11051 396 43.981 31734607 A0 515 401

™) TRY 3.139.473, partial depweciation charge of nuachinery
capitnlized in cost value of intangible assets in respect of TAS 16 and TAS 38 (Note 13) as the projects ane in progress a= at 31 December 2018,

As of 31 Decamber 2018, imsared property, plant and cquipment amoams to TRY 1.156.171.000 (31 December 20017: TRY 822.807.000).

The Group's leadquaster building and faciory s otber buildings located in Kocaeli Kartepe
wserd al an amoust of TRY 55,000,000, TRY 200000000, TRY 32000000, TRY 34.000.000, TRY §.400.000, TRY 16.2000000 and 12 900000 respectively (Note 17)
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12

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cunt’d)

Lamd Mscheuy sl Furmihure sad Ladsshold  Conitmston m

Lamd IR Baidings ol Vel Fixires O T Progres Tiotal
Arguation fw
Dpemung bakace | lanasry 567 IRTI0ARE LIU R 1M MazOm (L E LT wTRLA LTI ITLEAE LEL. 343§ M0A1E
it - ILT -] - - TR 1.9EE. 515 . TS 361 892 TIAMRAIE
Ciepanals (15455 200) 4510 388) (37 5445 . . (0T
Transfers from consinction in
TR [ 20423 740 0345 850 - BRI 590
Closieg balance,
1 Db 2007 2B 270533 1. ITH137 173005, TER 373250130 LT 161 HE53 ¥93 ITERE L0743 57 SILLSLT19
Acomzilatad et
Opening balnce | Tanmary 36 7 425340 {27.065.961) (185 634 368) 14,631 956 (201401390 (208,650 - 401835600
Beclevafirasions () . E (1.930.575) . . . (1930575
Deprociatan charpe
fior the year [LIEEE]] (3781 300) (206 T 209) [ ERL iR L1 B8LA09) O [EEC R R [l ]
Cwipols . . B 48T 0 & 2R3 hal LR . (P B
Claumg bulance
31 Decemsber 5007 (T2 {30541 261 (208875 1650 1008588 {21,770 258) [l 0] 258,518 T
Carrymng amount st
ki Dscwmibar 5017 28270543 185000 1444, Ot A 171404051 19474 T L] 10745 057 364827900

(*) TRY 1930.575, partin] depreciation chage of machinery and equipment is disecily attritnable jo development costs related to product licenses and rghts, The balance is
capitalized in cost value of intaigible assets in respect of TAS 16 and TAS 38 (Node 13) ax the profects ane in progress as al 31 Decenber 2007,

As of 31 December 2017, inswred property, plant and equipment amoants to TRY $22.807.000 (31 December 2016; TRY T73.078.000),

and land in Gerkezkay are pledged against e bormowings
used ar an amount of TRY 35,000,000, TRY 20,000,000, TRY 35,000,000, TRY 34.000.000, TRY £.400.000 and TRY 16,200,000 respectively (Nose 17).

Tiee Group's headquarter building and factory and other buildings located in Kocaeli Kartepe
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12.  PROFERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ront'd)

Deprecintion periods for property. plant and equipment, which approximate the useful lives of such

asscts. arc as follows:
Land improvements
Buibdings
Machinery and equpment
Vehicles
Fumiture and fixnares
Leasehold improvements

23-30 years
25-50 years
4-30 years

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated principally on a straight-line basis except land and
constuction in progress. The estinomted useflal Bves, ridual valuss and
each year end for the possible effects of chamge in estinsies, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

meibod are reviewsd al

Diepwecintion and smostization expense of TRY 21,039,519 (2017 TRY 19.606,037) has been clwged to
“eost of goods sold’, TRY 13.853.807 (2017 TRY 11.281 860) io 'operating expenses’ and TRY 5055 435

is caplalized on inventory (2017: TRY 4.085 782},
13,  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Prusdiard Licrsnes and Cumlotimr Capilaliend

Raghty el s, Develop Coats. Tetal
ACQUIETON 005
Oy balwoy, | Tesasry 2008 165 706,786 170513 A2 0001 54 BS54 453
Reclaiiifications. (] - ENENNEED EAREATS
Addiions (**) 7061763 71185 595 23047 558
Tramders from comimction in progrss 13 B4 333 {13 844 BE3) .
Thapaiak (14.574. 7200 141596 3510 (56.3T3.074)
Cloung balance, b1 December 2013 190733712 31,730,503 150,335 3%5 355355 2H)
Actunubaied sworiization
Opersingg halases, | Tamsaey MR (37.296.389) (1770590} {17.900.953) (Ta08 1AT)
Aanorticwtcn chaspe fof the yeie ¥ ERELEAT) BB 524) (ERDES 386}
Digpaiak 3.541 582 % 1 | AR
Chang balines, 31 December 1013 (83493 558} (1558 514) (17 90 95E) (33.373.041)
Cmmying amount, 31 Diecwmber 7018 127245143 17T 142 965 027 2T1562.159

(%) TRY 3.139.473, partial depreciation charpe of machinery and equipment is directly attributable 1o
development costs related 1o product licenses and rights and is capitalized in cost valoe of intangible
assets in respect of TAS 16 and TAS 38 as the projects are in progress a5 a1 31 December 2015 (Mot

12}

(**) Additions mainly consist of own-developed and unlicensed products.

As of 31 December 2018, capitalized fimancial expense amounts to TRY 4.002.338 (31 December 2017 TRY

1371.956).
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13, INTANGIBLE ASSETS (coni”d)

Product Liceneen Catorer Cogntahsed

and Righcs i Dervlor Cos Toal
Arquisiiion cosl
Opeuing balance, | Jansry 2017 144258 265 LR ENE] 143115466 2501042054
Peclassifications (¥} - . 1830474 1950475
Addibont () SR TIRENG 20.TR0E03
“Treanafis fooes constrachiog i progred 33.330.483 . (33,331 453) .
Dregurals (7,587 944 . 301430 135) (28 933.37%)
Chrang balance, 31 Devesber 2017 169, Tk B0 5730 313 142004154 315441 433
Accmmulbyed amortization
Opemung balance, | Jamuary 2007 (32.BXTEIN (1.535.468) (7220858 (72 334.005)
Amertaation chargs for the year {6791 26T (I35.524) - (5577991}
Drsposl 1303480 - - 1382439
Cloiny babewce, 31 Decvmber 2017 (57 236.139) (LT 715w [17.920.933) (16519331}
Carrying muoant, 31 December 2017 112470807 [ELEE L4080 196 1311116

{*) TRY 1.030.57%, partial depreciaticn charge of machinery and equipment is directly atributable to

development costs related to product licensss and rights and is capitalized in cost value of §

assets in respect of TAS 16 and TAS 38 as the projects are in progress as a1 3 1 December 2017 (Note

12y
(**) Additions mainly consist of own-developed mnd unlicensed products.

As of 3] December 2017, capitalized financial expense mmouts to TRY 2,572 956 (3] December 2016: TRY

2.399.213).

Amortization periods for intangible assets, which approximate the usefinl lives of such assets, are as follows:

Licenses amd righs 3-15 years
Customer relationship 20 years
Development costs 135 years
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I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. GOODWILL
31 Decenler 3] Drecemlser
2018 2017
Goodwill 1.782.731 1.782.731

On 14 March 2008, the Company's paremt Easpharms S ARL signad a definitive Asset Purchase
Agremment with F. Holfimann-La Rocle Lid (“Roche™) relating to the purchase of all rights, labalities and
registrations for eight Roche products registered in Turkey.

In mddition, on 16 May 2008, the Eastpharma 5. A R.L signed a License and Supply Agreement allowing
Eastpharma S ARL 1o lcense an additional eight Roche products on an exchusive basis for Turkey.
Company is a party to the apreements signed by its ultimste parent company, Eastpharma 5.ARLL.

There is no termination date for the Asset Purchase Agreement. The License and Supply Agreement will
remuin in fowce for five years as of effective date. Ar the expiry date, the Company has used the rnght to
extend the agrecment for sdditional three phas three years,

The pecessary regalstory approvals of the Turkish Competition Boad were oblaised on 16 May 2008 md (he
agreemwent hes become effective az of 19 Seplember 2008, The Company's parent Eastphamma S ARL
s ferred e rnights and registration of 14 plermaceuticals products in Turkey 1o Deva Helding A.S. within
the seope of Assel Purchase and Licemse and Supply Agreemwent,

The pimchase price was fusded through cash of TRY 18 897646 net of cash received G the past lermination
rights of the persome] ransfemed fo the Company. Based on the goodwill impainment test performed, there
s no indication of mypaiment as of 31 December 2018 (MNote 7).

Goodwill anising from ihe business combination is allecated o usan phanma segment and ihere is no
allocation to other segments as of 31 December 201E,

GOVERNMENT INCENTIVES AND GRANTS

31 December 31 December

2018 a7

Short tenm government graots and incentives (*) 1.777.379 1588006
1.717.379 155,006

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Long term government grants and incentives (*) 31.755. 886 20174443
I35, 586 20,170,113

(*) The Group receives government grants reksted to development costs. The balance consists of the income
acerml for the prants received from TUBITAK (Sciemtific and Techmological Research Coumcil of
Turkey). As the grant related to the assets is capitalized as development cost, consideration received or
receivable is recorded as deferred revenue. Deferred revenue is amortized over useful life of the asest to
maich the related expense in the income statement.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group received TRY 6858143 grant related with its
development costs. (31 December 2017: 3.874.705)
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15,

GOVERNMENT INCENTIVES AND GRANTS (ont"d)

The Group has 12 ongeing research and development projects approved by TOBITAK. The 5 new projects
are on the process which on the evalustion phase of the TUBITAK. The all ongoing projects has been
approved in 2018, Toml research and development expenses incurred during the vear ended 31 December
2018 relased with these projects amounted to TRY 37.333.793,

In May 2010, the Group obtained the license of Ressarch and Development Center within the scope of the

of Resexrch and Development Document numbersd 5744, This license permits expenses relaed to

AK and research and development center projects to be pantially fanded and exempt from tax, The

cash based payments 10 be made w0 Deva are identifled by ITAK within the context of esch project

basedd on the period expense. 60% of (be odal amonnt of approved expenses incarred 2006 has been paid in

cash, In addition, based on the approval of the expenses incurred in 201 8, 57% of the total expenses incummed
related with projects has been reconded as inoone acerual.

Total expenses related with project sunber 114407 that has been obtaived for Deva Kartepe Gicility for the
year 2018 mpount 1o TRY 2091549,

Total expenses related with project mumber 136611 that bas been obtained at 17.04.2018 for Deva Cerkerkiy
facility fiw the year 2008 amount ko TRY T.147.465.

Taotal expeses related with project numiber 501317 that has been olaained st 301062018 for Deva Ceakeekiy
fncility for the yemr 2018 amount so TRY 11 871,539,

The compamy also has 8 biotechnology project within the Thibitak program. Supporting Pablic Ingiations
Research and Development Projects For the project supported by the 1007 Program, advance payiment of
TRY 2.5201.228 in 2016, advance payment of TRY 1.368.742 and additional support payment of TRY
151870 in 2017, payments of TRY 1232100 and 1.455.710 in 2008 were faken from Tohitak. In this
progect, the amonnts eligible for suppernt are supported by 40% for the equipment and 100% for the odler
expenditares which are decided to be supported,

The expenses within the scope of research incemtive are exenipt from value added tax and custom tax, and
have different advamages i seope of other tax_
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16,

PROVISIONS
31 December 31 Decemiber
Slvort tenm provisione 2018 2017
Expense accruals dhac bo price regulation / change 2.910.002 1.463.110
Accrved sales discoums 4.338.690 1,979,391
Provision for legal claims 6.217 897 3,868 783
13,466 589 93011284
Expense iccruals due o Accued sales Provmaen for legal

price segulatyon dmoounts clums (*) Totl

Openmp balince,
| January JIR 1463110 LR b KL LBERTRY 301284
Clamge fo the year 1367343 32065002 SEI6H13 ALMA21E
Payments made dunag the year (20,500} (2750432 (L550143) (28.132278)
Reveral of provives . (T.346.281) (F15.356) {8.760.637)

Cloiay halance,
31 Diecamber 2018 2010,002 4338650 BATEST 13465589

Opening balimce,
| Jarmawy 3017 B66.100 21ETT 04 LTI 6535618
Charge fon the year bl $ 508 J2r03411 T4 530 E641676%
Payments made dunisg the year (331545} (ZL199.062) (L.773.627 (24209937
Heveral of provices - {£.907.493) (433 6343 {9.341.383)

Clofzg halance,
11 December X017 1463100 5979391 33783 DAL

(*¥ mﬁmmmmhrﬁwmmwmcmwmm Labor cases are related to
. debt related to labor contmcts and damage related to lobor contract, Tox coses are
whwu'nmvﬂu-emmu corporate tax, stammp duty and the related tax penaliies,

Total provisions for the legal cases opened and cumently pendmg against the Group represent the
Munngement's best estinsate of the Group's legal Liabilsty to claiming partics. The charge in the year of 2018
and 2017 mechude the provisons for the legal cases opened by the discharged personnel and fines received
from tax authority a5 & result of genernl inspections in ibe pharmaceutical secior im Turkey, Since there is
more than | begal case, potential cash outflows will be in the different penods, As of 31 December 2018,
TRY 6210997 represcots provision for legnl cases opened by discharged personncl and TRY 6900
represents provissen for fines recerved from tax aathonty,
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17, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Mostgage

Promutory notes [*)

Chasranies beilers given

Pledges (**]

Mongage

Promiveory manes [*)

Chasrantes beiters given

Pladges (*¥)

Currency 31 Decembex
Lurrency Typs e Btz 2oL
US Dallar - 50007 .
TRY 151.500.000 10000 y
181 500,000
TRY 4040000 1 OCeey 4.040.000
EUR - 60280 -
US Dollar - 5.2609 -
A H000
TRY 10,472 594 10000 10472390
AVRO 5780107 G.0280 34.842.480
VIS Daallar 20303y 8, 205000 106581 30
TRY 10000 -
PRI LR
Cureney 31 Docomber
Cumrency Type Halanice Rate 2007
US Daollar = ALe =
TRY 168600000 10000
168.600.000
TRY - KL Lt -
EUR - 4.5155 -
US Dollar - e =
TRY 12850807 10000 12850807
EUR 6.284.750 4.515% IRITE.TED
US Dollar 127.167 Ll L) 470061
A1 TR 25T
TRY - 10000 =
210300257

(*) Promissory noles are given as guarantess for the loans obtsined. As of 31 December 2018 our company
hs given TRY 1 440000 guarantes on behall of Sala Tlag Sanayi ve Ticaret A3 (2017 None)

(**) Pladges are given as guarantees for (be velicle loans oblained,

The legal, physical and admimistrative responsibilities af factory building lacated in Kartepe which belong 1o
the period before 28 December 2011 when the building is sold is pertained by the Company. Any penalty to
e applied for the Company®s operations that have occnrred as a result of maniers that constitte a vialation of
environmental legislation till the date of delivery is limited by 115 Dollar 3,000,000 and any claim sbove this
limit canmot be demanded from the Conmpany. The Giroup management docs not expect any cash outflow for
the comesponding matter and no provision is recognized to the comsolidated financials as of balance shest

date.
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17.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES {cont"d)
Asof 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Group's GuarantessFPledge™Morigages (“GFM™) are as

follows:

Guarcnteen Pledge Mortgages given by the
Groap (GFEM)

31 Decemnber 200§

TRY Equivalent___US Dullar EUR TRY
A OFM given o behalf of ity own legal entity
-(haaranted A6.383.0012 205032 5780007 10472306
~Pledge . . - -
Marigage 181, 300,000 . - 181500000
ZIT.A83.002 203,032 780,107 191872396
B. GPA given on belall of subsidiaries that are
incheded in finll comsoidation
-Guaraniee - - -
Plodge - - -
=Morigage - - -
€. (s given on behallof thisd parties for
onilimary couse of the nsiness A, 00,000 - A0 O
D, Other GPM - - = -
T IO, IR LR
21 December 2017
TRY Equivaknt _ __US Dellar ELR TRY
A. GFM given on behalf of its own lesal entity
“Chranies 41,700,757 127.167 6.264.750 125500807
Fledias H = X 2
~Mortgage 168, 500000 L - 168.£00.000
210,309,257 127167 6.284.750 181.450.807
B GPM given on belall of subsidiaries that are
Inciwded in fall comsolidation
~CHaaranles - - -
~Pledzz - - -
shlorgage A -
. GFMs given on bebalf of thisd parties for
ordimary course of the busingss - -
D, Oer OPM - - - -
T R 11 R 1L . = L I L3 L 1

As of 31 Decemsber 2018, the Company's Other GFM / Equity ratio is nil (31 December 2017: Nil).
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17, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (tontd)

As of 31 Decemober 2012 and 31 December 2017, Goowp's imeversible contingent Linbilities of operating

leases are as follows:

31 December

EUR TRY ik

Maturity less than 1 year - 9344635 9344635

Marurity berween | - 5 years - 17.531.358 17.551.338
N 268

31 Decenmber

EUR TRY 2017

Marurity bess than | year 16,874 8572653 B.648 847

Maturity between | - 5 years = 14.064.491 14.064.491

[[¥3E] X AET] 7

The Group's operaticnal keases mainly consast of vehacles given to sabes personnel and the total expense
related with the operating lease payments for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounts to TRY 11.448.859

{1 Jomsary — 31 Deecensber 2017 TRY 7.136.512),

31 December 31 December

2018 20017

D to personncl 344039 359893

Taxes and funds pryables 2767.017 2508172

Social secunty pramumnes payable 3228912 6.647.520

6.319.968 9516685

31 Decemiber 31 December

Provisions for benefits provided o enplovees 2018 7

Accrsed vacabion pay Latalsty 5.768.017 5.763.672

Bamis given to sabes personmel 1338516 2662861
Provision for semiority incentive and

nEnAgemenl prémiu - 179,165

Dther accmals and payatdes 17.077.926 15.416.561

25384450 24.022.239

The Group has recopnized provision for vacation pay liability, due 1o the tendency 1o be used within cne

year, as shont term provisions in Group fizancial statements.
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18, EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (conid)

Provision for
S i

Accreed vacation pay  Boniss given to il s germen
isbility personnc AT Totnl
Provision at | Jasmiary 5763672 2682861 179,165 605,698
Charge for the year A.134.962 129001802 - 16056764
Payments during the year GASELTY (13026147 (19707 (16.336.471)
Foccign currency trasslation - - 542 542
Prowision at 31 December 1018 T TeB1T TRIET6 - HA0h 0
Provision af | Jamary 6476542 2OTLE0G 167,162 £.716.707
Cherge for the yesr 2.140.993 4.27E.028 - 6419521
Payments during the year (2.854.263) (3.688.6T0) - (a.342033)
Foreign curmency trnslation = - 1200 12,003
Provision it 31 Decemnber 2017 TIIGTE pX R TT3.065 R R

Under the Turkith Labor Law, the Company s required 10 pary employment termination benefits 10 each
employes who has qualified for soch payment. Aleo, employees ane required to be paid their retirement pay
provisions who retired by paining right 1o receive relirement pay provisions in accordance with the provisions s2t
out in law wo: 2422 saoed at 6 March 1981, liw no: 4447 isswed at 23 August 1999 and the amended Article 50
of the existing Social Insurance Law No: 306, Sonwe ransitional peovisions relatad 10 the pre-retinensent service
ttenm weere excinded from the law since the relaed law was amended as of 23 May 2002,

The amount payable consists of one month's salary limited to & maximum of TRY 6.017,60 for each period of
service st 3] December 2018 (31 December 2017 TRY 5.000,76).

The provicion i calculated by estimating the present vahue of the flutare probable obligation of the Company
arising from the retirement of employess. TAS 19 paquires acmesrial valuation methods to be developed o
estinze the enterprice’s obligation under defined benefit phs. Accordingly, the following acmarial assumptions
are used in the calculation of the ol Liabiliny:

The principal assamption is that the maximam Hability for each year of service will increase parallel with the
miflation, Thus, the disconnt rate applied represents the expectad real rate afler adjusting for the anticipated
effects of fanme inflmion. Consequemtly, in the accompanying financial stements as at 31 December 2008, the
provision is calculated by estimating the present value of the fatare probable obligation of the Company anising
from the retirement of the employees. The provisions at the respective balance sheet dates are calculated

iy an anmmal inflation rate of 10% amd a inleres) waie of 14,50%, reaing in a real discom wie of
approxinaately 4,09% (31 December 2017: 2,78%). The anticipated rste of retiement is considered ax 58,000
(20017 BR.15%4). Ax the naaxinmmn lalility is revised semi annimally, ihe maximinng anount of TRY 6.017,60
effective from 1 Janmary 20019 & tken info considemtion in ithe calculation of provision from engployment
termrinstion benzfits.
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EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (contd)

1w,

Below s the movement of employment termination provision:

Provision al 1 Jamry
Service cost

Tmlerest cost

Temunation benzfits paid
Agtmarial (pain)loss
Provision af 31 December

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Diher current assely

Deferred VAT
Other VAT

Taxes and funds payables

1 Jamuary - | Jamary -
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
19.124.188 16,754 674
5,965,726 5170489
616910 541,765
(2.623.284) (3.510.588)
Sd4.309 L1%.84%
0539 19.1.24.1
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
22.134878 11.345.738
1.227.643 1.034.132
23.3562.521 12.370.800
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
1944017 L. 446 550
1944017 1.446 289
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n.  EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Capital

31 Devenber 31 Decemilser
Nume %) 2018 (%) 2017
Eastpharma 5.4 RL. 22 164.424.760 g2.2 164.424. 760
Other 178 35.504.528 178 35,504,528
Mominal capital 100.0 00019288 1000 200.019.288
Inflation sdyustnecnt to share capital 1400080, 556 140,080,656
Buy-backed shares {-) (2B.847) {28.847)
Adjnsted ghare capital 340071137 340.071.137

As of 31 Decensber 2018, the Company™s capital consists of 20,001 928.768 Type C comman shares each
with a nominal value of TRY 0,01, 5 Type B prefermed shares and 3 Type A preferred shares (31 December
2017: Company’s capital consists of 20,001 928,768 Type C comman shares each with a neminal value of
TRY 0.01. 3 Type B preferred shares and 3 Type A preferned shares).

Commton shares

Each common share has one voting right. Dividend diswribuiion is based on the spproval of ihe decision
taken by the Board of Directors, by the General Asseobly within the nides of Turkish Commsercial Code,
Capital Markets Board (CMB) regulations and the Company s main agre¢msent.

Praferred shares

Each one of the type A and B prefemred share centificates lanve a voting right 10 times that of the common
shares. Pursiwant fo the Anicles of Association of the Company, 10%% of the amount caleulated afler
deducting the 5% of firt legal reserves, statwiory tax payments and 6% of the paid-in capital is distributed
1o hobders of Type A shares. The remaining profil ansoant, in fall or panial, is allocated cqually 10 each
ordinary share, A and B type shares do not bave liquidstion preferences, Lignsdation is camied ont based on
the tevnws of the Twkish Commmercial Code. In the goneral assembly meeting dated 27 April 2007, nominal
value of shares hns been changed 1o TRY 2,01, As a result, the munber of preferred shares decreased 1o 10
Trom 100 in respect of 5274 nnmbered bow.

As of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the details of capital and ofler balances dischosed uisder

equaity are as follows:
31 December 31 Dwommber
2018 2017
Capital 100.0019.288 200.019.288
Premivm in exoess of par 1.870.803 28T0.BD3
Restmicted reserves assorted from profin 130864053 150.864.953
Buy-backed shares {-) (28.847) (28.84T)
333.716.199 3353.726.199
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n.

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (cont’d)

Bestricted reserves appropriated from profil

The legnl reserves comsist of first and second legal reserves, approprated in accordamce with the Turkish
Commercial Code, are ool distnbutable to sharcholders. The first legal reserve o approprated out of
historical stntulory profits st the rote of 3% per nnmmm, wntil the total reserve reaches 20% of the historical
paid-in share caputal. The second legal reserve 15 appropnated after the first begal reserve and dividends, at
the rate of 10% per amnum of all cash dividend distributions.

In pecordance with the CMB"s requirements which were effective until 1 Janusry 2008, the amount genernied
frem the firsl-time apphication of inflation sdjsstments on financial statements, and followed under the
“aecunmalated loss™ item was taken into consideration as a reduction in the caleulation of profit distritwtion
based on the mflation adjusted financial statements within the scope of the CMB's regulation issued on profit
distribution. The related amount that was followed under the “accumulated loss™ item could also be offset
against the profit for the period (if any) and andistribated retained eammgs and the remaining boss amount
could be offeel against capital reserves arising from the restatemnent of extraordinary reserves, legal reserves
and aquity itenss, respectively.

In addition, in sccordence with the CMB’s requinements which were effective until | January 2002, a1 the
first-time application of inflation adjostments on financial stalements, equity items. namely “Capital Bssue
premitg”, “Legal reserves”, “Statulory reserves”, “Special reserves” and “Extraordinary reserves” were
camried at nominal value in the balance sheet and restatement differences of such items were presented in
equity under the “Shareholders” equity inflation restxtement differences™ line em in aggregate.
“sharebolders” equity inflation restatement differences” related o all equity items could only be subject o
the capital mereass by boous issue of loss deduction, while the carmying value of extraordinary reserves could
be subject to the capital increase by boous issue; cach profit distribution or loss deduction.

Currency franslation reserye

Financial statements of subsidiaries, operating in countriss other than Turkey, are adjiusted 10 TAS for the
purpose of fair presemiation. Subsidianies’ assets and liabilites are manslated into TRY from the foreign
exchange rate at the balance shest date and income and expenses are trapslated imo TRY at the average
foreign exchange rate. Exchampe differences arising from the tramslation of the opening met assets and
differences between the average and balance cheer date rates are incladed in the “cumrency translation

Retalned carnings
The Group®s accumulsted profit as of 31 December 2018 and accumulated deflcit 31 December 2017

amounts to TRY 121.753.960 and TRY 25.088.867, respectively. The sccumulated profit balance alio
imcindes TRY 26.410.082 of earaordinary reserves (31 December 20017 TRY 26.410,082).
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21. REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

1 Janmiary — 1 Janawry —

31 December 31 December

Revemie (nel) 2018 2017
Human phamma revense G2 S 626 T4 650 0RY
Veterinary producis revemae GLOML11S AT.BE1.260
Other revenoe 16987307 0.733.863
1.040.677.048 BO00.265.112

1 Jamary — 1 Jamsry —

31 Deceniber 31 December

Cost of revenne 2018 2017
Raw and other maserials ised (336.451.658) (251.621.211)
Direct labor cost (26.496.743) (22.71%.333)
Production overheads (163.448.209) (1211255700
Depreciation expenses (Note 12) (21.039.519%) (19.506.037)
Chenge in work in process G0, S0 13,935, 2463
Clemge in fimshed poods 20.900.877 (1023821}

(311.3609.733) (402.269.707)

Coft of merchandises sold (*) (7.288.839) (52.823.625)
(S1E.638.672) (455.093.332)

{*) Cost of merchandise sold consists of prochucts of Saba ilag.

1l RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES, MARKETING, SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION
EXPENSES, GENERAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

1 Jamery - 1 Jamsary =

31 Decenber 31 December

2018 2017

Marketing, sales and distribution expenses () (148395, 640) (117.874.135)
General administration expenses (-} (P2 408.761) (68.745.70T)

Research and development expenses (=) 535.183.9345 iZS.S&B.G‘HE
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1.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES, MARKETING, SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION
EXPENSES, GENERAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES (cont'd)

}Resenrch and development expenses

| Janmiary = 1 January =
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Empilayes bewefits expenses (19.325.573) (15.767.175)
Concelied projects (35.720.054) (28, 766.547)
(53.046.62T) (44.533.768)

Capitalized personnel expenses 19.262.693 15.703.09

43,783 . 1

As of 31 December 2018, the Group realized research and development expenses of TRY 15,175,849 for
tangible assets and TRY 54277978 for isangible msscts with the total amount TRY 72.453.817 (31
December 2017: TRY $6.193.329). As of balance sheet date TRY 57.335.798 of the amount 15 for the
government gmnis and incentives (31 December 2017: TRY 44.88830d4). Of this total mwoumt TRY
GE.STL.302 was capitalized on development costs, of which TRY 19.262.693 consists of cmployee related
expenses, TRY 3882526 portion of the toinl TRY 35.721.054 cancelled project and other expenses is
expended of the year 2018

iidMarketi J 3 distribut
1 Janiaary — 1 Jommaary —

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Employes benefits expenses (63.873,395) (52.920.405)
Depreciation and amornization expenses (358.0235) {559.834)
Royalty expenses {24.530.993) (15322.1135)
Remt expenscs {10.461.015) {8.714.808)
Travel, wansportation and scoonunodation expenses (B.105.107) (6. 528.618)
Consulancy expenses (3.142.5671) {2.398.518)
Promotional goods and advertising expenses (24.313.802) (23.450.653)
Other expenses Eli.ﬁlﬂ.ﬂzl (7.773.004)
{ 2] 117876139
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11.  RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES, MARKETING, SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION
EXPENSES, GEKERAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES (cont"d)

i1 }Beneral administmatio I EXPENSES
1 Jamury - I Japuary -
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Emplayes benefits expenses ($4.797.853) (43.927.353)
Depreciation and amortization expenses {13.495.782) {10.722.0265)
Renl expenses (1.231.113) (571.033)
Travel, ransportation and accommodation expenses (4.029.744) (3A26412)
Consuliancy cxpenses [B.488.334) (4.389.477)
Prosmotional goods and advertising expenses (313.047) (298.792)
Other expenses {14.371.347) (7470290
196.727.219) (72.805.583)
Capitalized persomme| expenses. 4318458 4039876

{92.408.76] (68, 195,707}

13. EXPENSES BY NATURE

1 January 1 Jammaary

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Emgployee benefits expenses (137.996.821) (114.615,137)
Depreciation and amonization expenscs (13.B53.807) (11.281.860)
Rovalty expenses (*) (24.530.99%) (15322115
Reul expenses (11.682.127) {9.285.931)
Promotional goeds and advertising expenses (24.626.849) (23.759.445)
Travel, tmnsportstron and acoommodation expenses (12.134.851) (9.955.030)
Consaltancy expenses (11.631.00%) {6.967,995)
Cancelled projects (35.721.054) {28.766.587)
Other expenies. (27.981 979) (15.243.384)
(300.169.486) (233.217.484)

Capitalized persome] expeirses. 23.5681.151 19.762.971

(276,588 335) (215.454.513)

(™) Royaliy expensess consist of the it paicl 1o Easiy 5. AR.L for the sale of Itnch“ndmbs in the
curent period. Eastpharma SARL. bolds Tml:r rights of 17 Roche products acquired in 2008,
Eastpharma 5. A F_L. also halds the right of one Roche product in 17 different foreign countries.
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4. OTHER OFERATING INCOME / EXFENSES

1 Jamuary - 1 Jamuary -

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

Foreign exchange pain 30.254.875 7.145.182

Drsoowmt inderest inooue 249,592 .

Commusseon mcome (*) 364.134 1.423.525

Inserest income 5.859.829 4421292

Tnterest on deferred scitlement sales 1.269.090 586848

(eher mcomie and profils 10.481.733 9,127,484
[LEpEE] i

(*) Conmmission income consists of consideration received for the sake of Saba llsg products, the Group's

related party (364,134 TRY) (Note 6).

1 Jamuary 1 Japuary
31 December 31 December
018 017
Forcign exchange loss (10.113.445) (3.812.195)
Drisooant iMeres! expenses - {1.125.411)
Ot expense amd losses 6.560.04 E!-]'ﬂ.ﬁlﬂ;

1 1 11941

15 INVESTMENT INCOME
1 Jamary - 1 Jamuary -
31 December 31 December
018 017
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 551.139 10.195.637
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 54.332
B1.139 A4
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26, FINANCIAL EXPENSES
1 Jamuary = 1 Fanuagy =
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Bank loans inferest cost (82.098.43%) (41.133.854)
Bonds issucd interest and expenses {30.769.591) (14.942.145)
Total inlenest coml {112.868.230) (56.075.999%
Copitalized expenses (-} 4001358 2572956
Foreign exchange loss {10.908.381) (ABE1ATE)
Lost on derivative instrnwents - (AT 540)
Cller Expenses (La43.521) {1.238.677)
!I]I.EIT.T‘M! sﬂ.l?.!.'!&gl
27.  TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Current sned defermred income tax

The iax expense for the year comprises current and defemmed taoe. Tox &5 recogndsed in the income statement.
excepl 1o the extent that i relates to pems recogmised darectly wn equaity. In sich case, the tax 15 abio
recognised in sharcholders” equity.

The current income B charge is caloubated in accordanes with the tax laws enacted or substantively emcied
at the balsice sheet date in the comiries where ihe subsidiaries aml associstes of the Group operate. Under
the Turkish Tax Code, companies having head office or place of business in Turkey are sabject to corporate
Lz

Under the Turkish taxation system, taor losses can be carmied forward to be offeet against fumare taxable
meame for five years, Tax bosses canmot retrospectively offset agninst the profits of previous vears,

Furthenmore, provisional corporsie taxes are paid at 20% (will be applied as 22% for 2018, 20019 and 2020
tax periods) over profiis declared for imerim perinds in coder to be deducied from the final corporate

As of December 31, 2008 and 2017, imcome nx provisions bave been sccrued in sccordance with the
prevailing tax begslation.75% of the imcome derived by the Company from the sale of participstion shares,
preferentind rights, founders’ shares and redecmed shares and 50% of the moome denved by the Company
from the sale of immovable property which are cammed I assets for at beast for two vears 15 exempt from
corporate tax with the condition that the relevant income should be ndded 1o the share capital or kept under &
specind reserve sccount under squity for 5 years in accordance with the Corporate Tax Law,

Deferred income tax is provided in fall, using the liability method, on all temporary differences arising
hetween the thx bases of awete and liabilities and their corying values in the consolidated fnancial
stalements. Currently emacted tax rabes are nsed (o determine deferred incomne 1ax at the balance sheet date.

Smce the applicable tax rate has been changed to 22% for the 3 years beginnng from | January 2018, 22%
tac rabe 15 wsed in the deferred tax calendation of 31 December 2018 for the kempomry differences expected to
be reahizediclosed within 3 years [for the years 2008, 2019 and 2020). However, smoe the corporale tax re
after 2020 is 20%%, 20% tax mie is uwsed for the temporary differences expected o be realizediclosed nfter
2020,

Deferred wx liabilities sre recopnized for all wxable wmporary differences, where defermed tax assels
resulting from dedoctible temporary differences are recogmized 10 the extent that it is prolable dsat fiare
wxable profit will be available agaimsy which the deductible temporary difference can be wilized Provided
that defierred tax awets and defered ax liabilities rebate 10 vcome taxes levied by the same axation awthosity
amdd it is legally eligible, they may be offiet againg one another.
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.

TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES {cont"d)

T 4 iabilit

Corporation i

The Group is subject to inxation in accordonce with the tax regulstion &nd the begislanon effective in Turkey.
In Turkey, the corporate tax maie is 20%. However. in accordance with the addivion of wemporary 10th amicle
to the Corparate Tax Law, 22% corporate tax, mate will be applisd ro the profits of the entities related 1o their
1o 2018, 2019 and 2020 tax persods (for the emities with special accounting pevind, tax periods commenced
in the related yearh rather than 20%. This rate is applicable o the tax base derived upon exemplion and
deductions stated in the tax legislation and by addition of disallownble expenses 1o ihe conmmercinl revenues
of the conpanies with respect 1o the tax legistaton Corparabe 1ax is sequired 1o e Gled by ibe twenty-Gih

day of the fourth wonth following the balance sheet date and taxes must be paid by the end of the founl
monle,

The tax begrslation provides for o temporary tax of 20% (will be applied as 22% for 2018, 2019 and 2020 tax
periods) to be coboulnted based on camings gemerated for each quarter. Tempomry tax is declared by the 14th
day of the second month following each quarter and correspoading 1ax 15 paryable by the 17th day of the same
month. The smounts thus calenlated and paid are offsct agninst the final corpomte tax linbility for the year. 1If
there 15 exeess temporary tax pad even of ot 18 already offset. this amount may be refunded or offsel.
Corporte tax losses can be cammied forward for o maxinmem period of 3 years followmg the yeoar in which the
losses were wcwrred. The tax aunthorities can mnspect tax refums and the related sccountmg records for &
retrospective maximmm pervod of five vears,

15% withhobding applies to dividends distributed by resident real persons, those who are not hable o mcome
aml corporation tax, non-residend teal persons, non-resident corporations (exchuling those st acquine
dividerd thronugh a pemmaend establishment or permanent representative in Turkey) and non-resident
corporations exenyed from iscome and corporation tax.

Drividend distribution by resident corportions to resident corporations is not subject to a withholding tax.
Furthermore, in the event the profit 15 not distributed or mcluded m capital, no withholding tax shall be
applicable.

Tuskish tax begislation does »ot permit a parent company &nd its subsidiasies i file 8 consolidased e returm.
Thezefors, tax lLiabiliies, as reflected in these comsolidated financial statements, lave been caloulsted on a
separsie-entity bazis. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, cumvent income @y payables have been offser
against the prepaid toes in entity basis but such offiel amounts have been classified in gross basis in the
consolidaed financial sialemenis.
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17, TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont'd)

Cument tax payalile

31 December 2018

31 Decemnber 2017

Current tax liability
Effect of taxable base increase on corparate tax (*)

309,902 335180
S8E.031 -
BT533 EEENE

{*) The law numbered 7143 which also contains the provisions regarding the tax ammesty was approved by
the Parlimenary Counsel and announced at Trade Registy Gazette on 18 May 2012 in Tuskey, Based on the
provigions of the law in considerstion. the group applied for taable base inerease for 2006 and 2017, In
years where taxable profit exists, corporate e base was increased by the rates stated i law and corposate

tax is calculated by appliying 13% Iax rate.

For the years where the Group appled for taxable base incresse. no further tax ionvestigation will be done.

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
Tax expeuse 018 2017
Cument tay expense 16.839.23% 04478
Deferved tax income | (expense) 2.768 315 1,132 505
Total 1ax cxpensc 19608450 2.037.073
Total charge for the period can be reconciled 1o the accomiing proflt as follows:
1 Jenmary- 1 Innmary-
31 December 11 December
018 2017
Profit before tax 155969 567 094,579,748
Emacted 1ax rale 2% 0%
Expected taxation 34313305 18915950
Tax effects of:
- ried incentives deductions (8606 3129) (14.326.68%)
- used discoumnted tax rate effect, other than effective tax rate {2.028,575) (1.345.517)
- effect af taxable base increase (BRZ.04T) -
- oiber

Tax expense pecomnized in ivcome statement

Toa

(1.206.67

L, E
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.

TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES [cont"d)
Dicferred tax

The Group recognizes deferred tnx assets and labilities based upen tempomry differences ansing between its
finnscial stasements as reported 10 accordance with TFRS and its statutory tax Boancial statements. These
differences wsually result in the recognition of revenoe and expenses in different reporting peniods for TFRS
and tnx puaposes and they are given below.,

The effective rax rate used for the calculation of defierred tax in 2018 is 22% (31 December 2017: 22%).
In Turkey. the companies cannot declare a consolidated tax retom, therefore subsidiaries that have deferred

e asksts positicn were not nettad off againe subsidiaries that bave daferred wax lisbilities position and
disclosed separanely.

Deferred tax balances in the balance sheet arz presented as follows:

Dreferred tax assets | (liabilities) 31 Decensber 2018 31 December 2017

Restatement and uscfial life differcnces of property. plant
Al equipnwen and intangible asseis 11.325.642 7.342.126
Provision for employment lenminstion benefits (4.518,632) {4.207.321)
Inventories (2.935.871) [3.107.48)
Accrued vacation pay liability (1.263.964) [1.268.008)
Accrued sales discounts and froe samples (954.512) (RT5.466)
Expense accrualbs due ko price regulation (640, 200) (321.884)
Provision for doubtful receivables (1.391.676) (1.327.403)
Provision for begal cases (1.367.937) (831.132)
Other G.W.Sﬂ} [5.263.009)
(3,661,654 [5.599.543)

The movement of deferred tax assets for the vear ended as of 31 December 20018 and 2017 are o5 follows:

1 Jammaary- 1 Jarmary-
3] December 3] December
2018 2017
Balonce at 1 Jamanry D899 543 11.064.371
Deferred tax incoms / (expense} recognized i income slatement (2.769.215) (1.132.595%)
Tax expense / {income) recogmized in other conprehensive
nComes (559.747) 2370
The tax effect of TFRS & (Note 2) 172,174
The tax effect of TFRS 15 (Mote 2) {L0E1.061) -
Cumrency translation expenss = !
Closing balance, 31 December T661.699 9[5'5"-7?'

As of balance sheet date, the Group has no anused tax Josses available for offset agninst fwnare profits (31
December 2017: TRY Nil), Deferred tax assets are not recognirad in respect of such losses a1 31 December
2018,
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28, PFROFIT PER SHARE

I CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Jamiary— 1 JTanmary—
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Profit for the yeur 136.361.117 92.542.675
Weighted-aversge nmunber of -
iz <k 20.001.928.778 20,001 928778
Profit per share (TRY) 00068 0,0045

29, NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERTVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensare that entities in the Group will be able to comtinue as n going concem

‘while maximizing the returm to stakebolders through the optimizstion of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debi, which includes the financial borrowings disclosed im Note
5, cash and cash equivalents disclosed in Mote 4 and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent

disclosed in MNote 20, comprising isswed capital, reserves and retained eamings.
Asof 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, equityfiotal financial liakility rate is as follows:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Fimancial liability 727577535 48R 293 424
Lews: Cash amd cash equivalems (121.115.624) (77.869.867)
Liability (net) G06A461.911 410423357
Toitnl equity T46.407 297 05050, 1032
Toital invested capital 1.547.324.70% LI78.537.002
Liatalaty (met) /| Total mvested capatal rate 3% 35%

The Group’s managemsnt reviews the capital stracture on a quarterly basis, A a part of this review, the

management considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with cach class of capital. Based

recommendations, the Group will balance its overall capital structure throogh the payment of dividends. new

share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issoe of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
The Gronp“s overall strategy remains unchanped from prior year,
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {cont"d)
(b} Finaneial risk factors

The Group's sctivilies expose it 10 a vanety of financial risks; market risk (including currency nsk, fair value
imterest rate risk. cash flow imterest rate risk snd price risk), credit risk and lquidity nisk. The Group's overall
risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of fisancial markets and seeks to nugimize
potential adverse effecis on the Group's financial performance.

Risk naanagensent is camed owt by the Board of Directors under policies approved with forward puschase and
sale contracts. Policies and risks are regularly reviewed by Audit Commaittee. As a result of this procedure the
Group evaluates the risk performance.

.4} Credis risk managenont

Credit risk refers 1o the risk that counterparty will defaalt on its contractunl obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Growp. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtamning sufficient collateral where appropriate, a5 a means of mitigating the risk of fmancial loss from
defmulis. The Group®s exposure and the credit mtings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the
aggregale value of transactions concheded & spread amongst approved counterparties, Credit exposure is
comtrolled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the risk managemsni commities
monthly.

Distribution of the Group's products by the two largest wholesabers in the Tuskish market corresponded 1o
approximately 26% amd 39% of ibe revemues of the Human Phammaceuticals business line derived from
Turkey (31 December 2017: 27% and 38%). As of 31 December 2018, rwo cusiomers represented 20% and
30% of the total rade and other receivables balance, respectively (31 December 2017: 24% and 29%). The
‘Group manages its credit risk by following up financial positions and their accoumi receivables balances.

Credit quality of undue financial assets evaluated based on 1o remospective imemal mting consideration is a5
Tollows:

11 December 31 December

Trade Receivables 2018 27
(According to internal rating)

Customens i Group A 310.330.544 238 640500
Customiers in Group B 43,765,452 4.554.616
Customers in Group C 38,345,185 37.044.137

392.441.181 280,339,233

Customers in Group A Customsers of which credst imit defined without an indemnity and approved by CEGQ
after credit commities confirmation,

Customers in Group B: Customers of which credst Hmat defined with an existing indemmity and approved by
CEO after credit committes confinmation.

Customers in Growp C Customeers of which credit limit defined with an indemnity directly atiritwtable
{Letter of warmanty or credit limit of 70% of mongage amount)
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont"d)

.

() Financial risk factors (cont"d)
it risk e i Y

Credit risks as to financial instruoment types

31 December 2018

Maxinnan credit linuts as of balance sheet date (*)
Secured amount with letter of guarantes
ANet book vahse of the not amortized financial assets
B. Net book value of the financial assets conditions are reset,
herwise impaired
C. Net book vake of the overdue assets but not impaired
Secured amount with letter of guarantee
D Net book value of the impaired assets
=Carrying valoe (due dates passed assets)
-Impairment(-}
-Secured amount with letter of guarantee
~Carrying value (unexpired assets)
-Impairment(-}
-Secured amount with letter of guarantee
E. Off balance sheet itens that have credit risk

Receivables

Trade Receivables Other Beceivables
Bank
Related Party Other  Related Party Other Depuosits
11.620.37% 392.441.181 - 474273 121.023.665
= 42.752.699 - = -
11.620.379 392,441,181 - ATA2T3  121.023.665
T.185.987 = 48,900 -
(7.185.987) a {48.906) z

(*) Components increasing credit safiety are not taken into consideration in determination of the amount.

155



I DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Convenience translation of the independent auditors” report and consolidated financial statements originally issued in Turkish)
DEVA HOLDING A.S. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 20138
(Amoants expressed in Turkish Lira “TRY™ unless otherwioe stabed )
NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont™d)

9.

() Financial risk factors (cout"d)
(B, 1) Credit risk management {cont d)
Credit risks as to financial instrument fypes

31 Decembrer 2017

Maxinmm credit limits as of balance sheet date (*)
Secured amount with letter of guarantee
ANet book value of the not amortized financial assets

B. Net book value of the financial assets conditions are reset,

bacolaa brind
C. Net book value of the overdue assets but not impaired
Secured amount with letter of guarantes

D. Net book value of the impaired assets
~Carrying value (due dates passed assets)
=Impainment(-)
-Secured amount with letter of prarantes
-Carrying value (umexpired assets)
~Impairment(-)
-Secured amount with letter of guarantee
E. Off balance sheet items that have credit nisk

Receivables
Trade Receivables Diher Receivables

Related Party Other Related Party ~ Other
11.793.004 280.239.253 - 460.429

. 27.980.140 . .

11.793.004 280.239.253 - 460,429

- 5.984.754 - 48,906

- (5.984.754) - (48.906)

(*) Components increasing credit safisty are not taken into consideration in determination of the amount.
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18, NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {cont"d)

(b) Eivemcial risk factors (coni"d)

{842 Credil risk monegement feont d)

Overdur Recebvables

Teade Dther

31 December 2018 Recelvables Receivables Baokdeposils  Oiler Total
Less theim i month = - =

1-3 mowmth - - - - -
3-12 momth S15.520 - - 315520
1= 5 year 4.7 - - 48,0 RR.623
5+ years 2.729.741 - - - 3.720.741
Total T 155 087 - - 8906 FELECEY
Secured with betier of puaramies

and other - - - -

Overdue Receivables

Trade Diber

3 December 2017 Bocelvables  RBeclvables  Bank deposits Dhey Total
Less tham a month - - -

1-3 mowth - - -

3-12 momdh - - - - -
1- 5 year 25503 - - 48,906 303919
5+ years 5,719,741 - - = 3,728,741
Tatal TCRd. T - - T
Sevured with betier of pusramies

ol other - - - -
f.20 Ligutaity risk maureemsend

The responsibility of e liquidity risk mamgemem beloogs 10 the Board of Directors. The Group's
mamaperent has bailt an appropriste Lguidity risk mansgement famework for e mamsgement of ibe
Group's short, medivm and long tenn fanding and liguadity menagement reguirements,

The Group's liquidity requirements arse prmarly from the mead to fund working capital due bo the research
amd development imestments mainky factory, machinery and equipment investments and phamma licence
investments,

The Board of Directors has formed approprists liquidity risk mansgemuent for the Groap management s shar,
cash flows by regularly following up and matching the manarities of financial assets and Habilitiss in order to
keep continuance of fnds and borrowing resenves,

Liguadity analysis

The following table details the Group's expected nsturity for its non dervative financial lisbilities. The
tables below bave been drawn wp based on the undiscounted contractual matarities of the financial labilities

inchuding interest that will accrue 1o those Labikities except where the Group i entitbed and intense 1o repay
the liability before its maturity.
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29, NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {cont’d)

31 December 2018

Non-derivative financial Habilities

Bank loans and bonds issued
Trade payables
Total financial liabilities

31 December 2017

Non-derivative financial labilities

Bank loans and bonds issued

Trade payables
Total financial liabilities

tha Between
Carrving value acconding to the Lo than :

accapding o the 3 months 3-12 months LS years

agreement e
T27.577.535 B69.491.993 328.772.583 167.785.291 372.934.119
£5.609.382 £6.264.674 £2.269.812 3.094 862 F)
§13.276.917 955 756.667 411.042 395 171,780,153 372,834,119

o Cashilow Less ihan Beiween
Carrving value according to the fry—— 15 vears

3 312

agreement 3 months 312 months
458.293.424 588.975.641 115.700.374 198653370 274.621.897
67.025.460 69.211.811 68.279.516 932.293 -
555.318.6884 G35 187.452 183.979.890 199,585,665 T74.621 897
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.

NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont"d)

(b} Finemsinl risk factors (cont'd)

. 3 Miarker Risk Mosrapemen

The Group's activitics expase it primanly to the Baancial risks of changes in forcign cumency cxchange mates
(see b.3.1) and interest rates (see b.3.2). The Group enters into a vanety of derrrative financial instrisments fo
MABARE it EXposiag o mecrest rate and Forcign cummency risk.

Market nsk exposumes ane supplemented by sensiivity analys:s.

In the current yeor, there bas been mo change n the market sk the Group s exposed or m the nsk
mamagenent and assessment policies of the Group,

th.4.4) Forelgn currency risk marstgeren
The Growp undentnkes certain transoctions denomanated m forcign cumencies. Henee., exposures to exchange

rate exposures are managed within the approved policy parameters unlising forwvard foreign exchange
coniracts.

The Group's foreign currency position is s follows:
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8. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont"d)

(b) Ficansial sk f )
. ) Muarked risk mauarement (oot 'd)
. 3.4 Fareien curnemcy pisk management oot ol

Farcign Currency Pusiion 21 Dcrember 2013
TRY Equivalesi USh ETR CHT G Chiber

1. Trasde peceivales #0.530571 4 98.des 1458747 . . 16962

22 Monrtery Fmsncinl axsets 117.648.1%8 17242 il 400 559 1043 14T E

2b. Moo meoastary financial moets . . . . .

3, Onbar FL51.128 e 4534005 g 17267

4, CLRMENT ASSETS 155, 1o T 1275051 o883, k2L 4858 [T 108

. Movetary Fsmoial sty

b, Hen-tmomrtary finane il micts - - - - -

7. Dnber 510 1600 L] 23 -

8, RON-CURBENT ASSETS &0 1600 621 20

0. TOTAL ASSETS 1S5 760500 JRIMESD 1047545 7055 18743 16.062

14 Trade paynbles ErA b Pl 87881 2548 887 mn 16604

11. Fsancul Bnbeliies. XL A28 3817

178, CNber monstay kabusten . - -

1. Oty mommonetary lakalibe - . - - =

13 CURRENT LIARLITIES 38440065 1817 a1 AT m [

14. Trade payables . . - . .

15, Frnsmens] babuktied 10451 691 - 1.733.857

Va, (Mber moastiy kabustm

16b LRy conmonety habudes " . —

1T MORLCURATNT LIARLITIRS 10651 691 . 1 TR RST

18, TOTAL LIARELITEES & 657 156 1517661 8204453 m bt ]

1% Mot nesethbaliry position off

ol e bt itemss 98- 1 90 = = = - -

1.2 Total avset srmount of Eskung ibras

1%, Total halbckey smout of kedgp iiema - - - = o

0. et foregm cwmrency positon ($.18) 116870 Taa 19480 91 1 hE7 008 L] 3T 955y 18 9

21. Miometary e net oregn cumeny

AT 9201 415 19 508005 (2XM.032) ™ (35:2ny 16062

22, Fanr valkos of the el writromsnli.

el = Banei g curmency bedgag

25, Medged part of forsgn oErecy maets

24, Headgod part of ormgn cunvcy lalsbise - - - = H

3. Bt 18TH 218 185 678 545 4200677 L

26 lepart AWRATIS4E  AAOCETE 31 907 458 3 W8 89 821 T ha
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8. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont"d)

(b} Einancial nisk factors (eont”d)

. 3) Marke! risk mmcrement feond'd)

.31} Eareign currency dak maragement oot 'd)
Fereign Currency Position 31 Dexember 00T

TRY Equivalesd (1] ElR CHF R ey
1. Trisle recervables 12710 R0 1830 780 2d0ry - . Lo
Za Movely Exsncial assels 2580008 L2857 pE- ALY 2084 L.B62
b, Hon-moactary finsncial miicty - - - - - -
3, Oiber BT 1565254 AT 655 1531957 | T 54 -
4, CURRENT ASSETS 104 655 592 12800803 R EEFITTH 171470 [T
3, Trade pecumiaiale
s, Moneiery Pesscial awets - - - - -
b, Hou-nsmrtary financial moct - - - - - -
7, Otber 351752 17.000 56005 IE 500 S40 -
&, HOR-OURRENT ASSETS LTS 17000 55005 LE500 420 -
9, TOTAL ASSETS 105,051 344 12817805 991,774 155750 ITHES BT
19. Trade pwyables 1T 20MLEE 1147187 508
11, Frmsncu] bababtics 9274750 - 250,000 i -
12, Qiber memsticy bakuishe, - - -
17b Cier sommonetey babudes - . - -
13, CURRENT LIANLITIES 1040 %44 Y] 647,187 [T
14, Trade puyabies - - - - -
1% Fasoeun] ladukties 1332512 - 3.553.000 - -
V6a, Dther monctary bakalies. - - - - -
16, Other s monetacy hakadataon - - - -
17. HOM-CURHENT LIABILITIES 13152312 - 3.383.000 - -
IB. TOTAL LIABRITIES L RTA ] 2088128 TE0E7 10 408
19 et nseet kakalsby poainon of
off-balance cheet items {19 L9%) - : - = =
15.a Total st menomnt of bandging ras - - - - -
19 Total Eabikiey smou of Bediing items
ey b i

20, Ml forrgn cmrrucy positem (5-15) T ORI 10.783ETT 2.7l 607 445033 I TEESD B
21 Mhometary v el e cumay
freastmcn {1+ 2t Sra- 101 1-178-14-15-15a) 37951 182 I 24950 (HIZ 5240 L.Bal o
22 Faif vk of e Sevecial mtresstls - - - - -
usedd = Fornigy currency bedpiag
23 Ml part of foresgm ey s
24, Hodiod part of formgn curpnoy labxlitaey - - - - -
25, Expant .07 371 18292471 - - -
26. beport GBI D FIERAM I3 IPLAM 5574 4a8 BT
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18, NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont"d)

(b} Fmnancial risk factors (cont'd)

e Mariet Rigk Munapennent (oo ol

s 3.4 Foreien currency risk sramapemein! foont'dl
Faneign curnency senaithrit:

The functiopal currency of the Group companses 15 TRY. The Group s exposed to foreign exchange nisk
arsing from vanons earrency exposures, primarily with respect to the US Dollar and the Euro,

The following table details the Group's sensitivity 1o o 20% mcreass and decréase 1o the TRY against the
rebevant foreign currencies. 20% 15 thse sensstivaty rate used when reporting forcign cusrency nsk intermally 1o
key mamnagement personncl ond represents manmagement’s nssessment of the possshle change in foreign
exchange rates (31 December 2017: 10%). The seomtivity smalyss includes only outstanding foreign
cumency denominated monctary items and adpsts their translation st the peniod end for a 20% change in
foreign cumency rates. The semsitivity analysis inchudes extemal loans as well as loams to foreign operations
within the Grotp where the denommation of the loan is in o currency ctber than the currency of the lender or
the borrower. A positive namber indicates an increase in profit or loss. There is no equity effect.

Foreign Currency Sensitivity 31 December 2018
Profit / (Loss)
If foreign cumency If foreign carrency
apprecates depreciaes
H'US Dollar changes 209
I- US Dollar net assatliabakity 20673333 [20.673.333)
2-  Amount protected from U5 Dollar risk (-) - -
3 US Dollur med effect (1+2) 20673333 [20.673.333)
I EUR chamges 20%
d- EUR met sssevliability (2.741.692) 2741682
3 Amount protected from EUR risk {-) - -
6 EUR oet effect (415) (2.741.692) 2.741.692
1f other cumrencies change 20%
7- Other net assetisbiliny (69.262) 69,262
B« Amount protected from other currency risk (=) . .
9. Ciher net effect (T48) (69.262) 69262
Total (3 + 6 #9) 17 862 379 [17.862.379)
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218, NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS icont'd)

Foreign Currency Sensitivity 31 December 2007
Profit / {(Loss}
If foreign cummency I foreign carrency
appreCEales depreciates
IUS Dollar changes 10%
I- US Dollar net aseetliabikity 2.398.851 (2.398.851)
2-  Amount protected from US Dollar risk (-} - -
3. US Dellar met effect (1+2) 2308 651 (2398.851)
IfEUR changes 10%%
d- EUR met assevliability (TD0.0E3) T00.083
S Amouet protected from EUR risk (<) R .
& EUR net effect (415) (TD0.083) TO0.083
I other currencies change 10%
7- Other net assctlinbility (7.687T) T.687
B-  Amount protecied from ofler currency risk (=) - -
9. Oaler net effect (T+3) (7.68T) T.687
Total (3 + 6 +8) 1.691.081 {1.691.081)
3.2 Irteresy rrate sk manngeenl

The Group iz exposed 0 ineresi rse sk a5 entities in the Group borow fumds 8 both fixved and floating
intevest rubes, The risk is managed by the Group by maintxining an appropriate mix between fixed and
foating rate bomowings.

As of 31 December 2018, 2925 of rotal indeliedness was Noating rate and denominated in TRY and Ewro.

Irieresl rote sensiiivity

The sensitivity analyses below have bezn determined based on the exposure to inforest mtes for non-
derivative imstrunvents at the balance sheet date. For flaating rate liabalities, the analysis is prepared assaming
the amount of liability owistanding a1 the balance sheet date was owtstanding for the whole year. 50 basis
poants is the sensitiviry rate nsed when reporting interest rate risk imemally to key managensent personmel.
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29,  NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont"d)

{b) Financial risk factors (cont"d)

31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Fized Rated Instruments
Financial Assets = =
Financial Liabilities 518.593.051 360,373,299
Floating Rated Instruments
Financial Assets - .
Financial Liabilities 208,984 484 118920125
727.577.335 488,203 424
e TESSSS

If Libor and Euribor had been higher by 50 basis points and all other variables were held constant, profit for
the yvear ended at 31 December 2018 would decrease by TRY 1.090.180 (31 December 2017 decrease by
TRY 761.286). The equity effect is nil. If Liber and Euribor had been lower by 50 basis points, the profit of

the Group for the year ended would increzse with the same absolute amount,
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Cortegories of finmncial ingtrioments

31 Decembrer 2018

Fi ial
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables (including related parties)

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

Trade payables (including related parties)

31 December 2017

Fi fal A
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade receivables (including related parties)

Financial Liabiliti

Borrowings

Trade payables (including related parties)

Loans measured
according 1o effective
interest rate and Financial liabilities at
receivables amortized cost Carryving Value Mote
121.115.624 - 121.115.624 4
404,061,560 - 404.061.360 7
“ T27.577.535 T27.577.535 5
- B5.699.382 B5.600.382 T
Loans measured
according to effective
interest rate and Financial liabilities at
receivables amortized cost Carrying Value Mote
T7.869.867 - 77.869 867 4
292.032.347 - 202.032.347 7
- 488.293.424 488.293.424 3
= GTOZ5.460 GT.025.460 T
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30, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coni"d)
Crtegaries of fimanciol inctruments deam d)
The fsir vahie of the Group's financial assets and liabilities approximate the carrying amount.
The fxir vahies of financial assets and financial lisbilitics ar dctermined as follows:

= Level 1: the fair valoc of financial asscts and financial Babilitics with standard tenms and conditions and
traded on active ligoid markets are determined with reference 1o quoted market prices:

= Lewel 2: the fair value of other financinl asscts and financial lishilitics (excluding derivative instraments)
arc determuined m sccordance with gencrally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analyss
using prices from cbservable cument market tansactions: and

= Level 3: the fadr value of denvative instnements, are caleulated wsing quoted prices. Where such prices are
wod availeble e 15 made of discounted cash flow analysis using the apphicable yield carve for the duration of
the instruments for moo-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional dervatives.

As of 31 December 2018, the Group has no financial assets and linbdlitics that are categonzed based on the
finir value hicrarchy mentioned above (31 December 201 7: Nonc),

3. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Mot
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